CareerSource

;’FLORIDA

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

MAY 21, 2025 - 9:00 A.M. - 12:00 P.M., ET
MARRIOTT SANIBEL HARBOUR RESORT & SPA
MEETING ROOM: CALOSSA BALLROOM

Chair’s Welcome and Remarks Stephanie Smith

Consent Agenda

1.
2.
3.

7.

February 20, 2025, Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
April 8, 2025, Executive Committee Meeting Minutes
Sunset Policies:
e Statewide Workforce Development Board Policymaking Authority and
Delegation
Contract Payment Documentation
Close-out of State Level Contracts/Grants
Accounting, Reporting, and Disposition Requirements for Property
Final Guidance: Prepayment of Costs
e Final Guidance: Responsibilities Following Theft of Federal Funds

4. WIOA Local and Regional Plan Approval
5.
6. Approval of CareerSource Heartland (LWDB 19) Request to Operate as One-

CareerSource Polk (LWDB 17) Local Board Composition and Certification

Stop Operator
2025-2026 Master Credentials List

President’s Report Adrienne Johnston

Strategic Policy and Performance Council Meeting Report Sophia Eccleston

Chair

Finance Council Meeting Report Kevin McDonald

Chair

Action Items

1.
2.

3.

o

CareerSource Florida Budget Dana Davis
State Workforce Development Erin Sampson
Board Roles and Responsibilities Policy

Adult and Dislocated Worker Program Design and Framework Policy
Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA) Design and
Framework Policy

On-the-Job Training Policy

WIOA Waiver Request

collaborate.
innovate.
lead.

V



https://www.marriott.com/en-us/hotels/rswsb-marriott-sanibel-harbour-resort-and-spa/overview/

7. Designation of Three Workforce Development Regions Garrick Wright
e Tampa Bay Regional Planning Area
e Heartland Southwest Florida Regional Planning Area
e Central and East Coast Florida Innovation Alliance

Retaining Florida’s Future: Keep Young J. Alex Kelly
Professionals Thriving in the Sunshine State Secretary, FloridaCommerce
D.C. Reeves

Mayor of Pensacola

Rachel Ludwig

Vice President of Talent Development for the Future of Work
Florida Chamber Foundation

Kelly Jordan

Chief Operating Officer

CareerSource Okaloosa Walton

Apprenticeship Update
e Apprentice Finder Tool Erin Sampson
e Apprenticeship Application Portal Kathryn Wheeler
Director, Office of Apprenticeship
Dept. of Education

ITA Waivers Update Warren Davis

Erin Sampson
System-wide Improvements Garrick Wright
FloridaCommerce Report J. Alex Kelly

Secretary, FloridaCommerce

Local Partners Report Marcus McBride, Ph.D.
CEOQO, CareerSource Escarosa

President, Florida Workforce Development Association

Open Discussion/Public Comment

Closing Remarks Stephanie Smith

UPCOMING MEETINGS

e Joint Strategic Policy and Performance and Finance Council Meeting,
August 20, 10:00 a.m. — 12:00 p.m., Ocala
e Board of Directors Meeting, August 21, 9:00 a.m. — 12:00 p.m., Ocala

y

y



https://careersourceflorida.com/boardroom

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025

Consent Iltem 1

Approved
Disapproved

Consent ltem 1

February 20, 2025, BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
MINUTES

In accordance with Article VII, Section 7.3 of the approved bylaws, the corporation is required to
keep correct and complete books and records of accounts and shall keep minutes on the

proceedings of the board of directors.

FOR CONSIDERATION

Approval of February 20, 2025, Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, to include any

[ ]
modifications or changes noted by the board.



CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
February 20, 2025

Call to Order
Chair Stephanie Smith called the Board of Directors meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. on
February 20, 2025.

Roll Call
CareerSource Florida Board Relations Director Madison Frazee conducted a roll call.
The following members were present:

Stephanie Smith
John Adams

Erik Arroyo
Bayne Beecher
Robert Doyle
Sophia Eccleston
Adrienne Campbell
Casey Penn

Tim Hinson
Austin Hosford
Alex Kelly

Joe Marino
Bailey Mateer
Kevin McDonald
Kelly Rogers
Laurie Sallarulo
Robert Salonen
Les Sims

Scott Singer
Meridith Stanfield
Clay Yarborough

Chair’s Opening Remarks
Chair Smith highlighted the meeting agenda and went over housekeeping items before
moving into the Consent Agenda.

Consent Agenda
Chair Smith presented the consent agenda.

December 11, 2024, Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

January 23, 2025, Executive Committee Meeting Minutes

Approval of Wendy Castle to serve as FloridaCommerce Designee
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Local Workforce Development
Board Local and Regional Plan Approval

Local Workforce Development Board Composition and Certification
Recommendation to Sunset Three CareerSource Florida Strategic and
Administrative Policies:

N~

oo



= CareerSource Florida Policy — Performance Incentives Policy
= CareerSource Florida Administrative Policy — Reemployment and
Eligibility Assessment (REA) Program
= CareerSource Florida Administrative Policy — Employed and
Incumbent Worker Training
7. 7.2025-2026 Updated Master Credentials List

Chair Smith called for a vote to approve the consent agenda.

Motion: John Adams
Second: Erik Arroyo

The consent agenda passed unanimously. There were no public comments.

V. President’s Report
CareerSource Florida President and CEO Adrienne Johnston started off her report by
providing an update on Florida’s labor market and economic outlook before moving into
some 2025 legislative session updates. Johnston continued with CareerSource Florida’s
ongoing activities and initiatives before closing her report out by sharing upcoming
events the board should be made aware of.

VI. Joint Council Meeting Report
Strategic Policy and Performance Council Chair Sophia Eccleston provided an update
on the joint Strategic Policy and Performance and Finance Council meeting from the day
before, highlighting its agenda items, approved action items for the full board’s review
and discussion points.

VIl.  Action Items
Florida Commerce Bureau Chief of One Stop and Program Support Karmyn Hill
presented the first action item.

1. Designation of Regional Planning Areas

Chair Smith called for a vote to approve the action item.

Motion: Kevin McDonald
Second: Alex Kelly

The action item passed unanimously. There were no public comments.

CareerSource Florida Vice President of Workforce Program Development Victoria
Gaitanis presented the next two action items.

2. Workforce Policy 088 — Performance Requirements for Local Workforce
Development Boards

Chair Smith called for a vote to approve the action item.

Motion: Les Sims
Second: John Adams



VIIL.

The action item passed unanimously. There were no public comments.

3. Workforce Policy 100 — Work-based Training and Work-based Learning
Opportunities

Chair Smith called for a vote to approve the action item.

Motion: John Adams
Second: Sophia Eccleston

The action item passed unanimously. There were no public comments.

CareerSource Florida Vice President of External Affairs and Strategic Initiatives Keri
Nucatola presented action item 4.

4. CareerSource Florida Workforce Policy — Florida Workforce System
Statewide Brand

Chair Smith called for a vote to approve the action item.

Motion: Tim Hinson
Second: Bayne Beecher

The action item passed unanimously. There were no public comments.

Marketing Campaign Updates

CareerSource Florida Senior Vice President of External Affairs and Strategic Initiatives
Keri Nucatola highlighted CareerSource Florida’s newly released brand awareness
campaign, highlighting some initial advertising findings before sharing with the board
how they can amplify CareerSource Florida’s campaign outreach.

Empowering Youth: Scholarships and Credentials for Future Workforce Success
CareerSource Florida President and CEO Adrienne Johnston kicked off the panel by
introducing panel members: Florida Lottery Secretary John Davis, Florida Department of
Education’s Office of School Choice Executive Director Adam Emerson, CareerSource
Suncoast President and CEO Joshua Matlock, CareerSource Central Florida COO and
Vice President Tadar Muhammad, and Step Up Suncoast President and CEO Amy
Yount.

This panel focused on empowering youth through scholarships and credentials for future
workforce success.

FloridaCommerce Report

FloridaCommerce Secretary Alex Kelly began his presentation highlighting Governor
Ron DeSantis’ focus on the Fiscal Responsibility Budget before moving into a FL WINS
update for the board.

Sec. Kelly also provided updates on Reemployment Assistance Modernization and
Florida’s manufacturing output and growth before concluding his report out.



Xl. Statewide Assessment
FloridaCommerce Economic Research and Analysis Administrator Kristy Farina
provided updates on Florida’s 2023 performance assessment, primary indicators of
performance and workforce program enrollment.

Xll. Local Partners Report
Florida Workforce Development Association (FWDA) President and CareerSource
Escarosa CEO Marcus McBride provided a report on behalf of the local workforce
development board partners, kicking things off by highlighting a success story from
CareerSource Broward’s recent job fair. McBride also touched on their business
engagement strategy before closing his presentation.

Xlll.  Open Discussion/Public Comment
Chair Smith opened up the floor for discussion amongst board members before asking if
there were any comments from the public.
There were no public comments.

XIV. Chair’s Closing Remarks
Chair Smith thanked the board for their attention and contributions during the meeting.

She noted upcoming meetings before adjourning the meeting.
The meeting was adjourned at 11:37 a.m.

Additional meeting dialogue is recorded and available online at this link.


https://youtu.be/g9b-cPzGOiY

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025

Consent Iltem 2

Approved
Disapproved

Consent ltem 2

APRIL 2025 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

In accordance with Article VII, Section 7.3 of the approved bylaws, the corporation is
required to keep correct and complete books and records of accounts and shall keep
minutes on the proceedings of the board of directors.

FOR CONSIDERATION

e Approval of April 8, 2025, Meeting Minutes, to include any modifications or
changes noted by the board.



CareerSource Florida
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes
April 8, 2025
. CALL TO ORDER
Chair Stephanie Smith called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. ET.
. ROLL CALL
The following members were present:
Stephanie Smith
Jennifer O’Flannery Anderson
Alex Kelly
Kevin McDonald
Robert Salonen
Meredith Stanfield
lll. ACTION ITEM
¢ Determination on Appeal of Credentials Review Committee Actions
= Meta Certified Digital Marketing Associate
= AWS Certified Al Practitioner

Chair Smith called for a vote to approve the Action Item.

Motion: Robert Salonen
Second: Kevin McDonald

There were no members of the public wishing to comment on the Action ltem.
The action item passed unanimously.

IV. OPEN DISCUSSION/PUBLIC COMMENT
There were no additional comments from the Committee or the public.

V. CHAIR’S CLOSING REMARKS

Chair Smith closed by thanking Committee members for their time and reminded
them of upcoming CareerSource Florida meetings.

The meeting adjourned at 8:43 a.m. ET.



VI. BOARD SECRETARY CERTIFICATION

In accordance with Article VII, Section 7.3, | hereby certify these minutes reflect
the proceedings by the Board of Directors of CareerSource Florida, have been
reviewed by the Board, and approved or approved with modifications which have
been incorporated herein.

Adrienne Johnston Date
Board Secretary

Ad(ditional meeting dialogue is recorded and available online at this link.


https://youtu.be/JEufP7PeUbo

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025
Consent Item 3
Approved
Disapproved

Consent Iltem 3

RECOMMENDATION TO SUNSET SIX CAREERSOURCE
FLORIDA POLICIES AND TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
LETTERS

The CareerSource Florida Board of Directors serves as the principal workforce policy
organization for the state as described in Chapter 445.004(2), Florida Statutes. The
state board establishes and directs the vision for the state workforce system. The state
workforce development board may delegate the performance of any duties or the
exercise of any powers to such officers and agents as the board may from time to time,
designate by resolution; however federal and state law and describes what items the
state workforce development board (SWDB) must review, approve, or consider,
including workforce development policies.

CareerSource Florida and the Florida Department of Commerce (FloridaCommerce)
reviews policies for their effectiveness and efficiency and recommend the recission of
policies, as necessary. CareerSource Florida and FloridaCommerce reviewed the
policies described below.

Policy 2021.06.09.A.1 - Statewide Workforce Development Board Policymaking
Authority and Delegation Policy — This strategic policy created in 2021 defines the
policymaking authority of CareerSource Florida and its professional team, outlining roles
and responsibilities while ensuring FloridaCommerce provides guidance to local
workforce development boards and other affected parties.

Revisions to CareerSource Florida Workforce Policy G1 — State Workforce
Development Board Roles and Responsibilities address processes described in Policy
2021.06.09.A.1 making the Policymaking Authority and Delegation policy obsolete.

Policy 11: Contract Payments Documentation — This administrative guidance was
issued by FloridaCommerce (formerly the Agency for Workforce Innovation) in May
2000 to establish minimum requirements for written local procedures governing the
maintenance of backup documentation for contract payments. This 25-year-old directive
issued under the Workforce Investment Act (WIA), is not relevant to the Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) and is obsolete.



https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/19.-Policymaking-Authority-and-Delegation-Strategic-Policy.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/19.-Policymaking-Authority-and-Delegation-Strategic-Policy.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/19.-Policymaking-Authority-and-Delegation-Strategic-Policy.pdf
https://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administration/2000-administration/011-contract-payments-documentation.rtf?sfvrsn=105878b0_2

Policy 28: Close-out of State Level Contracts/Grants — This administrative guidance
was issued by the Agency for Workforce Innovation in June 2002 to provide guidance
regarding state procedures established by the SWDB concerning the closeout of state-
level contracts. This guidance is specific to WIA, it is not relevant to WIOA and
processes currently in place by FloridaCommerce. This 23-year-old guidance is
obsolete.

Policy 99-101: Accounting, Reporting and Disposition Requirements for Property
Policy — This workforce development policy was issued by the Florida Department of
Labor and Security to expand procedures for the accounting, reporting and disposition
requirements for tangible personal property being used in several workforce programs,
prior to the implementation of WIOA. Some of the programs described no longer exist or
are now operated consistent with WIOA and Florida’s current Workforce Development
Plan. This 26-year-old guidance is obsolete.

Final Guidance 04-043 Prepayment of Costs — This guidance paper was issued by
the Agency for Workforce Innovation in July 2004 to assist regional workforce boards
and other grant subrecipients to determine if the prepayment of a cost is appropriate
and allowable under federal guidelines. This guidance is specific to WIA, it is not
relevant to WIOA and processes currently in place by FloridaCommerce. This 21-year-
old guidance is obsolete.

Final Guidance 066 - Responsibilities Following Theft of Federal Funds — This
administrative guidance was issued by the Agency for Workforce Innovation in January
2009, to describe the responsibilities of Regional Workforce Boards when federal funds
they receive through the Agency are misspent due to fraud or theft. This guidance is
specific to WIA, it is not relevant to WIOA and processes currently in place by
FloridaCommerce. This 16-year-old guidance is obsolete.

CareerSource Florida and FloridaCommerce recommend the sunset of these six (6)
policies and their removal from the CareerSource Florida Policy Portfolio.

FOR CONSIDERATION

e Approve sunset of six (6) CareerSource Florida policies and their removal
from the CareerSource Florida Policy Portfolio.


https://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administration/2002-administration/028contractsclose-outs.rtf?sfvrsn=825978b0_2
https://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administration/1999-administration/wdp99101.pdf?sfvrsn=865878b0_2
https://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administration/1999-administration/wdp99101.pdf?sfvrsn=865878b0_2
https://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administration/2004-administration/043prepaycosts.pdf?sfvrsn=575978b0_2
https://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2009-guidance-papers/066responsibilfollowingtheftoffunds.pdf?sfvrsn=c85378b0_2

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025

Consent Item 4

Approved
Disapproved

Consent ltem 4

WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT
LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
LOCAL AND REGIONAL PLAN APPROVAL

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) requires each local workforce
development board (LWDB), in partnership with the appropriate chief local elected
official(s) (CLEOs), to develop and submit a comprehensive four-year local plan to the
state. WIOA also encourages the development of planning regions to align workforce
development areas and available resources to provide coordinated and efficient
services to both job seekers and employers. In partnership with the CLEO, local areas
must submit a regional plan that addresses the requirements at WIOA secs.
106(c)(1)(A)-(H) and incorporate the local planning requirements identified for local
plans at WIOA secs. 108(b)(1)-(22). CareerSource Florida Policy 2023.09.19.A.1 —
Regional Planning Areas Strategic Policy and CareerSource Florida Administrative
Policy 123 — Regional Planning Area ldentification and Requirements describe the
requirements for regional planning areas.

In December 2024, the CareerSource Florida Board of Directors conditionally approved
several LWDB local and regional plans contingent upon receipt of additional information
or signatures of approval. Five LWDBs provided updated local plans which were
reviewed by the Florida Department of Commerce (FloridaCommerce) for compliance
with WIOA, Chapter 445.003, Florida Statutes, and 20 Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) 679.500 and 20 CFR 679.540.

CareerSource Florida and FloridaCommerce recommend full approval of the local and
regional plans for five local workforce development boards.

CareerSource Florida Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025
Page 1 of 2



https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/Regional-Planning-Strategic-Policy.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/Regional-Planning-Strategic-Policy.pdf
https://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/programs-and-resources/wioa/2023-wioa-administrative-policies/final---regional-planning-areas-identification-and-requirements-administrative-policy.pdf?sfvrsn=7abd5cb0_2
https://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/programs-and-resources/wioa/2023-wioa-administrative-policies/final---regional-planning-areas-identification-and-requirements-administrative-policy.pdf?sfvrsn=7abd5cb0_2
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.003&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.003.html
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.500
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.500
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.540

FOR CONSIDERATION

1. Approve WIOA local plans for the following local workforce
development boards:
e CareerSource Pasco Hernando (LWDB 16)
e CareerSource Heartland (LWDB 19)
e CareerSource North Central Florida (LWDB 26)

2. Approve the WIOA local and regional plan(s) for the following local
workforce development boards:
e CareerSource Research Coast (LWDB 20)
e CareerSource Palm Beach County (LWDB 21)

Attachments:

e Local Workforce Development Board Local and Regional Plan Updates

CareerSource Florida Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025
Page 2 of 2



https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/C4-Local-and-Regional-Plans-Single-File.pdf

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025

Consent Iltem 5

Approved
Disapproved

Consent ltem 5

CAREERSOURCE POLK
LOCAL BOARD COMPOSITION AND CERTIFICATION

Once every two years, one local workforce development board (LWDB) must be certified
for each local area in the state, based on the local board membership requirements
described in the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), sec. 107(b) and 20
CFR 679.320. Section 445.004(11), Florida Statutes (F.S.), requires the state board, in
consultation with the Florida Department of Commerce (FloridaCommerce), to ensure
that LWDBs have membership consistent with the requirements of federal and state law.
For a second or subsequent certification, the certification must also be based on the
extent to which the local area ensures workforce investment activities carried out in the
local area enabled the local area to meet the corresponding performance accountability
measures and achieve fiscal integrity as defined in WIOA sec. 106(e)(2).

CareerSource Florida Administrative Policy 091 — Local Workforce Development Board
Composition and Certification provides LWDBs the requirements for LWDB membership
composition under WIOA and Chapter 445, F.S., and the process for certification of
LWDBs.

In June 2024, the CareerSource Florida Board of Directors conditionally approved local
boards contingent upon approval signatures and/or appointment of private education
providers to the LWDB. As evidenced in the attachments, CareerSource Polk (LWDB 17)
provided an updated Board of Directors roster and performance data for program year
(PY) 2022-2023 and PY 2023-2024. Based on the performance data analysis, the board
meets performance accountability measures. Letter grades are assigned to local
workforce development boards annually by October 15, following the close of each
program year. LWDB 17 currently holds a B- score for its Q2 performance for Program
Year 2024-2025.

LWDB 17 also provided the Quarterly Report for its Education and Industry Consortium
as required by CareerSource Florida Strategic Policy 2023.09.19.A.2 — Education and
Industry Consortiums which, consistent with Section 445.007(15), F.S., requires each
LWDB to create an education and industry consortium composed of representatives of
educational entities and businesses in the designated workforce service delivery.



https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.320
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.320
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2021-guidance-papers/ap091_lwdb-compcertificn---final-07012021.pdf?sfvrsn=b2004eb0_2
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2021-guidance-papers/ap091_lwdb-compcertificn---final-07012021.pdf?sfvrsn=b2004eb0_2
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/Education-and-Industry-Consortiums-Strategic-Policy.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/Education-and-Industry-Consortiums-Strategic-Policy.pdf

Information about Education and Industry Consortiums can be found on CareerSource
Florida’s website.

FloridaCommerce reviewed and confirmed compliance of the local board’s roster
submission. The roster was reviewed for compliance with WIOA, federal regulations,
Florida Statutes and CareerSource Florida’s Administrative Policy 091: Local Workforce
Development Board Composition and Certification.

CareerSource Florida and FloridaCommerce recommend CareerSource Polk for
certification because the LWDB meets necessary requirements.

FOR CONSIDERATION

e Certify CareerSource Polk for meeting statutory and policy
requirements related to board composition.

Attachments:

e CareerSource Polk (LWDB 17) Board of Directors Roster
e CareerSource Polk Education and Industry Consortium Quarterly Report

e CareerSource Polk (LWDB 17) Performance Information



https://careersourceflorida.com/about-us/policies-and-initiatives/
https://careersourceflorida.com/about-us/policies-and-initiatives/
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/C5-LWDB-Composition-and-Certification.pdf

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025

Consent Item 6

Approved
Disapproved

Consent Item 6

CAREERSOURCE HEARTLAND (LWDB 19)
REQUEST TO SERVE AS ONE-STOP OPERATOR

The federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) requires local workforce
development boards (LWDBs) to use a competitive procurement process to select their
one-stop operators, and to conduct a competitive procurement of one-stop operators at
least once every four years.

LWDBs may serve as a one-stop operator, if selected through the competitive
procurement process pursuant to 20 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 678.605 and
678.615(a). In instances where the LWDB competes to serve as one-stop operators, the
procurement process must be completed by a third party. The third party may be a
consultant, a professional, or any other independent entity retained specifically to
arrange, notice, and process the procurement. The third party must not bid on, compete
for or have any financial interest in the contract for procurement or its outcome.
Pursuant to CareerSource Florida Administrative Policy 97 — One-Stop Operator
Procurement, if the LWDB successfully competes to serve as the one-stop operator, the
LWDB must obtain approval from the Governor and the Chief Local Elected Official
(CLEO).

At its June 2021 meeting, the CareerSource Florida Board of Directors approved LWDB
19’s request to be named as one-stop operator from July 1, 2021 — June 30, 2025.
LWDB 19 is currently the one-stop operator for its local area.

CareerSource Research Coast (CSRC) published a Request for Proposal (RFP) on
January 16, 2025, for CareerSource Heartland’s one-stop operator. The deadline for
proposals was February 17, 2025. Two responses were received in response to the
RFP, including CareerSource Heartland. The responses were reviewed and rated
against the criteria outlined in the RFP. CareerSource Research Coast submitted a
letter to CareerSource Heartland’s Finance and Operations Committee on April 14,
2025. The Finance and Operations Committee approved the recommendation of
CareerSource Heartland to serve as the one-stop operator for LWDB 19. Following the
approval of the Finance and Operations Committee, CareerSource Research Coast
presented to LWDB 19’s Board of Directors on April 23, 2025, recommending
CareerSource Heartland as the One-Stop Operator. The Board of Directors and CLEO
approved the recommendation, as documented by the meeting minutes.

Consistent with 20 CFR 678.610, 2 CFR 200.320(f) and CareerSource Florida Policy
097, LWDB 19 submitted the attached request to continue serving as a one-stop



https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2017-guidance-papers/adminpol097_onestopprocurement_final_9252017.pdf?sfvrsn=2acd72b0_6
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2017-guidance-papers/adminpol097_onestopprocurement_final_9252017.pdf?sfvrsn=2acd72b0_6

operator. As shown in the attached request, supplemental documents, checklist and
performance information, LWDB 19 clearly defines the roles and responsibilities
between career centers in the local area, and additional compliance and performance
information that demonstrates the cost savings and other benefits of LWDB 19 acting as
one-stop operator.

Florida Commerce and CareerSource Florida reviewed CareerSource Heartland’s
request to serve as a one-stop operator and other information provided. As referenced
in supporting documents, CareerSource Heartland achieved or exceeded the state
average for its negotiated performance targets for Program Years 2022-23 and 2023-
2024. Letter grades are assigned to local workforce development boards annually by
October 15, following the close of each program year. LWDB 19 currently holds a B+
score for its Q2 performance for Program Year 2024-2025.

FloridaCommerce confirms the requirements to be designated as the one-stop operator
have been sufficiently met. CareerSource Florida recommends approval for LWDB 19 to
serve as the one-stop operator effective July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2029, for which
the local board requested to serve as one-stop operator.

FOR CONSIDERATION

e Approve CareerSource Heartland’s request to serve to operate as a one-
stop operator.

Attachments:

e CareerSource Heartland’s request to serve as one-stop operator from July 1,
2025, through June 30, 2029.

e FloridaCommerce Checklist AP 97 — One-Stop Operator Procurement

e CareerSource Florida Review of CareerSource Heartland (LWDB 19)
Past Performance on Federally Defined Metrics



https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/C6-OSO-Request-LWDB-19.pdf

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025

Consent Item 7

Approved
Disapproved

Consent ltem 7

APPROVAL OF THE 2025-2026 MASTER CREDENTIALS LIST

The Reimagining Education and Career Help (REACH) Act amended Chapter 445.004,
Florida Statutes, and requires that the Credentials Review Committee define
Credentials of Value and make recommendations for these credentials to be added to a
state-approved Master Credentials List.

In December 2022, the Credentials Review Committee approved the definition for
Credentials of Value and a Framework of Quality by which these credentials would be
evaluated. This Framework of Quality is used to evaluate credentials for inclusion on the
state-approved Master Credentials List.

By action of the Credentials Review Committee, the Framework of Quality was
amended September 6, 2023, to reflect statutory changes and to update the framework
with references to current labor market information. The Framework of Quality was
subsequently amended August 14, 2024, to allow the Credentials Review Committee to
consider more current labor market information identified by the Labor Market Statistics
Center within the Florida Department of Commerce and the Labor Market Estimating
Conference created in Section 216.136, Florida Statutes. The Credentials Review
Committee may consider additional evidence to determine labor market demand for
credentials of agricultural occupations.

There was a total of 48 credential applications received by March 31, 2025, deadline. Of
these applications, 27 were unduplicated and valid submissions, which included:

e 15 submissions for new credential evaluation.

e 1 submission for a credential flagged for demand concerns

e 7 submissions for credentials flagged for wage concerns.

e 4 submissions for credentials flagged for both wage and demand concerns.

In addition, the interagency team evaluated 30 existing MCL credentials flagged for
removal due to wage or demand concerns. In total, the interagency team evaluated 57
credentials.

Each credential was evaluated using the Framework of Quality to ensure it met the
following criteria:

¢ Meets the definition of an industry certification.



https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/Framework-of-Quality-2025.pdf

e Direct linkage to a Standard Occupation Classification (SOC) code that meets
the required demand, wage criteria and is recognized by industry.

The evaluation of new credential applications resulted in the recommendation to the Committee
for inclusion of 12 additional credentials to the 2025-2026 Master Credentials List.

Additionally, the evaluation of new credential applications led to the recommendation to
deny 3 credentials for inclusion in the 2025-2026 Master Credentials List. These
credentials did not meet the established criteria outlined in the Framework of Quality.

The interagency team successfully resolved a total of 38 flagged credentials. This includes
resolved flags for demand and wage for 8 credential applications submitted by stakeholders and
addressed wage concerns for 30 existing flagged credentials. Using sequencing through formal
articulation agreements, the team successfully resolved the 30 existing flagged credentials,
ensuring alignment with established standards and labor market needs.

The evaluation of flagged credentials resulted in the recommendation to deny the
removal of flags for 4 existing credentials submitted by stakeholders. These credentials
failed to meet the standards established in the Framework of Quality

With these additions, the 2025-2026 Master Credentials List will now include 2,384 total
credentials consisting of:

296 degree credentials

872 non-degree credentials

577 industry certifications

597 registered apprenticeships

42 K-8 Cape digital tools

The Florida Credentials Review Committee met on May 8, 2025 and approved
recommendations for the 2025-2026 Master Credentials List to be sent to the
CareerSource Florida Board of Directors for delivery to the State Board of Education.
Credentials identified for removal will remain on the list for at least two years after
identification for removal. Valid submitters may reconcile eligibility issues and re-submit
credentials.

After approval and prior to the State Board of Education meeting, there may arise the

need for technical revisions to the list, such as revisions to certification names,
availability of the certification, or code numbers that need to be revised.

FOR CONSIDERATION

e Approve sending the updated 2025-2026 Master Credentials List to the State
Board of Education.




Approve technical revisions to the list by the Department of Education, as

needed, without adding or removing any credentials not explicitly described in
this Consent Item.

ATTACHMENTS

Framework of Quality

2025-2026 Master Credentials List



https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/Framework-of-Quality-2025.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/2025-2026-Master-Credentials-List-2.xlsx

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025

Action Item 1

Approved
Disapproved

Action ltem 1

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026
CAREERSOURCE FLORIDA NETWORK FUNDING

Each year, Florida is notified of several federal awards and state appropriations to be received during
the upcoming fiscal year. In most cases, the manner for distributing these funds among the state and
21 local workforce development boards is defined in the authorizing federal act or in the state
appropriations bill; however, the specific state and local calculations are not known until updated
allocation factors are applied to the funding awards. This action item defines these specific
allocations in accordance with the authorizing grants, provides recommendations for the allocation of
state-level funds for various state initiatives that advance the statewide strategic goals for workforce
development and seeks the approval of the CareerSource Florida State Board of Directors for specific
reserves, commitments, and local workforce development board allocations.

This action item covers the Florida Workforce System’s major funding streams: the Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), and
Wagner-Peyser Act (WP).

Funding provided under WIOA must be allocated in accordance with the authorizing federal act
(Public Law 113-128, as amended). This act defines specific allocation methodologies for its three
principal funding streams (Adult, Youth, and Dislocated Worker) to be followed in allocating funding
to local workforce development boards. It also defines allowances for funding levels for the state
rapid response initiative and state-level set-aside funds (also referred to as the Governor’s Reserve
or as discretionary CareerSource Florida Board funding).

In the case of TANF state-appropriated funds, the Florida Legislature allocates a certain level of
funding to the workforce system but does not define specific local allocations or the specific allocation
methodology that the CareerSource Florida State Board must use. However, the Legislature does
define specific line-item appropriations or specific proviso language which would be deducted from
total funding available prior to the allocation of TANF funds to local workforce development boards.
The CareerSource Florida State Board, in determining specific local allocations, is required to
maximize funds distributed directly to the local workforce development boards through these
appropriations, with such distributions to be based on the anticipated client caseload and the
achievement of performance standards.




Specific direction and approval are needed by the CareerSource Florida State Board for key
workforce investment areas as follows:

1. Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Funding consisting of the Adult, Youth, and
Dislocated Worker funding streams with three primary allocation categories:
a. Local Workforce Development Board Allocations
b. State-Level Set-Aside or Governor’s Reserve
c. State Rapid Response Funds
2. Temporary Assistance for Needy Families including:
a. State-Level Allocations and Initiatives
b. Local Workforce Development Board Allocations and Initiatives
3. Wagner-Peyser:
a. Wagner-Peyser 7A
b. Wagner-Peyser 7B
4. Budget Implementing Actions




WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT (WIOA)

FEDERAL PROGRAM YEAR 2025 for Fiscal Year 2025/26 — $111,955,579 (Prior Year
2024/25 - $112,890,687; decrease of $935,108 or -.83%)

BASIC PURPOSE AND ELIGIBILITY:

1. Career and training services for adults, youth, and dislocated workers through the
CareerSource Florida network; and

2. Broad, nearly universal eligibility for career services, but more restrictive eligibility for
training services based on priority for individuals with low income, employment barriers
and/or dislocation from employment.

SPECIFIC MANDATES/LIMITATIONS: There are multiple federal restrictions and regulations
governing allocation to state and local workforce development boards, including the use of funds,
reporting, etc. Further, state law mandates percentages of WIOA funds that must be used for
Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) at the local level.

DISTRIBUTION MECHANISMS: Federal laws specify formulas for distributing WIOA funds among
states and for sub-state allocations, primarily based upon relative shares of workforce,
unemployment, and poverty factors. WIOA (Public Law 113-128) provides that for Adult and Youth
funding streams, 85% of the total federal award must be distributed to local workforce development
boards by formula, allowing the Governor to reserve up to 15% at the state level for operational
expenses, performance-based incentive payments to boards, program management and oversight,
and state board-authorized initiatives. Similarly, WIOA Dislocated Worker funds also allow 15%
to be transferred to the state-level “pool,” with another 25% of the total federal award allocated for
purposes of funding a state-level program for rapid response assistance to dislocated workers,
including emergency supplements to local workforce development boards. The remaining 60% of
the federal dislocated worker funds are then distributed to the Local Workforce Development
Boards based on a formula that uses local economic factors.

SPECIFIC FUND DISTRIBUTIONS FOR FY 2025/26: The PY2025 funding allotments to the
states, published in Federal Register/Vol. 90, No.95, are reflected in this document. For
specific identification of amounts to be received under the various WIOA categories by the state
and local workforce development boards, refer to the flowchart titled “Florida Funding for
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act.”

As shown on the following chart, a total of $111,955,579 is anticipated to be awarded to Florida
from Program Year 2025 funds for Fiscal Year 2025/26, down by $935,108 or a decrease of .83%
from the previous year’s grant award. From the total WIOA funds awarded, $16,793,335, is
allocated by the federal act to the state-level set-aside pool; the statewide Dislocated Worker
Program for the Rapid Response Unit is allocated 25%, or $9,322,441, of the federal dislocated
worker funding, and the balance of $85,839,803 is allocated to the 21 local workforce development
boards.




PY 2025 PY 2024 Chanage

Total WIOA Grant Award $ 111,955,579 $ 112,890,687 $ (935,108)
State Set-Aside 16,793,335 16,933,601 (140,266)
Rapid Response 9,322,441 10,360,106 (1,037,665)
Local Allocations 85,839,803 85,596,980 242,823

LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD (LWDB) ALLOCATIONS

As shown on the Florida Funding for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act chart for
Program Year 2025, a total of $85,839,803 is available through direct formula allocations to
local workforce development boards from the Adult, Youth, and Dislocated Worker funds. The
spreadsheet titled, “Program Year 2025 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, Local
Workforce Development Board Formula Allocations,” shows the total allocations of WIOA funds
with a comparison to the prior year, and the four sets of spreadsheets that follow provide the
individual allocations for each of the three funding streams.

STATE SET-ASIDE ALLOCATIONS

15% State Set-Aside Allocation — As shown in the Florida Funding for Workforce Innovation
and Opportunity Act chart, the federal act allocates a portion of each of the WIOA Adult, Youth
and Dislocated Worker funding streams for use by the Governor for state-level initiatives. For
Program Year 2025, the amount allocated to the state is $16,793,335.

After statewide administrative and program costs of the Department of Commerce and
CareerSource Florida, Inc., are deducted from the total WIOA funds available, the remaining balance
is available for the Governor’'s discretionary projects. The CareerSource Florida State Board
determines specific allotments for purposes of state demonstration and pilot projects as well as
other workforce development initiatives for the state fiscal year. Below are the funds available for
state Fiscal Year 2025/26.

FY 2025/26
Total WIOA Set-Aside Pool $16,793,335
Estimated Balance of Recaptured Funds
(includes Est. Balance of Rapid Response and 15% State Level Set Aside) 4,467,028
Total WIOA Funds Available $21,260,363
Less Statewide Administrative and Program Services:
FloridaCommerce (4,703,330)
CareerSource Florida (3,554,686)
LWDB Support and Shared Services (1,749,931)
CSF Statewide Outreach (1,500,000)
Balance of Funds Available for State Board Discretion $9,752,416

Governor’s Discretionary Funding — As shown above, the Governor has available discretionary
funding in the amount of $9,752,416, after combining the balance of WIOA unobligated funding
brought forward from the prior year with the new year’s PY 2025 WIOA grant award and accounting
for statewide administrative and program services.




Incumbent Worker Training Grant Program ($3,000,000)

When workers lack needed training and businesses experience skills gaps, a company’s ability to
compete, expand, and retain workers can be compromised. Florida’s Incumbent Worker Training
(IWT) grant program addresses such needs. The IWT program was created to provide grant funding
for continuing education and training of incumbent employees at existing Florida businesses. It has
proven to be a popular resource for small businesses.

Sectors of Strategic Focus Training Initiative ($3,000,000)

State-level WIOA funding will be provided to local boards to support foundational skills
development, career exploration, occupational skills training, and supportive services in regional
sectors of strategic focus. This initiative provides greater leverage of the Governor’s investments in
these sectors and ensures the continued development of talent pipelines for critical workers needed
in the following targeted industry sectors: manufacturing, transportation (e.g., trucking, diesel
mechanics, etc.), logistics and supply chain, and critical high demand healthcare needs (e.g.,
nursing, etc.).

A particular emphasis will be placed on supporting three target populations: Hope Florida
participants; veterans; and incumbent workers needing the skills to harness the potential of artificial
intelligence in their industry. These efforts reflect Florida’s commitment to a comprehensive
workforce development approach for strategic sectors, while broadening opportunities for
incumbent workers and individuals seeking a path to economic self-sufficiency. The initiative aims
to enhance workforce capabilities, address industry-specific skill gaps, and foster economic growth
across the state.

Rural Initiatives ($2,000,000)

Florida has identified 31 Florida counties and three cities in one additional county as Rural Areas
of Opportunity. These counties and cities face extraordinary economic challenges. Historically,
CareerSource Florida’s Board of Directors has designated supplementary allocations for local
workforce development boards identified as rural boards to support operations by Florida’s smallest
local workforce development boards in providing workforce services to employers and residents in
the areas they serve. Initiatives funded through this allocation will support critical workforce
development needs in rural communities.

Advancing Florida’s Workforce System ($750,000)

Continued funding to support advancing Florida's workforce system. This funding will focus
primarily on systemwide improvements benefiting operations for all 21 LWDBs. Initiatives include:
e implementation of standardized eligibility criteria and intake processing,
e Improved outcomes tracking and performance monitoring for federal and non-federal
reporting metrics,
e Reducing administrative costs and barriers through WIOA planning region implementation,
and
¢ modernizing policies, processes and technologies to create a more consistent and effective
customer experience.




Youth Career Exploration ($750,000)

Program designed to pilot career exploration and work—based learning initiatives aligned with
Florida Sector-Based Training Initiatives to expose high school students from high—poverty areas
to many career opportunities in these high growth industries. This program combines career
exploration with a comprehensive learning experience that includes the development of essential
soft skills and the opportunity to participate in work-based learning opportunities with our partner
businesses.

Funding can be used to support the creation of new programs in regions that do not currently offer
summer youth internship or other career exploration activities, expansion of existing programs to
serve more youth or expand upon services provided, and to provide financial incentives for youth
participation. Local boards will be provided with support and a tool kit to allow them to sustain the
program through the development of relationships with local community and business foundations
to seek financial support in the form of grants and contributions.

Workforce Summit ($140,000)

Ongoing professional development for CareerSource Florida network workforce professionals is
essential to ensure high-quality, effective service delivery in a rapidly evolving workforce and
economic landscape. Training in areas such as policies and procedures, systems and digital tools,
labor market trends, and industry needs not only enhances the capacity of workforce professionals
to serve Florida’s businesses but also improves outcomes for job seekers and program participants.
Investing in the professional growth of our network professionals ultimately strengthens
organizational performance, promotes staff retention, and upholds the integrity and impact of
workforce services.

Discretionary Funding Summary

Total WIOA Funds Available for FY25/26 $9,752,416

Less Proposed Discretionary Board Projects:

Incumbent Worker Grant Training Program (3,000,000)
Sectors of Strategic Focus Training Initiative (3,000,000)
Rural Initiatives (2,000,000)
Advancing Florida’s Workforce System (750,000)
Youth Career Exploration (750,000)
Workforce Summit (140,000)
Balance Remaining for State Projects $112,416




WIOA - STATE RAPID RESPONSE FUNDS

As noted previously, 25%, or $9,322,441, of the total federal WIOA Dislocated Worker funding
($37,289,765) provided to the state for Fiscal Year 2025/26 may be reserved by federal law for the
purposes of establishing and operating the state-level Rapid Response Unit and providing
emergency allocations to address local dislocation events. From this amount, the State Board is
required by Chapter 445, F.S., to maintain an emergency reserve, historically set at $1,000,000,
to fund the operational costs of the Department of Commerce Rapid Response Unit.

The following tabulation shows the distribution of the total federal award for state Fiscal Year 2025/26:

Total Dislocated Worker Funds (25/26) $37,289,765
Less Local Pass-Through (22,373,860)
Less State-Level Set Aside (15%) (5,593,464)

Balance for State-Level Rapid Response Reserve $9,322,441

From the total Rapid Response funding available to the State Board from new-year funding, program
management costs of $750,000 are being requested as well as continuation of the $1,000,000
emergency reserve. The $1,000,000 emergency reserve will allow the Department of Commerce
to fund supplemental requests from local workforce development boards during Fiscal Year 2025/26
for major dislocations and plant closures as well as the needs of the unemployed and long-term
unemployed.

To ensure that Florida continues with a comprehensive, proactive rapid response system,
$3,500,000 will be distributed to the LWDBs for dedicated Rapid Response Coordinators.
Supplemental Dislocated Worker funds will be distributed in the amount of $4,072,441 back to the
boards via the formula allocation.

Total Rapid Response State-Level Allocation $9,322,441
Less: Proposed Rapid Response Program Unit Costs (750,000)
Less: Proposed Emergency Reserve (Chapter 445, F.S.) (1,000,000)
Less: Rapid Response Allocations (3,500,000)
Less: Supplemental Dislocated Worker Allocation (4,072,441)
Balance $0

FOR CONSIDERATION

o Approval of the Program Year 2025/26 WIOA state-level discretionary board projects.




FLORIDA FUNDING FOR WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY
ACT

FUNDING FROM USDOL - PROGRAM YEAR 2025
$111,955,579
PY2024
($112,890,687) (.83% Decrease)

ADULT PROGRAM YOUTH PROGRAM DISLOCATED WORKER PROGRAM
$38,614,664 $36,051,150 $37,289,765
($36,129,189) (6.88% Increase) ($35,321,069) (2.07% Increase) ($41,440,429) (10.02% Decrease)

i i l

REQUIRED RESERVE FROM EACH FUNDING STREAM FOR STATE-LEVEL ACTIVITIES
$16,793,335
($16,933,601) (.83% Decrease)

v

25% RESERVE FROM j

DISLOCATED WORKER PROGRAM FOR
RAPID RESPONSE
$9,322,441
($10,360,106) (10.02% Decrease)

LOCAL WORKFORCE BOARD FORMULA ALLOCATIONS
$85,839,803
($85,596,980) (.28% Increase)

,, i

ADULT PROGAM $32,822,465 > [ YOUTH PROGRAM $30,643,478 DISLOCATED WORKER $22,373,860}

($30,709,812) (6.88% Increase) ($30,022,909) (2.07% Increase) ($24,864,259) (10.02%Decrease)




Program Year 2025 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
Local Workforce Development Board Formula Allocations

WIOA PY 2025 PY 2024
LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT WIOA WIOA DISLOCATED FINAL FINAL
BOARDS ADULT YOUTH WORKER |[ALLOCATION |ALLOCATION |DIFFERENCE %

1 CareerSource Escarosa $891,103 $956,363 $421,897 $2,269,363 $1,890,181 $379,182 | 20.06%
2 CareerSource Okaloosa Walton $300,363 $271,842 $187,491 $759,696 $677,611 $82,085 | 12.11%
3 CareerSource Chipola $313,503 $238,074 $84,158 $635,735 $474,997 $160,738 | 33.84%
4 CareerSource Gulf Coast $302,202 $250,136 $249,330 $801,668 $869,138 ($67,470)| -7.76%
5 CareerSource Capital Region $838,019 $1,696,728 $340,315 $2,875,062 $2,870,885 $4,177 | 0.15%
6 CareerSource North Florida $313,452 $232,291 $81,428 $627,171 $595,026 $32,145 5.40%
8 CareerSource Northeast Florida $2,752,348 $2,631,370 $1,804,181 $7,187,899 $6,270,536 $917,363 | 14.63%
10 CareerSource Citrus Levy Marion $1,181,376 $1,012,064 $535,370 $2,728,810 $2,960,510 ($231,700)| -7.83%
12 CareerSource Central Florida $4,003,378 $3,876,622 $3,123,746 $11,003,746 $11,206,220 ($202,474)] -1.81%
16 CareerSource Pasco Hernando $1,463,650 $1,095,073 $861,830 $3,420,553 $2,929,936 $490,617 | 16.74%
17 CareerSource Polk $1,488,595 $1,407,677 $962,353 $3,858,625 $3,488,569 $370,056 | 10.61%
18 CareerSource Suncoast $1,041,841 $719,270 $705,030 $2,466,141 $2,257,263 $208,878 9.25%
19 CareerSource Heartland $451,281 $524,901 $174,335 $1,150,517 $1,163,228 ($12,711)] -1.09%
20 CareerSource Research Coast $1,167,001 $949,630 $667,134 $2,783,765 $2,259,709 $524,056 | 23.19%
21 CareerSource Palm Beach County $1,778,526 $1,584,649 $1,446,468 $4,809,643 $4,780,983 $28,660 0.60%)
22 CareerSource Broward $2,283,002 $1,889,627 $2,087,076 $6,259,705 $6,724,280 ($464,575)| -6.91%
23 CareerSource South Florida $4,814,051 $4,143,922 $2,783,354 | $11,741,327 | $12,764,456 | ($1,023,129) -8.02%)
24 CareerSource Southwest Florida $2,184,874 $1,856,480 $1,316,643 $5,357,997 $6,504,399 | ($1,146,402)| -17.63%
26 Crown/North Central Florida $751,836 $1,422,302 $360,302 $2,534,440 $2,371,391 $163,049 6.88%
27 Flager Volusia/Brevard $1,658,219 $1,314,920 $1,291,609 $4,264,748 $4,097,197 $167,551 4.09%
28 Pinellas/Tampa Bay $2,843,845 $2,569,537 $2,889,810 $8,303,192 $8,440,465 ($137,273)] -1.63%

STATEWIDE TOTALS $32,822,465 $30,643,478 $22,373,860 $85,839,803 | $85,596,980 $242,823 0.28%




Program Year 2025 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

Adult Program Local Workforce Development Board Formula Allocations

AREA OF SUBSTANTIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ECONOMICALLY
Unemployed DISADVANTAGED LWDB HH PY2025 PY2024
LOCAL WORKFORCE FINAL FINAL
DEVELOPMENT BOARDS LABOR FORCE Total Rate Total Excess SHARE * ALLOCATION ALLOCATION DIFFERENCE %

1 CareerSource Escarosa 70,208 4,624 6.6% 42,710 39,644 0.027149185 $891,103 $661,938 $229,165 34.62%
2 CareerSource Okaloosa Walton 14,906 1,004 6.7%)| 20,560 18,792 0.009151128 $300,363 $244,032 $56,331 23.08%)
3 CareerSource Chipola 11,888 770 6.5% 24,120 23,587 0.009551473 $313,503 $213,624 $99,879 46.75%)
4 CareerSource Gulf Coast 9,258 606 6.5% 19,985 18,733 0.009207163 * $302,202 $308,703 ($6,501) -2.11%|
5 CareerSource Capital Region 68,009 4,392 6.5%) 40,530 37,975 0.025531879 $838,019 $813,672 $24,347 2.99%)
6 CareerSource North Florida 17,158 1,113 6.5% 20,450 19,925 0.009549919 $313,452 $279,062 $34,390 12.32%
8 CareerSource Northeast Florida 232,761 15,271 6.6% 122,830 111,840 0.083855613 $2,752,348 $2,099,535 $652,813 31.09%
10 CareerSource Citrus Levy Mario 93,847 6,100 6.5% 57,140 54,393 0.035992897 $1,181,376 $1,248,688 ($67,312) -5.39%
12 CareerSource Central Florida 283,670 18,521 6.5% 204,655 185,630 0.121970659 * $4,003,378 $3,851,937 $151,441 3.93%
16 CareerSource Pasco Hernando 134,074 8,699 6.5%) 59,365 55,032 0.044592932 $1,463,650 $1,176,450 $287,200 24.41%)
17 CareerSource Polk 133,150 8,593 6.5% 63,600 59,260 0.045352934 $1,488,595 $1,241,134 $247,461 19.94%
18 CareerSource Suncoast 85,678 5,584 6.5% 49,540 44,553 0.031741714 $1,041,841 $892,080 $149,761 16.79%
19 CareerSource Heartland 28,198 1,841 6.5% 26,900 25,921 0.013749158 $451,281 $440,549 $10,732 2.44%
20 CareerSource Research Coast 106,174 6,932 6.5%) 47,100 43,243 0.035554932 $1,167,001 $827,277 $339,724 41.07%)
21 CareerSource Palm Beach Coun| 121,809 7,944 6.5% 102,190 92,408 0.054186243 $1,778,526 $1,599,955 $178,571 11.16%|
22 CareerSource Broward 141,372 9,223 6.5% 142,220 128,539 0.069556090 $2,283,002 $2,317,274 ($34,272) -1.48%
23 CareerSource South Florida 27,803 1,848 6.6% 257,190 239,808 0.146669398 * $4,814,051 $4,924,381 ($110,330) -2.24%)
24 CareerSource Southwest Floridd 171,618 11,239 6.5% 103,255 94,203 0.066566424 * $2,184,874 $2,618,898 ($434,024) -16.57%
26 Crown/North Central Florida 43,261 2,843 6.6%) 47,530 44,981 0.022906149 $751,836 $642,482 $109,354 17.02%)
27 Flager Volusia/Brevard 117,991 7,684 6.5%) 91,745 83,847 0.050520858 $1,658,219 $1,455,469 $202,750 -20.02%
28 Pinellas/Tampa Bay 159,910 10,394 6.5% 189,255 172,314 0.086643253 $2,843,845 $2,852,672 ($8,827) -0.31%]

STATEWIDE TOTALS 2,072,743 135,225 1,732,870 1,594,628 1.000000000 $32,822,465 $30,709,812 $2,112,653 6.88%)

10




Program Year 2025 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
Youth Program Local Workforce Development Board Formula Allocations

AREA OF SUBSTANTIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ECONOMICALLY PY2025 PY2024
Unemployed DISADVANTAGED LWDB HH FINAL FINAL
LOCAL WORKFORCE LABOR
DEVELOPMENT BOARDS FORCE Total Rate Total Excess SHARE * ALLOCATION |ALLOCATION|DIFFERENCE %

1 CareerSource Escarosa 70,208 4,624 6.6%| 7,330 4,264 0.031209336 $956,363 $772,666 $183,697 | 23.77%
2 CareerSource Okaloosa Walton 14,906 1,004 6.7% 3,025 1,257 0.008871110 $271,842 $231,624 $40,218 | 17.36%
3 CareerSource Chipola 11,888 770 6.5%| 2,035 1,502 0.007769171 $238,074 $172,998 $65,076 | 37.62%
4 CareerSource Gulf Coast 9,258 606 6.5%| 2,480 1,228 0.008162782 * $250,136 $266,912 ($16,776)| -6.29%
5 CareerSource Capital Region 68,009 4,392 6.5%| 14,630 12,075 0.055369953 $1,696,728 $1,665,818 $30,910 1.86%)
6 CareerSource North Florida 17,158 1,113 6.5% 1,645 1,120 0.007580455 $232,291 $215,822 $16,469 7.63%
8 CareerSource Northeast Florida 232,761 15,271 6.6%| 19,670 8,680 0.085870469 $2,631,370 $2,120,385 $510,985 [ 24.10%
10 CareerSource Citrus Levy Marion 93,847 6,100 6.5%| 6,310 3,563 0.033027050 $1,012,064 $1,133,185 ($121,121)| -10.69%)
12 CareerSource Central Florida 283,670 18,521 6.5%| 31,445 12,420 0.126507230 * $3,876,622 $3,922,791 ($46,169)| -1.18%
16 CareerSource Pasco Hernando 134,074 8,699 6.5% 5,860 1,527 0.035735915 $1,095,073 $899,517 $195,556 | 21.74%)
17 CareerSource Polk 133,150 8,593 6.5% 9,125 4,785 0.045937246 $1,407,677 $1,236,508 $171,169 | 13.84%
18 CareerSource Suncoast 85,678 5,584 6.5%| 5,535 548 0.023472199 $719,270 $641,488 $77,782 | 12.13%
19 CareerSource Heartland 28,198 1,841 6.5%| 4,190 3,211 0.017129305 $524,901 $529,234 ($4,333)[ -0.82%
20 CareerSource Research Coast 106,174 6,932 6.5%| 5,690 1,833 0.030989637 $949,630 $684,655 $264,975 | 38.70%)
21 CareerSource Palm Beach County)| 121,809 7,944 6.5%| 15,445 5,663 0.051712433 $1,584,649 $1,502,370 $82,279 5.48%
22 CareerSource Broward 141,372 9,223 6.5%| 18,510 4,829 0.061664910 * $1,889,627 $2,021,353 ($131,726)| -6.52%
23 CareerSource South Florida 27,803 1,848 6.6%| 30,670 13,288 0.135230190 * $4,143,922 $4,451,117 ($307,195)| -6.90%
24 CareerSource Southwest Florida 171,618 11,239 6.5%| 13,760 4,708 0.060583190 * $1,856,480 $2,351,767 ($495,287)| -21.06%
26 Crown/North Central Florida 43,261 2,843 6.6%| 13,305 10,756 0.046414495 $1,422,302 $1,314,529 $107,773 8.20%)
27 Flager Volusia/Brevard 117,991 7,684 6.5%| 11,625 3,727 0.042910282 $1,314,920 $1,209,096 $105,824 8.75%)
28 Pinellas/Tampa Bay 159,910 10,394 6.5%| 27,705 10,764 0.083852642 * $2,569,537 $2,679,074 ($109,537)| -4.09%

STATEWIDE TOTALS 2,072,743 135,225 249,990 111,748 1.000000000 30,643,478 30,022,909 620,569 2.07%

11




Program Year 2025 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
Dislocated Worker Program Local Workforce Development Board

Formula Allocations

20% 25% 25% 30% HH PY2025 PY2024
LOCAL WORKFORCE uc uc MASS  LONG-TERM FINAL FINAL
DEVELOPMENT BOARDS CLAIMANTS CONCENTRATION LAYOFF UNEMPLOYED|LWDB SHARE * ALLOCATION|ALLOCATION|DIFFERENCE %

1 CareerSource Escarosa 509 8,508 5,438 37| 0.018856682 $421,897 $455,577 ($33,680)| -7.39%
2 CareerSource Okaloosa Walton 220 4,434 2,628 13| 0.008379932 $187,491 $201,955 ($14,464)] -7.16%
3 CareerSource Chipola 90 1,655 882 9| 0.003761442 $84,158 $88,375 ($4,217)| -4.77%
4 CareerSource Gulf Coast 228 3,441 2,995 16 [ 0.011143803 * $249,330 $293,523 ($44,193)] -15.06%
5 CareerSource Capital Region 378 7,221 4,960 24 | 0.015210389 * $340,315 $391,395 ($51,080)] -13.05%
6 CareerSource North Florida 120 1,633 1,319 5| 0.003639421 $81,428 $100,142 ($18,714)] -18.69%
8 CareerSource Northeast Florida 2,490 30,774 27,060 150 | 0.080637906 $1,804,181 $2,050,616 ($246,435)| -12.02%
10 CareerSource Citrus Levy Marion 733 10,115 7,543 43 | 0.023928369 $535,370 $578,637 ($43,267)| -7.48%
12 CareerSource Central Florida 4,242 52,322 47,603 263 | 0.139615882 $3,123,746 | $3,431,492 ($307,746)| -8.97%
16 CareerSource Pasco Hernando 1,166 14,568 12,544 75| 0.038519486 $861,830 $853,969 $7,861 0.92%
17 CareerSource Polk 1,343 15,048 14,644 84| 0.043012373 $962,353 | $1,010,927 ($48,574)] -4.80%
18 CareerSource Suncoast 846 14,186 10,592 55| 0.031511305 $705,030 $723,695 ($18,665)] -2.58%
19 CareerSource Heartland 223 3,348 2,338 15| 0.007791891 $174,335 $193,445 ($19,110)] -9.88%
20 CareerSource Research Coast 918 11,924 8,811 59| 0.029817561 $667,134 $747,777 ($80,643)] -10.78%
21 CareerSource Palm Beach County 1,855 25,975 19,766 130 [ 0.064649927 $1,446,468 $1,678,658 ($232,190)| -13.83%
22 CareerSource Broward 2,935 34,373 31,143 177 | 0.093281901 $2,087,076 $2,385,653 ($298,577)| -12.52%
23 CareerSource South Florida 3,551 34,550 36,237 231 | 0.124402047 * $2,783,354 | $3,388,958 ($605,604)| -17.87%
24 CareerSource Southwest Florida 1,458 24,921 16,335 83| 0.058847380 * $1,316,643 | $1,533,734 ($217,091)| -14.15%
26 Crown/North Central Florida 372 7,588 5,561 21| 0.016103709 * $360,302 $414,380 ($54,078)] -13.05%
27 Flager Volusia/Brevard 1,706 23,166 18,515 110 | 0.057728481 $1,291,609 $1,432,632 ($141,023)] -9.84%
28 Pinellas/Tampa Bay 3,803 44,298 47,691 248 | 0.129160115 $2,889,810 $2,908,719 ($18,909)] -0.65%

STATEWIDE TOTALS 29,184 374,048 324,605 1,848 | 1.000000000 $22,373,860 | $24,864,259 | ($2,490,399)] -10.02%

12




Program Year 2025 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

Supplemental Dislocated Worker Program Local Workforce Development Board

Formula Allocations

20% 25% 25% 30% PY2025 PY2025
FINAL
FINAL ALLOCATION
LOCAL WORKFORCE uc uc MASS LONG-TERM ALLOCATION | SUPPLEMENTAL
DEVELOPMENT BOARDS CLAIMANTS CONCENTRATION LAYOFF UNEMPLOYED LWDB SHARE DLW DLW TOTAL

1 CareerSource Escarosa 509 8,508 5,438 37 0.018856682 $421,897 $76,793 $498,690
2 CareerSource Okaloosa Walton 220 4,434 2,628 13 0.008379932 $187,491 $34,127 $221,618
3 CareerSource Chipola 90 1,655 882 9 0.003761442 $84,158 $15,318 $99,476
4 CareerSource Gulf Coast 228 3,441 2,995 16 0.011143803 $249,330 $45,382 $294,712
5 CareerSource Capital Region 378 7,221 4,960 24 0.015210389 $340,315 $61,943 $402,258
6 CareerSource North Florida 120 1,633 1,319 5 0.003639421 $81,428 $14,821 $96,249
8 CareerSource Northeast Florida 2,490 30,774 27,060 150 0.080637906 $1,804,181 $328,393 $2,132,574
10 CareerSource Citrus Levy Marion 733 10,115 7,543 43 0.023928369 $535,370 $97,447 $632,817
12 CareerSource Central Florida 4,242 52,322 47,603 263 0.139615882 $3,123,746 $568,578 $3,692,324
16 CareerSource Pasco Hernando 1,166 14,568 12,544 75 0.038519486 $861,830 $156,868 $1,018,698
17 CareerSource Polk 1,343 15,048 14,644 84 0.043012373 $962,353 $175,165 $1,137,518
18 CareerSource Suncoast 846 14,186 10,592 55 0.031511305 $705,030 $128,328 $833,358
19 CareerSource Heartland 223 3,348 2,338 15 0.007791891 $174,335 $31,732 $206,067
20 CareerSource Research Coast 918 11,924 8,811 59 0.029817561 $667,134 $121,430 $788,564
21 CareerSource Palm Beach County 1,855 25,975 19,766 130 0.064649927 $1,446,468 $263,283 $1,709,751
22 CareerSource Broward 2,935 34,373 31,143 177 0.093281901 $2,087,076 $379,885 $2,466,961
23 CareerSource South Florida 3,551 34,550 36,237 231 0.124402047 $2,783,354 $506,621 $3,289,975
24 CareerSource Southwest Florida 1,458 24,921 16,335 83 0.058847380 $1,316,643 $239,652 $1,556,295
26 Crown/North Central Florida 372 7,588 5,561 21 0.016103709 $360,302 $65,581 $425,883
27 Flager Volusia/Brevard 1,706 23,166 18,515 110 0.057728481 $1,291,609 $235,096 $1,526,705
28 Pinellas/Tampa Bay 3,803 44,298 47,691 248 0.129160115 $2,889,810 $525,998 $3,415,808

STATEWIDE TOTALS 29,184 374,048 324,605 1,848 1.0000000000] $22,373,860 $4,072,441 | $26,446,301

13




Action Item 1,
Continued

TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE FOR NEEDY FAMILIES (TANF)

STATE APPROPRIATIONS, FISCAL YEAR 2025/26 — $57,786,605 (Prior Year FY 2024/25 —
$57,786,605, 0%)

BASIC PURPOSE AND ELIGIBILITY: TANF serves low-income families with children, including two-
parent families. The TANF program strongly emphasizes a “Work First” philosophy that combines
added assistance in obtaining needed training, starting work, and receiving childcare; transportation
and transitional supports to retain employment, advance, and become self-sufficient; and time limits
and sanctions as needed.

SPECIFIC MANDATES/LIMITATIONS: Eligibility limits for receiving Temporary Cash Assistance
(TCA) benefits include having a gross income equal to or less than 185% of the federal poverty level
and limited assets. Services/programs that assist families in avoiding welfare dependency by gaining
and retaining employment are available in the form of one-time payments, job placement assistance
and transitional work support services, and can be more broadly extended to “needy families” (set
at 200% of the poverty level in Florida). Also, there are other diversion programs designed to reduce
and/or prevent welfare dependency, such as teen pregnancy prevention programs, programs that
enable the formation and maintenance of two-parent families, and post-employment career
advancement and job retention programs. Florida is required to provide matching state general
revenue funds to satisfy the federal “maintenance of effort.” TANF funds may not be used for
medical expenses, undocumented immigrants, or convicted felons. TANF funds which are unspent at
the local level within specified time limits are restricted to “benefits only” and can no longer be used for
other purposes including workforce and support services.

DISTRIBUTION MECHANISMS: TANF funds are provided to the state by federal block grants with
some special supplements provided to Florida and other states. There are no federally established
formulas for sub-state distribution of TANF funds, noting that TANF administration in most states is
state or county-based, with no decentralized governance/delivery structures similar to Florida’'s
local workforce development boards. The Florida Legislature defines and approves the yearly
appropriation of TANF funds to the Department of Commerce and the CareerSource Florida Board to
address both state and local needs which are further administered, allocated, and directed by the
state board.

Since the state workforce board’s inception in July 2000, the CareerSource Florida Board has
transitioned the historical TANF allocation formula (based only on the cash assistance caseload) to a
50/50 allocation formula — 50% of the available funds are allocated to local workforce development
boards based upon their share of the number of children within households receiving Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) benefits, and the remaining 50% based upon cash assistance
caseload or TANF households with an adult member. The data on numbers of children receiving SNAP
benefits and the TANF cash assistance caseload are available from the Department of Children and
Families.

14




In calculating the FY2025/26 distributions, the State Board applied a 90% “hold harmless” provision to
ensure that no local board would face an inordinate shift or reduction of funds from the prior fiscal
year due to shifts in data used in the funding methodology. This is the same hold harmless provision
required under the WIOA Adult, Youth and Dislocated Worker programs, which calculates a two-year
average percentage for each local board and assures they will not receive less than 90% of that
average.

SPECIFIC FUND DISTRIBUTIONS FOR FY 2025/26: It is anticipated that a total of $57,786,605 in
TANF funds will be appropriated by the 2025 Legislature. This amount includes $3,855,698 for program
and administrative support provided by the Department of Commerce and the CareerSource Florida
Board. This funding also includes a specific appropriation of $690,000 for the Non-Custodial Parent
Employment Program for Pinellas, Pasco, Hernando, and Hillsborough counties, and $726,000 for
Miami-Dade County to be administered by CareerSource Pasco Hernando. After deducting program
and administrative support, and the $1,416,000 for the Non-Custodial Parent Employment Program,
the remaining amount available for local allocations is $52,514,907, which is level funded with the prior
year.

FY 2025/26
FloridaCommerce and CSF Administration $ 3,855,698

Non-Custodial Parent Program 1,416,000
Local Allocations 52,514,907
Total $57,786,605
Using these amounts and assuming no additional changes in the allocation methodology, the total

amounts by local board are reflected on the attached chart titled “Fiscal Year 2025-26 Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families Local Workforce Development Board Formula Allocations.”

FOR CONSIDERATION

Approval of the allocation methodology as proposed for the distribution of TANF funding for
Fiscal Year 2025/26.

15




FLORIDA FUNDING FOR
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)

State Appropriations from TANF Block Grant
FY 25-26 $57,786,605
(FY 24-25 $57,786,605) (0% change)

-

o

~

State Level Program Management
and Administration
FY 25-26 $3,855,698
FY 24-25 $3,855,698

J

A 4

/Local Workforce Development Board\
Allocation and Proviso

FY 25-26 $53,930,907

FY 24-25 $53,930,907

LWDB Formula Allocations $52,514,907

\Non-CustodiaI Parent Program $1,416,000/

16




Program Year 2025 Welfare Transition Program
Local Workforce Development Board Formula Allocations

50%
LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT WELFARE FY 2025/26 FINAL | FY 2024/25 FINAL
BOARDS 50% SNAP CASELOAD [ LWDB SHARE HH* ALLOCATION ALLOCATION DIFFERENCE %

1 CareerSource Escarosa 155,431 2,096 0.020342112 * $1,068,264 $1,162,864 ($94,600) -8.14%|
2 CareerSource Okaloosa Walton 65,665 762 0.007189704 * $377,567 $409,319 ($31,752) -1.76%)
3 CareerSource Chipola 45,783 661 0.005454885 * $286,463 $316,090 ($29,627) 9.37%
4 CareerSource Gulf Coast 72,849 1,355 0.007928888 $416,385 $424,051 ($7,666) 1.81%
5 CareerSource Capital Region 122,730 1,530 0.015343096 * $805,741 $879,205 ($73,464) -8.36%)
6 CareerSource North Florida 45,322 759 0.005457456 * $286,598 $313,637 ($27,039) -8.62%)
8 CareerSource Northeast Florida 521,807 10,731 0.069968070 * $3,674,367 $3,985,113 ($310,746) -7.80%
10 CareerSource Citrus Levy Marion 216,625 3,838 0.026027220 * $1,366,817 $1,489,731 ($122,914) -8.25%)
12 CareerSource Central Florida 912,024 21,566 0.109323555 $5,741,116 $6,187,824 ($446,708) -7.22%)
16 CareerSource Pasco Hernando 217,541 4,857 0.029672633 * $1,558,256 $1,678,635 ($120,379) -1.17%|
17 CareerSource Polk 372,041 7,494 0.041747497 $2,192,366 $2,191,046 $1,320 0.06%
18 CareerSource Suncoast 156,790 4,601 0.020747140 $1,089,534 $1,131,951 ($42,417) -3.75%
19 CareerSource Heartland 90,393 1,581 0.012315232 * $646,733 $701,599 ($54,866) -7.82%
20 CareerSource Research Coast 188,093 3,225 0.019874166 $1,043,690 $963,229 $80,461 8.35%
21 CareerSource Palm Beach County 433,781 9,612 0.050586535 $2,656,547 $2,408,881 $247,666 10.28%)
22 CareerSource Broward 598,920 11,752 0.066524124 $3,493,508 $3,482,799 $10,709 0.31%)
23 CareerSource South Florida - Dade 1,176,959 83,203 0.262104582 $13,764,398 $12,869,712 $894,686 6.95%)
24 CareerSource Southwest Florida 381,566 15,691 0.060312619 $3,167,312 $2,676,002 $491,310 18.36%
26 CareerSource No Central Fla Crown 128,016 2,101 0.019899333 * $1,045,010 $1,150,718 ($105,708) -9.19%
27 CareerSource Flagler Volusia Brevard 333,248 6,322 0.045528759 * $2,390,939 $2,595,229 ($204,290) -7.87%
28 CareerSource Pinellas Tampa Bay 747,245 24,112 0.103652394 $5,443,296 $5,497,272 ($53,976) -0.98%

STATEWIDE TOTALS 6,982,829 217,849 1.000000000 $52,514,907 $52,514,907 $0 0.00%

*Indicates 90% Hold Harmless in Effect

Note: The Social Services Estimating Conference (2/4/2025) noted, as expected, the caseloads for the Families with Adult and Unemployed Parent
programs persisted throughout much of FY 2023-24, but not to the degree originally expected by the Conference. Largely, this was result of
fluctuating increases in non-citizen applicant activity. This historically high activity is unwinding faster than expected in the Unemployment Parent
program but not as strongly in the Families with Adult program. The Conference believes the elevated level will continue in the Families with Adult
program through FY 2025-26, before a more aggressive decline takes hold. For the Unemployed Parent program, the near-term decline has been
deepened. Relative to the prior forecast, the revised assumptions result in upward revisions to the Families with Adult program and downward

revisions to the Unemployed Parent program.

17




Action Item 1, Continued

WAGNER-PEYSER (WP)

FEDERAL PROGRAM YEAR 2025 for Fiscal Year 2025/26 — $38,374,546 (Prior Year
2024/25 $38,458,248; -.0.22%)

Statutory Reference: Wagner-Peyser Act of 1933, 48 Stat.113 as amended;
Workforce Investment Act of 1998; Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act of 2014.

Grantor Agency: USDOL

Grant Program Obijectives: To place persons in employment by providing a variety of

placement-related services without charge to job seekers and
to employers seeking qualified individuals to fill job openings.

Description of the Grant Program:

The Wagner-Peyser Act of 1933 established a nationwide system of public employment offices
known as the Employment Service. The Wagner-Peyser Act was amended by the Workforce
Investment Act of 1998 and the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014, making the
Employment Service part of the one-stop delivery system. Employment services are an integral
part of the one-stop delivery system that provides an integrated array of high-quality services so
that workers, job seekers, and businesses can find the services they need under one roof in easy-
to-reach locations. Employment services are services related to a labor exchange system
including job search assistance, referral and placement assistance to job seekers, reemployment
services to unemployment insurance claimants, and recruitment services to employers with job
openings. Services may be delivered through self-service, facilitated self-help services, and staff-
assisted services. Core services, such as assessments of skill levels, abilities, and aptitudes;
career guidance when appropriate; job search workshops; and referral to training as appropriate
may also be available. The services offered to employers, in addition to referral of job seekers to
job openings, include matching job requirements with job seeker experience, skills, and other
attributes; helping with special recruitment needs; helping employers analyze hard-to-fill job
orders; assisting with job restructuring; and helping employers address layoffs.

Description of Process Used to Allocate Available Grant Funds:

Wagner-Peyser 7(a) Funds — The PY2025 funding allotments to the states, published in
Federal Register/Vol. 90, No.95, are reflected in this document. As shown on the Florida
Funding for Wagner-Peyser chart, approximately 84% ($32,172,443) of the new year funding
is available to support one-stop program services at the local level. In addition, $6,481,193 from
prior year carryover funding will be used to provide additional local level support and to fund
state level administration of the Wagner-Peyser program. State level program support includes
maintenance of the current workforce information technology system (Employ Florida) and the
development of a modernized and enhanced workforce information system. Development of a
new system will ensure that Florida's workforce development programs are efficient, responsive,

18




and integrated, providing Floridians with improved access to services through interoperable
systems and shared data.

The allocation of Wagner-Peyser funding to local boards is based on the federal formula used to
distribute grant funds among the states. The formula is:

e 2/3 based on the relative share of the state’s civilian labor force (based on an annualized
average)

o 1/3 based on the relative share of the state’s number of unemployed individuals (based
on an annualized average)

Total PY 2025 WP 7(a) $34,537,091
Projected FloridaCommerce Carryover 6,481,193
Total WP 7(a) Available Funding $41,018,284
LWDB Salaries and Pass-Through (27,676,852)
Workforce Information Technology System - (4,500,000)
Development
Workforce Information Technology System - (4,128,705)
Current System Maintenance
LWDB Supplemental WPA (500,000)
CRM Licenses (500,000)
LWDB Insurance and HR Fees (366,886)
Remaining for State-Level Administration $3,345,841

Wagner-Peyser 7(b) Funds — Section 7(b) of the Wagner-Peyser Act reserves 10% (or
$3,837,455 of the available grant funds allocated to Florida ($3,837,455) for use by the Governor
for state-level activities including outreach, special projects, and performance incentives. The
remaining grant funds are available for additional eligible activities.

Total PY 2025 WP 7(b) $3,837,455
Plus Est. Bal. of Unreserved W-P 7(b) Funds 1,312,545
Total WP 7(b) Funds Available $5,150,000

The following recommendations are presented to the State Board for the establishment of
commitments for FY 2025/26.

reer rce Florida Network Navi r Position 4.1

Navigator positions are a critical component of the CareerSource Florida network’s enhanced
case management and business services strategy under WIOA. These professionals provide
tailored guidance, support, and resources to individuals and businesses, helping to remove
barriers and create pathways to employment and career advancement.

19




Apprenticeship Navigators focus on expanding apprenticeship opportunities statewide by
assisting businesses in establishing registered programs and educating individuals on
apprenticeship career paths. In FY 23/24, 43 new apprenticeship programs were registered,
bringing the total to 397 with 22,444 apprentices and pre-apprentices.

Hope Florida Navigators coordinate closely with local Department of Children and Families (DCF)
offices to support participants through referral and joint case management, foster employer
engagement, and ensure access to specialized services such as job readiness, life skills, and
career exploration. Together, these navigator roles are instrumental in connecting Floridians to
sustainable employment opportunities and supporting businesses in meeting their workforce
needs.

The Military Family Employment Advocacy Program (MFEAP), funded through Wagner-Peyser
7(b) since FY 2008/09, places dedicated advocates at career centers and military base support
centers in high-density military areas to help active-duty military spouses and dependents find
and retain employment. Approximately 60% of Florida’s 44,000 military spouses live in the regions
served by this program.

Veterans Specialist Salary Supplement ($1,000,000)

The State of Florida exemplifies its steadfast commitment to veterans by allocating funds for
approximately 100 Veteran Navigators through the Jobs for Veterans State Grants (JVSG)
program. The individuals in these positions provide valuable services to veterans, helping them
navigate the complexities of civilian transition, job searching and career development. To
ensure these navigators are adequately compensated and to help retain skilled individuals in
these crucial roles, a salary supplement is being allocated to provide a cost-of-living wage
increase.

Wagner-Peyser 7(b) Funding Summary
Total 2025/26 WP 7(b) Funds Available $5,150,000

Less Proposed Discretionary Board Allocations:

CSF Network Navigator Positions (4,150,000)
Veterans Specialist Salary Supplement (1,000,000)
Balance Remaining $0

FOR CONSIDERATION

Approval of the Program Year 2025/26 Wagner-Peyser 7(b) projects.

20




FLORIDA FUNDING FOR WAGNER-PEYSER

Funding from USDOL - Program Year 2025
PY 2025 - $38,374,546
(PY 2024 - $38,458,248)

Wagner-Peyser 7(a) (90%)
FY 2025-26 $34,537,091
(FY 2024-25 $34,612,423)

v

Wagner-Peyser 7(b) (10%)
FY 2025-26 $3,837,455
(FY 2024-25 $3,845,825)

State -Level Projects; Incentives;
Exemplary Models; Services to
Groups with Special Needs

State-Level Program Management
and Administration
FY 2025-26 $2,364,648
(FY 2024-25 $2,439,980)

e

(S

LWDB Salaries and Pass -Thru $ 27,676,852
Labor Exchange System $ 4,128,705
LWDB Insurance and HR Fees $ 366,886

LWDB Direct Services \
FY 2025-26 $32,172,443
(FY 2024-25 $ 32,172,443)

21




Program Year 2025 Wagner-Peyser Act
Local Workforce Development Board Formula Allocations

213 13
CIVILIAN PY 2025 PY 2024
LOCAL WORKFORCE LABOR UNEMPLOYED LWDB FINAL FINAL
DEVELOPMENT BOARDS FORCE INDIVIDUALS SHARE ALLOCATION|ALLOCATION | DIFFERENCE %

1 CareerSource Escarosa 240,265 8,508 0.021940626 $607,247 $604,969 $2,278 0.38%
2 CareerSource Okaloosa Walton 143,030 4,434 0.012499120 $345,936 $335,230 $10,706 | 3.19%
3 CareerSource Chipola 43,098 1,655 0.004050477 $112,104 $109,338 $2,766 | 2.53%
4 CareerSource Gulf Coast 103,788 3,441 0.009269027 $256,537 $276,095 ($19,558)| -7.08%
5 CareerSource Capital Region 208,204 7,221 0.018877686 $522 475 $506,210 $16,265 3.21%
6 CareerSource North Florida 36,982 1,633 0.003665367 $101,446 $109,228 ($7,782)| -7.12%
8 CareerSource Northeast Florida 885,137 30,774 0.080321825 $2,223,055 $2,181,242 $41,813 1.92%
10 CareerSource Citrus Levy Marion 231,805 10,115 0.022867120 $632,890 $595,619 $37,271 6.26%
12 CareerSource Central Florida 1,568,722 52,322 0.140376742 $3,885,186 $3,755,881 $129,305 | 3.44%
16 CareerSource Pasco Hernando 388,054 14,568 0.036173165 $1,001,159 $899,592 $101,567 | 11.29%
17 CareerSource Polk 358,388 15,048 0.034828019 $963,930 $920,614 $43,316 | 4.71%
18 CareerSource Suncoast 399,107 14,186 0.036493295 $1,010,020 $987,452 $22,568 2.29%
19 CareerSource Heartland 75,306 3,348 0.007484010 $207,134 $214,581 ($7,447)| -3.47%
20 CareerSource Research Coast 308,308 11,924 0.029051183 $804,045 $794,094 $9,951 1.25%
21 CareerSource Palm Beach County 778,249 25,975 0.069657352 $1,927,896 $1,939,049 ($11,153)| -0.58%
22 CareerSource Broward 1,086,091 34,373 0.095538486 $2,644,205 $2,662,295 ($18,090)| -0.68%
23 CareerSource South Florida 1,445,342 34,550 0.117165770 $3,242,780 $3,562,825 ($320,045)| -8.98%
24 CareerSource Southwest Florida 714,312 24921 0.064897077 $1,796,147 $1,809,528 ($13,381) -0.74%
26 Crown/North Central Florida 199,024 7,588 0.018656123 $516,343 $513,007 $3,336 | 0.65%
27 Flager Volusia/Brevard 628,050 23,166 0.058177919 $1,610,182 $1,593,082 $17,100 1.07%
28 Pinellas/Tampa Bay 1,314,103 44,298 0.118009610 $3,266,135 $3,306,921 ($40,786)| -1.23%

STATEWIDE TOTALS 11,155,365 374,048 1.000000000 $27,676,852 | $27,676,852 $0 | 0.00%

22




Action Item 1,
Continued

Consolidated Action Item 1 — Fiscal Year 2025-2026 CareerSource Florida Network Funding
FOR CONSIDERATION

1. Approval to establish the Program Year 2025 WIOA state-level projects.

2. Approval of the allocation methodology as proposed for the distribution of TANF funding

for Fiscal Year 2025/26.

3. Approval of the Program Year 2025 Wagner-Peyser 7(b) state-level activities.

23




CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025
Action Item 2
Approved
Disapproved

Action Item 2

REVISIONS TO CAREERSOURCE FLORIDA POLICY G1:
STATE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The primary responsibilities of the State Workforce Development Board (SWDB) are set
forth in s. 445.004(6)(a)-(i), F.S., 20 CFR 679.100 and 679.130. The SWDB is
responsible for assisting the state in aligning and enhancing the capacity and
performance of the workforce development system and achieving the state’s strategic
and operational vision and goals as outlined in the state’s approved WIOA Plan.

CareerSource Florida Policy G1 — State Workforce Development Board Roles and
Responsibilities (formerly Strategic Policy 2020.06.04.A.2) (2021) defined the SWDB'’s
roles in Florida's workforce development system, ensuring alignment with strategic
partners in investment, education, and economic development under federal and state
guidelines. This policy is revised to better align with WIOA, the Code of Federal
Regulations, and Florida Law. Revisions to the policy include clarifying the SWDB'’s role
in the CareerSource Florida network comprised of the SWDB, the Florida Department of
Commerce (FloridaCommerce), Florida’s local workforce development boards
(LWDBSs), chief local elected officials, and local career centers.

The revised State Workforce Development Board Roles and Responsibilities Policy
describes how the SWDB fulfills the following critical roles:

1. Communicate the Vision and goals for the state’s workforce development
system through its work on the State’s WIOA plan, workforce policies, technical
assistance, and strategic investments.

2. Keep Florida’s Workforce System Accountable through its focus on data-
driven decision making and partnership in workforce monitoring and
accountability efforts.

3. Leverage Strategic Partnerships to cultivate local, regional, and state capacity
building that increases economic opportunity.

The policy describes the role of SWDB leadership, the Credentials Review Committee
(created pursuant to Section 445.004(4), F.S.), and the Florida Workforce Training
Institute. This policy specifies what policies, contract templates, plans, and other items
the SWDB must review, approve, or consider.



http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130

FOR CONSIDERATION

e Approve revisions to CareerSource Florida Policy G1: State Workforce
Development Board Roles and Responsibilities.

Attachments:

e State Workforce Development Board Roles and Responsibilities Policy
Development Tracker




CareerSource

V’FLORIDA

G1

Workforce Policy

State Workforce Development Board Roles and
Title: | Responsibilities

Type: Governance

Effective: 06/04/2020

Revised: 05/21/2025

.  PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The state workforce development board (SWDB), known as the CareerSource Florida Board
of Directors, is established pursuant to Public Law 113-128, the Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act (WIOA), Title |, Section 101 and section 445.004, Florida Statutes (F.S.).
Charged with assisting the Governor with state workforce policy and investments, the SWDB
establishes and directs the vision for the state workforce system, known as the CareerSource
Florida network, to align with strategic partners within workforce investment, education, and
economic development systems. The SWDB has all the powers and authority not explicitly
prohibited by statute which are necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate its
purposes, as determined by state and federal law and the Governor, as well as its functions,
duties, and responsibilities.

The CareerSource Florida network comprises the SWDB, CareerSource, Inc. (CareerSource
Florida), the Florida Department of Commerce (FloridaCommerce), Florida’s local workforce
development boards (LWDBs), chief local elected officials, and local career centers.
FloridaCommerce serves as the administrative entity for state workforce programs in
accordance with s. 20.60 and Chapter 445, F.S. CareerSource Florida works at the direction
of the SWDB in consultation with FloridaCommerce as required by Chapter 445, F.S. This
policy delineates the roles and responsibilities of the SWDB within the CareerSource Florida
network, including consultation among the entities as set forth in law.

II. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
Roles of the SWDB

The SWDB, consistent with 20 CFR 679.100, is responsible for assisting the state in aligning
and enhancing the capacity and performance of the workforce development system and
achieving the state’s strategic and operational vision and goals as outlined in the State’s

Page 1 of 6



http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445ContentsIndex.html
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.100

approved WIOA Plan. Consistent with state and federal laws, the SWDB fulfills the following
critical roles:

1. Communicate the Vision and goals for the state’s workforce development system
through its work on the State’s WIOA plan, workforce policies, technical assistance,
and strategic investments.

2. Keep Florida’s Workforce System Accountable through its focus on data-driven
decision making and partnership in workforce monitoring and accountability efforts.

3. Leverage Strategic Partnerships to cultivate local, regional, and state capacity
building that increases economic opportunity.

Primary Responsibilities of the State Workforce Development Board
The primary responsibilities of the SWDB are set forth in s. 445.004(6)(a)-(i), F.S., 20 CFR
679.100 and 679.130. The SWDB focuses on these responsibilities within its critical roles to
effectively lead the vision and strategies of the state’s workforce system.

1. Communicate the Vision.
Core duties associated with this role include the following:

WIOA State Plan: As directed in s. 445.003(2), Florida Statutes, the SWDB develops,
implements, and modifies the WIOA State Plan, consistent with the requirements of WIOA.
As described in the WIOA State Plan, Section IV, Coordination with State Plan Programs,
CareerSource Florida convenes meetings of core, required one-stop partner programs and
other partners on behalf of the SWDB.

Policies, Templates, and Technical Assistance: The SWDB, develops, reviews, and
revises workforce policies that provide policy directions to the LWDBs. On behalf of the
SWDB, CareerSource Florida will also collaborate with FloridaCommerce in the production
and review of technical assistance on the operation of federal programs and the expenditure
of federal funds by the SWDB or any LWDB.

The SWDB, as the principal workforce policy organization of the state, is responsible for all
policy directions to LWDBs. Consistent with s. 20.60, F.S., FloridaCommerce, Division of
Workforce Services, is responsible for administering plans and policies of the SWDB.

All workforce policies that impact the strategies, operations, or funding of the SWDB, local
workforce development boards, and local workforce development regions are reviewed,
created and revised according to the SWDB’s published Policy Development Framework.
Policies are presented to the CareerSource Florida Strategic Policy and Performance Council,
which may recommend or reject policies for approval, revision, or sunset. The Workforce
Program Development unit of CareerSource Florida reports progress and makes
recommendations to the SWDB.

The CareerSource Florida Board of Directors or the CareerSource Florida Executive
Committee acting as the Board of Directors are the only entities that may approve Florida
workforce development policies, by action or consent.

Additionally, the SWDB requires the use of state established templates for contracts to ensure
all contract mechanisms follow certain standards established by the SWDB.

Page 2 of 6


http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.003&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.003.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0000-0099/0020/Sections/0020.60.html

Strategic Investments: At the Governor’s direction, the SWDB allocates discretionary funds to
supportinitiatives, including training grants and set-aside, otherwise known as the Governor’s
Reserve Funds. These initiatives support the workforce system of the state, build on
evidence-based practices to serve job seekers facing barriers to employment, meet the needs
of Florida's businesses, and promote strategic and cross-sector partnerships. CareerSource
Florida reports progress and makes recommendations to the SWDB.

Workforce and Economic Conditions: Analyze economic trends, projections, and
comparisons that may impact workforce system strategies.

2. Keep Florida’s Workforce System Accountable.
Core duties associated with this role include the following:

Ethics: As set forth in the CareerSource Florida Board of Directors Conflict of Interest
Disclosure Policy, members of the SWDB are subject to the Code of Ethics for Public Officers
and Employees, adopted by the Florida Legislature as Chapter 112, Part I, Florida Statutes.

Florida Workforce Network Performance: The SWDB monitors and reviews LWDB local
and regional plans and performance. This includes evaluating trends in LWDB letter grades
published on the CareerSource Florida Analytics web page, required federal and state
indicators, as well as any other indicators identified by the SWDB, to ensure workforce system
accountability.

As part of their responsibility to monitor the network performance of the workforce system,
CareerSource Florida and FloridaCommerce jointly review LWDB waiver requests associated
with federal and state requirements and presents recommendations to the SWDB related to
these requests.

Finance and Programmatic Evaluation: Establish financial and budget priorities, monitor
and review resulting findings and trends. CareerSource Florida, on behalf of the SWDB also
assists in the monitoring of the use of discretionary funds to support strategic initiatives,
including training grants and set-aside initiatives, as described above. FloridaCommerce, as
the administrative entity for WIOA Title | funds, provides fiscal and programmatic guidance to
the SWDB, CareerSource Florida, and all LWDBs to hold both the state and LWDBs strictly
accountable for adherence to policies and subject to regular and periodic monitoring by
FloridaCommerce.

Workforce Technology and Infrastructure Support: The SWDB develops strategies and
provides resources for projects designed to leverage technology, designated information
systems, and innovation to strengthen effective and efficient service delivery.

3. Leverage Strategic Partnerships.
Core duties associated with this role include the following:

Strategic Outreach and Education: The SWDB designs and implements strategies to assist
Floridians in all phases of career development, target underserved populations, employers in
targeted industry sectors, small businesses, industry associations, education partners, and
other stakeholders in connecting with employment, training, and support services available
through the CareerSource Florida network.

Strategic Training: Training priorities for the CareerSource Florida Network are established
Page 3 of 6


https://analytics.careersourceflorida.com/

by the SWDB for SWDB members, local elected officials, LWDBs, strategic partners and
CareerSource Florida team members. Additionally, CareerSource Florida, on behalf of the
SWDB, collaborates in the production and review of LWDB training to ensure alignment with
the strategic objectives of the SWDB.

Sharing Best Practices: The SWDB provides opportunities for the CareerSource Florida
network, strategic partners, and other experts to highlight and share best practices to increase
performance, alignment, and consistency through the workforce system.

4. Other SWDB Responsibilities
In accordance with the state and federal laws identified below, the SWDB, must review,

approve, or consider the following:

Item Authority

Workforce Policies 20 CFR 679.130;
s. 445.004, F.S.

Contract Templates s. 445.004, F.S.

WIOA plans, progress, reports, and modifications 20 CFR 679.130
(a) and (c);

20 CFR 676.143;
20 CFR 676.145

Strategies regarding staff training

20 CFR

679.130(c)(7)
Guidance regarding One-Stop Infrastructure Funding 20 CFR 678.705
Development of allocation formulas for the distribution of funds 20 CFR
for employment and training activities for adults and youth 679.130(i);
workforce investment activities s. 445.004, F.S.
Updates on state and federal performance and accountability 20 CFR
measures for LWDBs and regional planning areas 679.130(d)

Development of and revisions to uniform performance
accountability measures that apply across the core workforce
programs in collaboration with appropriate state agencies,
LWDBSs, and public and private providers

20 CFR 679.130

Updates specific to the statewide workforce and labor market
information system described in section 15(e) of the Wagner-
Peyser Act

20 CFR
679.130(k)

Waiver requests from LWDBs regarding Individual Training
Accounts

S. 45.003(3)(a)1.-
. F.S.

Identification of or adjustments to planning regions 20 CFR
679.130(c)(5)

Design or adjustments to the workforce development strategies 20 CFR

for the state 679.100(d); 20
CFR 679.130

(c)(3); s. 445.004,

F.S.

Master Credentials List

S. 445.004, F.S.

LWDB waiver requests for WIOA and Wagner Peyser
requirements

20 CFR 679.410;
20 CFR 679.610;
20 CFR 679.620

Page 4 of 6



https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-676.105
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-678.705
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/part-679/section-679.130#p-679.130(c)(5)
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/part-679/section-679.130#p-679.130(c)(5)
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html

SWDB Leadership

In accordance with s. 445.002, F.S., the SWDB is the board of directors of CareerSource
Florida, Inc. The SWDB hires the President and CEO of CareerSource Florida, who serves at
the pleasure of the Governor. The SWDB is chaired by a member designated by the Governor
and is required by law to establish an executive committee consisting of the chair and least six
additional members selected by the chair. Both the executive committee and the
President/CEQO of CareerSource have such authority as the SWDB delegates to them, except
that the SWDB may not delegate to the executive committee authority to take action that
requires approval by a majority of the entire board.

Credentials Review Committee

Pursuant to s. 445.004(4), F.S., the SWDB shall appoint a Credentials Review Committee
(CRC) to identify nondegree credentials and degree credentials of value for approval by the
SWDB and inclusion in a Master Credentials List.

The CRC acts as an advisory committee or similar group created by CareerSource Florida,
Inc. The CRC, its leadership, and CareerSource Florida do not have any direct or implied
authority to withhold or direct funds appropriated by the U.S. Congress or the Florida
Legislature for distribution by the partner entities who make up the membership of the
committee.

The CRC is governed by Florida law and a charter developed and approved by the CRC. All
information pertaining to the CRC must be made available and be easily accessible to the
public on all relevant state agency websites. The Workforce Program Development unit of
CareerSource Florida reports progress and makes recommendations to the Reimagining
Education and Career Help or REACH office within the Office of the Governor, the CRC, and
the SWDB.

Florida Workforce Training Institute

The SWDB coordinates with FloridaCommerce to ensure the system of training made
available to LWDBs and partners is aligned, measurable, clear, and designed to support and
improve the workforce system. Consistent with this and s. 445.008, F.S., the SWDB may
create the Workforce Training Institute, which shall be a comprehensive program of workforce
training courses for workforce and education professionals with information on the state
workforce system’s responsibilities under WIOA and state law.

lll. AUTHORITY

Public Law 113-128, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (2014)

20 CFR 676

20 CFR 678.705

20 CFR § 679.100, Subpart A — State Workforce Development Board

20 CFR 679.130

Section 14.36, Florida Statute

Section 20.60, Florida Statute

Page 5 of 6


http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.008&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.008.html
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/part-676
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-678.705
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2017-title20-vol4/pdf/CFR-2017-title20-vol4-part679.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2017-title20-vol4/pdf/CFR-2017-title20-vol4-part679.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/part-679/subpart-A
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2017-title20-vol4/pdf/CFR-2017-title20-vol4-part679.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2024/14.36
https://www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2024/20.60

Chapter 445, Florida Statutes

Florida Credentials Review Committee Overview of Duties

Iv.

HISTORY

Date

Description

TBD

Revised to include terminology adjustments and structural
changes that update language for clarity and consistency;
reorganized sections to improve readability and coherence.
Policy and legal references updated to align with current
procedures, regulations, and strategic directions. Details specific
to SWDB requirements consistent with relevant state and federal
law added. Details added specific to SWDB requirements related
to processes surrounding the Master Credentials List.

12/09/2021

Updated to reflect changes to Florida Statutes and
implementation of the 2021 Reimagining Education and Career
Help (REACH) Act

06/04/2020

Approved by CareerSource Florida Board of Directors.

Page 6 of 6



http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Overview-of-Duties.pdf

STATE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD ROLES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES POLICY DEVELOPMENT TRACKER

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Policy Name: State Workforce Development Board Roles and
Responsibilities

Policy Type: Governance

Policy Rationale: Delineates the roles and responsibilities of the State

Workforce Development Board (SWDB) within the
workforce system
Date to Publish: May 22, 2025

B. PROJECT SUMMARY

The State Workforce Development Board (SWDB) is established under the Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) and Florida Statutes to assist the Governor with state
workforce policy and investments. The SWDB's key roles include developing and implementing
the WIOA State Plan, reviewing workforce policies, allocating discretionary funds for strategic
initiatives, monitoring economic trends and workforce performance, and leveraging strategic
partnerships to enhance career development and training.

The SWDB's responsibilities align with WIOA by ensuring the state's workforce development
system is accountable, data-driven, and strategically aligned with economic and educational
partners. The board's efforts to communicate the vision, maintain accountability, and foster
strategic partnerships are consistent with WIOA's goals of creating a comprehensive, high-
quality workforce development system that meets the needs of job seekers and employers.

This governance policy helps ensure the SWDB's activities support WIOA's objectives by
promoting effective governance, strategic investments, and continuous improvement in
workforce development, ensuring that Florida's workforce system is responsive to the evolving
needs of the economy and its workforce.

C. OVERVIEW OF CHANGES

1. Terminology Adjustments and structural changes update language for clarity and
consistency and reorganized sections to improve readability and coherence.

2. Policy Updates: Policy and legal references are updated to align with current
procedures, regulations and strategic directions.

3. Reuvisions include adding details specific to State Workforce Development Board
(SWDB) requirements consistent with relevant state and federal law (section 20.60, F.S.,
20 CFR 679.100 and 679.130) including:
a. requirements specific to workforce policy development, dissemination and
revision;
b. requirements specific to contract template development and dissemination;



c. requirements specific to collaboration with FloridaCommerce on technical
assistance, training and monitoring of LWDBs;

d. ethics requirements; and

e. other listed items the SWDB must review, approve, or consider.

4. Details added specific to the SWDB’s requirements related to processes surrounding the
Master Credential List.

E. LEGAL REFERENCES AND APPLICABLE GUIDANCE

Public Law 113-128, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (2014)

20 CFR 676

20 CFR 678.705

20 CFR § 679.100, Subpart A — State Workforce Development Board

20 CFR 679.130

Section 14.36, Florida Statute

Section 20.60, Florida Statute

Chapter 445, Florida Statutes

Florida Credentials Review Committee Overview of Duties



https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/part-676
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-678.705
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-678.705
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2017-title20-vol4/pdf/CFR-2017-title20-vol4-part679.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2017-title20-vol4/pdf/CFR-2017-title20-vol4-part679.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/part-679/subpart-A
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2017-title20-vol4/pdf/CFR-2017-title20-vol4-part679.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2024/14.36
https://www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2024/20.60
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Overview-of-Duties.pdf

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025

Action Item 3

Approved
Disapproved

Action Item 3

CAREERSOURCE FLORIDA WORKFORCE POLICY
ADULT AND DISLOCATED WORKER PROGRAM
FRAMEWORK AND DESIGN

The primary responsibilities of the State Workforce Development Board (SWDB) are
described in s. 445.004(6)(a)-(i), F.S., 20 CFR 679.100 and 679.130. The SWDB is
responsible for assisting the state in aligning and enhancing the capacity and
performance of the workforce development system and achieving the state’s strategic
and operational vision and goals as outlined in the State’s approved Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Plan. The SWDB must approve policies to be
implemented by the CareerSource Florida network including those that impact local
workforce development boards (LWDB).

CareerSource Florida and FloridaCommerce worked with executive directors and staff
of LWDBs to develop a new policy describing LWDB requirements for the design and
framework for implementing local WIOA adult and dislocated worker programs pursuant
to WIOA Section 134(b)-(d). This new policy provides guidance to LWDBs consistent
with WIOA, federal regulations on Adult and Dislocated Worker Activities and Training
and Employment Guidance Letters on One-Stop Operations Guidance for the American
Job Center Network and Guidance on Services provided through the Adult and
Dislocated Worker Programs under WIOA and the Wagner-Peyser Act Employment
Service.

FOR CONSIDERATION

e Approve CareerSource Florida Policy W2 — Adult, Dislocated Worker
Program Framework and Design.
Attachments:

e Adult And Dislocated Worker Program Framework and Design Policy
Development Tracker



http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130

CareerSource.

4 ’ FLORIDA NUMBER

TBD

Workforce Policy

Title: | Adult and Dislocated Worker Program Framework and Design

Policy Type | Programmatic

Program: | Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

Effective:

I1.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to provide local workforce development boards (LWDBs) the
requirements for the design and framework implementing local Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act (WIOA) adult and dislocated worker programs pursuant to WIOA Section
134(b)-(d).

KEY OBJECTIVES

a. Enhance Access to Career Services
e Ensure all eligible adults and dislocated workers have access to basic,
individualized, and follow-up career services.
o Increase the number of participants receiving career services through the one-stop
delivery system.
b. Improve Employment Outcomes
o Facilitate the placement of participants into unsubsidized employment.
e Support participants in achieving sustainable employment with competitive wages.
¢. Promote SKkill Development
e Provide training services that lead to recognized postsecondary credentials.
o Enhance participants' skills to meet the demands of in-demand industry sectors and
occupations.




I11.

Iv.

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 2 of 14

d. Strengthen Partnerships and Coordination
o Foster collaboration with required and additional partners to deliver comprehensive
services.
e Coordinate with other programs, such as the WIOA Youth Program and Trade
Adjustment Assistance (TAA), to maximize service delivery.
e. Ensure Compliance and Accountability
e Adhere to nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions.
e Maintain accurate and timely data entry into Employ Florida.

MEASURABLE PERFORMANCE OUTCOMES

Details specific to targets associated with performance outcomes above can be found in
Florida’s approved Combined WIOA Four-year Plan and in each LWDB’s local negotiated
performance.

Consistent with guidance in Training and Employment Guidance Letter TEGL 04-23,
Requirements for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) State Plans for Program
Years (PY) 2024 — 2027, there is a heightened emphasis on coordination and collaboration
among programs, including programs like Wagner-Peyser activities, faith-based and
community-based programs, vocational rehabilitation services, and veteran services. Every
effort should be made by all partners, including LWDBSs, to accurately report numbers of co-
enrolled participants and to eliminate or minimize barriers, which can be accomplished through
strategic implementation of co-enrollment activities.

These objectives and outcomes align with the WIOA requirements and goals and will help
ensure the success of the Adult and Dislocated Worker programs.

BACKGROUND

WIOA embraces a vision to strengthen talent pipelines and workforce systems by providing a
foundational platform which supports an integrated service delivery system and increases
access to a workforce system that is universally accessible, customer-centered and employment
driven.

The Adult and Dislocated Worker (ADW) programs provide training and employment services
to WIOA-eligible participants. The one-stop delivery system is the basic delivery system for
such services. Through this system, adults and dislocated workers can access a continuum of
services that range from access to self-service information about job postings, labor market
information, available training programs, etc., to occupational skills training and work-based
learning opportunities for high skill, high demand jobs. LWDBs and local career centers work
collaboratively with economic development, industry and business partners to determine the
talent needs for the local economy, and with educational institutions, service agencies, and
other workforce partners to ensure that the mix of services available to job seekers can meet


https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/2024-2027-WIOA-Combined-Plan.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/tegl-04-23

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 3 of 14

those talent needs and engage program participants in career pathways that lead to self-
sufficiency.

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

WIOA authorizes a continuum of career services and training services for adults and dislocated
workers. Staff must assess each participant and determine the most appropriate mix of these
services to offer to participants. Staff must identify the assessments to be used to determine
eligibility and must ensure eligibility determination procedures are consistent with state
policies. Staff may use recent (within the most recent six months) interviews, evaluations, or
assessments, including those used by partner programs, when available, rather than creating a
new document.

A. Career Services

As identified in 20 CFR 678.430, there are three types of career services: basic career
services, individualized career services, and follow-up services. Each LWDB must ensure
that career services are available in at least one physical, comprehensive career center in
their local area. Career services also may be available at affiliated sites or at specialized
centers.

LWDBs must ensure that adults and dislocated workers who receive services funded under
WIOA are registered in Employ Florida and are eligible for either the adult or dislocated
worker program prior to the provision of individualized career services, training services
or follow-up services.

1. Basic Career Services!

Basic career services are universally accessible and may be provided to individuals in
the Adult, Dislocated Worker, and Wagner Peyser programs. Basic career services do
not require significant staff involvement. Basic career services include:

o “Information-Only Services or Activities”, i.e. those services or activities that have
readily available information that does not require an assessment by a staff member
of the individual’s skills, education, or career objectives; and

o “Self-Service”, i.e. services or activities that an individual accesses independently
and without the assistance of a staff member for any workforce development system
program’s information and activities in either a physical location, such as a career
center resource room or partner agency, or remotely via the use of electronic
technologies.

Basic career services that must be made available at a minimum are:

a) Program eligibility determinations.

120 CFR 678.430(a)



https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-678.430

b)

d)

g)

h)

)

k)

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 4 of 14

Outreach, intake (including identification through the state’s Worker Profiling and
Reemployment Services system of Reemployment Assistance (RA) claimants
likely to exhaust benefits), and orientation to information and other services
available through the one-stop delivery system. Temporary Assistance for Needy
Families (TANF) program individuals must be provided with the opportunity to
initiate an application for TANF assistance and non-assistance benefits and
services.

Initial assessment of skill levels, including literacy, numeracy, and English
language proficiency, as well as aptitudes, abilities (including skills gaps), and
supportive service needs.

Labor exchange services, including job search and placement assistance, and, when
needed by an individual, career counseling, including the provision of:

1) Information on in-demand industry sectors and occupations.

2) Information on nontraditional employment.

3) Information from career profiles and interest inventories.

Referrals to, and coordination of activities with, other programs and services.
Workforce and labor market employment information, including:

1) Job vacancy listings in labor market areas.

2) Information on job skills necessary to obtain the vacant jobs listed.

3) Information relating to local occupations in-demand; and the earnings, skill
requirements, and opportunities for advancement for occupations in-demand.

Provision of performance information and program cost information on eligible
providers of training services by program and type of providers and workforce
services by program and type of providers.

Provision of information about how the local area is performing on local
performance accountability measures, as well as any additional performance
information relating to the area’s CareerSource network.

Provision of information relating to the availability of supportive services or
assistance, and appropriate referrals to those services and assistance.

Assistance in establishing eligibility for financial aid assistance for training and
education programs not provided under WIOA.

Provision of information and assistance regarding filing claims under RA

programs, including meaningful assistance (which triggers WIOA participation) to

individuals seeking assistance in filing a claim. “Meaningful assistance,” as
described in Unemployment Insurance Program Letter (UIPL) 20-15 and 20 CFR

678.430, 34 CFR 361.430, and 34 CFR 463.430, means providing assistance as

follows:

1) Only merit staff (State government employees) may, in person at career centers
or remotely, answer questions, provide advice, or make decisions that could
affect claimants’ RA eligibility. However, other career center staff may assist
in claims by acceptance of information from claimants.



Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page S of 14

2) If an individual in a career center is referred to a telephone for RA claims
assistance, it must be a phone line dedicated to serving RA customers in a timely
manner. Individuals must not simply be referred to a general information/dial-
in line with the state RA agency contact center where the individual is placed
into a phone queue along with all other claimants in the State. If the assistance
is provided remotely using technology, it must be a technology that enables
trained staff to provide the assistance.

3) The costs associated in providing meaningful assistance may be paid for by the
State’s RA program, the WIOA Adult or Dislocated Worker programs,
Wagner-Peyser, or some combination of these programs.

See the Employ Florida Service Code Guide for Jobseeker Services for the specific
service code and case note/documentation requirements for basic career services.

2. Individualized Career Services?

Individualized career services must be made available to a participant after staff
determine that such services are required by the participant to retain or obtain
employment. Individualized career services involve significant staff time and must be
customized to each individual’s need.

Individualized career services include but are not limited to:

e Comprehensive and specialized assessments of the skill levels and service needs,
such as diagnostic testing and use of other assessment tools, and in-depth
interviewing and evaluation.

e Development of an individual employment plan.

e Group counseling, which involves two or more participants.

¢ Individual counseling

e (Career planning (e.g. case management, see WIOA sec. 3(8)).

e Short-term pre-vocational services, including development of learning skills,
communication skills, interviewing skills, punctuality, personal maintenance skills,
and professional conduct services.

¢ Internships and work experiences (including transitional jobs).
e Workforce preparation activities.

e Financial literacy services as described in WIOA sec. 129(b)(2)(D) and 20 CFR
part 681.500.

e Out-of-area job search assistance and relocation assistance.

e English language acquisition and integrated education and training programs
pursuant to 20 CFR 680.200(j).

220 CFR 678.430(b)



https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/programs-and-resources/wp/(updated)-employ-florida-service-code-guide-for-jobseeker-services-032425.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-678.430

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 6 of 14

Individualized career services trigger and extend participation. LWDBs can only record
service codes for these services with the knowledge and current agreement of the
participant.

See the Employ Florida Service Code Guide for Jobseeker Services for the specific
service code and case note/documentation requirements for individualized career
services.

a. Objective Assessment Summary

The Objective Assessment Summary (OAS), which is a documented evaluation of
the academic and occupational skills, career interests, personal needs, and
developmental needs of the participant, is a crucial tool that helps staff and
participants make informed decisions. The OAS must include a review of prior
work experience; aptitudes for both traditional and nontraditional careers; academic
history; basic skills; work readiness, and barriers to employment. Staff must
document any formal or informal assessment and/or testing used to gauge an
individual’s current knowledge, skills and abilities.

The OAS wizard in Employ Florida must be fully completed by staff for program
participants. Should there be instances where the system is not available (i.e. system
disruptions/outages), LWDBs may use other assessment tools, given the chosen
assessment tool contains the same information as the system-generated OAS.
Additionally, staff must update the system as soon as it is available but no later than
15 days from the date the service was provided.

When a participant completes the background wizard and/or resume’ builder, some
of the participant’s information will automatically populate into the OAS. As a
result, limited information will need to be inputted to complete the OAS. Staff must
review the results of the OAS with the participant to make certain the information
was accurately documented.

Participants enrolled in or receiving services from a partner program may already
have a previously completed OAS in Employ Florida. A new OAS is not required
if the OAS was completed within the last six months. If the participant has an open
OAS, then staff must work with the partner program and update the OAS to
incorporate new components.

b. Individual Employment Plan

The LWDB must establish an Individual Employment Plan (IEP) for each
participant in the WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker program. The provision of
individualized career services must be based on the employment needs of the
participant and documented in an IEP, as appropriate. The IEP is a negotiated
agreement between the participant and the program detailing what the participant
will do to obtain/return to employment and what the program will do to support the
participant’s efforts. The IEP is an ongoing strategy to identify employment goals,


https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/programs-and-resources/wp/(updated)-employ-florida-service-code-guide-for-jobseeker-services-032425.pdf

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 7 of 14

achievement objectives, and an appropriate combination of services for the
participant to achieve the stated employment goals. The IEP must include at least
one short term goal (less than one year in duration) and one long term goal (one
year or longer in duration). Staff must work with the participant to outline the steps
necessary to achieve each goal. The IEP must address any barriers that may
prohibit the participant from achieving the goals.

If the participant has an existing IEP in Employ Florida, staff must determine if the
IEP is still active and work with the program partner who created the existing IEP
to determine if the plan should be closed or will require joint coordination. An IEP
that is coordinated across multiple programs requires constant communication
between the career center staff and partner program staff to maximize the
effectiveness of the plan and prevent the duplication of services.

The IEP must be created using the Employ Florida IEP/Service Strategy wizard. If
there are instances where the system 1is not available (i.e. system
disruptions/outages), then LWDBs may use locally created IEPs, given the
document contains the same information as the system-generated IEP.
Additionally, staff must update the system as soon as it is available but no later than
15 days from the date the service was provided. Instructions on how to create an
IEP using the Employ Florida IEP/Service Strategy wizard are available in the
Virtual OneStop® User Guide for Staff, Section 4: Individuals - Case Management.
The IEP must be printed and signed by both the participant and staff. A copy of the
IEP must be retained in the participant’s file. Staff should provide the participant a
copy of the signed IEP.

Statutory Priority for Adult Funds

WIOA establishes a priority requirement with respect to WIOA adult local formula
funds and state-level grants when using such funds to provide individualized career
services and training services, LWDBs must give priority to recipients of public
assistance, low-income individuals, and individuals who are basic skills deficient
(including English language learners) for individualized career services and
training services. LWDBs must prioritize services to these populations at all times,
regardless of the amount of funds available to provide services in the local area.

Please refer to Administrative Policy 105 — Priority of Service for the requirements
for providing priority of service under WIOA.

Additionally, veterans and eligible spouses (covered persons) must receive priority
of service over non-covered persons for all U.S. Department of Labor (USDOL)
funded job training programs, including WIOA programs. This means that veterans
and eligible spouses either receive access to a service earlier in time than a non-
covered person or, if the resource is limited, the veteran or eligible spouse receives
access to the service instead of or before the non-covered person. Veterans and
eligible spouses who receive priority of service must meet all WIOA Adult program


https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2020-guidance-papers/adminpolicy105_priorityofsvc---final.pdf?sfvrsn=308643b0_2

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 8 of 14

eligibility requirements. Under the priority of service provisions of the Jobs for
Veterans Act (38 USC 4215(a) — (b) and 20 CFR Section 1010.200, separating
service members who, upon discharge, meet the eligibility criteria for dislocated
workers must be afforded priority over non-veterans. Please see Administrative
Policy 111 — Priority of Service for Veterans and Eligible Spouses for specific
requirements.

d. Employment Status Clarification

Consistent with TEGL 19-16, LWDBs must develop local operating procedures for
serving individuals who are underemployed *. Examples of underemployed
individuals include:

1) Individuals employed less than full-time who are seeking full-time
employment.

2) Individuals who are employed in a position that is inadequate with
respect to their skills and training.

3) Individuals who are employed who meet the definition of a low-income
individual as defined in WIOA section 3(36).

4) Individuals who are employed, but whose current job’s earnings are not
sufficient compared to their previous job’s earnings from their previous
employment.

LWDBs may provide services to a dislocated worker individual who is dislocated
from a full-time job, but who has found part-time, bridge or income maintenance
employment, pursuant to local policy.

e. Supportive Services and Needs-Related Payments

Supportive services are those services necessary to enable an individual to
participate in career services or training services. LWDBs must engage in resource
and service coordination to ensure participants receive supportive services, either
as part of an IEP/ISS, through co-enrollment or thorough referral to community
partners, whenever possible. Supportive services may be made available to any
adult or dislocated worker participating in Title I career services or training
activities who is unable to obtain supportive services through other programs
providing such services. Additionally, the supportive services must be reasonable
and necessary to enable the individual to participate in career services or training
activities. WIOA requires that adults and dislocated worker individuals be
participants to receive supportive services. Thus, LWDBs may not fund supportive
services with WIOA funds as follow-up services to adult and dislocated worker
participants.

3 Such individuals will only meet the WIOA priority of service for Adults if they also meet the criteria listed
in subparagraph b, above.


https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-1010.200
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2021-guidance-papers/administrative-policy-111-priority-of-service-for-veterans-and-eligible-spouses.pdf?sfvrsn=30ad4eb0_2
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2021-guidance-papers/administrative-policy-111-priority-of-service-for-veterans-and-eligible-spouses.pdf?sfvrsn=30ad4eb0_2

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 9 of 14

The provision of supportive services must be documented in the participant’s
IEP/ISS. Additional requirements governing supportive services are prescribed in
Administrative Policy Number 109: Supportive Services and Needs-Related

Payments.

3. Work-Based Learning and Work-Based Training

Work-based learning activities include on-the-job training, customized training,
incumbent worker training, registered apprenticeships, pre-apprenticeships,
transitional jobs, work experience, and internships. Of these work-based learning
activities, on-the-job training, customized training, incumbent worker training, and
registered apprenticeships are also considered work-based training.

The following work-based learning activities are considered individualized career
services under WIOA: work experience and internships, transitional jobs, and pre-
apprenticeship programs. See Workforce Policy Number 100: Work-Based Training
and Work-Based Learning Opportunities for details and requirements on this topic.

LWDBs and local workforce development regions must align local strategies and
policies for training with WIOA, Florida Law, and the state workforce development
plan and should leverage all allowable work-based training and other work-based
learning opportunities

B. Training Services

LWDB staff, after conducting an interview, an evaluation, or assessment, and career
planning, may provide training services to adult and dislocated worker participants, who:

1) Are unlikely or unable to obtain or retain employment that leads to economic
self-sufficiency or wages comparable to or higher than wages from previous
employment through career services alone, are in need of training services to
obtain or retain employment that leads to economic self-sufficiency or wages
comparable to or higher than wages from previous employment and have the
skills and qualifications to successfully participate in the selected program of
training services;

2) Are unable to obtain grant assistance from other sources to pay the costs of such
training, including such sources as State-funded training funds or Federal Pell
Grants established under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, or
requires WIOA assistance in addition to other sources of grant assistance,
including Federal Pell Grants*;

3) Are members of a worker group covered under a petition filed for TAA and is
awaiting a determination. If the petition is certified, the worker may then
transition to TAA approved training. If the petition is denied, the worker will
continue training under WIOA;

420 CFR 680.230 and WIOA sec. 134(c)(3)(B) contain provisions relating to fund coordination


https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2021-guidance-papers/adminpol109_wioa_supportiveservicesandneedsrelatedpayments---final-02-22-21.pdf?sfvrsn=81714db0_2
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2021-guidance-papers/adminpol109_wioa_supportiveservicesandneedsrelatedpayments---final-02-22-21.pdf?sfvrsn=81714db0_2
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administrative-policies/final_workforce-policy-100-work-based-training-and-work-based-learning-opportunities.pdf?sfvrsn=ce3731b0_1
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administrative-policies/final_workforce-policy-100-work-based-training-and-work-based-learning-opportunities.pdf?sfvrsn=ce3731b0_1
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-680.230

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 10 of 14

4) Are determined eligible in accordance with the adult statutory priority, if
training services are provided through the WIOA Adult local formula funding
stream; and

5) Selected a program of training services that is directly linked to the employment
opportunities in the local area, or in another area to which the individual is
willing to commute or relocate.

Training services must be documented in the IEP. Additionally, training services, when
determined appropriate, must be funded either through an Individual Training Account
(ITA) or through a training contract. Except in certain instances listed in WIOA sec. 122(h)
and 20 CFR 680.320, training services must be provided by an Eligible Training Provider
(ETP) in accordance with WIOA sec. 122(d). Section 445.003(3)(a)(1), F.S. requires that
a minimum of 50 percent of the Adult and Dislocated Worker formula funds expended
annually must be used to provide training services, but LWDBs are allowed an automatic
waiver which may reduce this to 30 percent. The waiver process is detailed in
Administrative Policy 074 Individual Training Account Expenditure Requirements and
Waiver Request Process.

LWDBs must use the standardized contract template approved by CareerSource Florida
and distributed to LWDBs by FloridaCommerce. Using the template ensures consistency
and compliance with organizational standards across the network and is supportive of
employer engagement across the system. LWDBs may not alter or amend the language in
the template. Any supplemental agreement language required to be added by the LWDB
or training provider may be accomplished through a locally created addendum to the
agreement. Any such addendums will be subject to compliance monitoring. Failure to use
the approved template may result in required corrective action.

. Follow-up Services®

Follow-up services must be made available, as determined appropriate by the LWDB, to
adults and dislocated worker® participants who are placed in unsubsidized employment, for
up to 12 months after the first day of employment. Follow-up services cannot be given to
participants, as follow-up services are only available to individuals who are no longer
participating in a WIOA program. Conversely, follow-up services do not extend the date
of exit in performance reporting. Follow-up services for Adult and Dislocated Worker
participants may begin immediately following placement into unsubsidized employment if
it is expected that the participant will not receive any future services.’ To ensure
participants receive the full benefit of follow-up services, LWDBs must begin follow-up
services within the first quarter after exit, or as soon as the information is received.

520 CFR 678.430(c)
5 For the title | Adult and Dislocated Worker programs, only participants may receive supportive services.
7 TEGL 10-16. Change 3



https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administrative-policies/final_administrative-policy-074---ita-expenditure-requirements-and-waiver-request-process.pdf?sfvrsn=c5085eb0_1
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administrative-policies/final_administrative-policy-074---ita-expenditure-requirements-and-waiver-request-process.pdf?sfvrsn=c5085eb0_1
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-678.430
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEGL/2023/TEGL%2010-16%20Change%203/TEGL%2010-16%2C%20Change%203%20-%20Accessible%20PDF.pdf

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 11 of 14

The types of follow-up services provided, and the duration of services must be determined
based on the needs of the individual. Follow-up services must include more than an
attempted contact, or a contact made to secure documentation for reporting a performance
outcome. Follow-up services must be documented as one of the services listed as an “F”
code in the Employ Florida Service Code Guide for Jobseeker Services.

Staff must enter a case note when follow-up services are refused by a participant or the
participant cannot be located. Additionally, follow-up attempts must be documented in a
case note.

See the Employ Florida Service Code Guide for Jobseeker Services for the specific service
code and case note/documentation requirements for follow-up services.

. Nondiscrimination

Section 188 of WIOA prohibits discrimination against individuals who apply to, participate
in, work for, or come into contact with programs and activities that receive financial
assistance under Title I of WIOA. This includes programs and activities operated by one-
stop partners (both required and additional partners) to the extent that these programs and
activities are being conducted as part of the one-stop delivery system. It prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability,
political affiliation or belief and, for WIOA beneficiaries, applicants, and participants only,
an individual’s citizenship® status or participation in a WIOA Title I-financially assisted
program or activity.

. Co-Enrollment

Co-enrolling WIOA participants in multiple core programs aims to provide comprehensive
support by leveraging resources and services from different programs to better meet the
needs of individuals seeking employment and training assistance. Co-enrollment allows
participants to benefit from the combined strengths of these programs, such as receiving
both job training and educational services simultaneously. This integrated approach helps
improve employment outcomes and ensures that participants receive a more holistic set of
services tailored to their specific needs.

Consistent with WIOA Section 108 related to local plans and 20 CFR 679.560(2), local
plans should describe how the LWDB works with entities carrying out core programs to
facilitate the development of career pathways and co-enrollment, as appropriate, and must
include strategies designed to leverage resources from all partners including partner
agencies, for participants who may be eligible for co-enrollment (including youth,
individuals with disabilities, trade-certified workers, veteran services, etc.). In these efforts,
LWDBs should also be guided by other relevant policies and technical guidance such as
the approaches and objectives outlined in CareerSource Florida Policy 2021.12.09.A.1 —
Comprehensive Employment, Education, and Training Strategy.

8 https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/section-38.11



https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/programs-and-resources/wp/(updated)-employ-florida-service-code-guide-for-jobseeker-services-032425.pdf
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/programs-and-resources/wp/(updated)-employ-florida-service-code-guide-for-jobseeker-services-032425.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/chapter-V/part-679/subpart-D/section-679.560
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Comprehensive-Employment-Education-and-Training-Policy.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Comprehensive-Employment-Education-and-Training-Policy.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/section-38.11

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 12 of 14

These strategies must be written and placed in each LWDB’s four-year plan and reflected
in its local operating policies. These strategies must also be designed in ways to assist the
state in meeting or exceeding the goals and targets identified in Florida’s approved WIOA
State Plan.

1.

Coordination with the WIOA Youth Program

Individuals aged 18-24 may be eligible for both the WIOA Youth and Adult programs
and can be co-enrolled in the two programs. The LWDB must develop a strategy to
coordinate the adult and dislocated worker programs with the youth program to
maximize flexibility and service delivery to eligible populations. Such determinations
regarding the appropriate program for the participant must be based on the service
needs of the participant and if the participant is career-ready based on an assessment of
his/her occupational skills, prior work experience, employability, and the participant’s
needs.

Staff must determine, for these individuals, the appropriate level and balance of
services under the Youth and Adult programs. An important difference to note here is
that while receiving an assessment from the Adult, Dislocated Worker, or ES programs
does trigger participation and inclusion in the performance accountability calculations
for those programs, an objective assessment carried out under WIOA sec. 129(c)(1)(A)
does not trigger participation in the Youth program. Staff must identify and track the
funding streams which pay the costs of services provided to individuals who are
participating in Youth and Adult programs concurrently and ensure no duplication of
services. Some examples where enhanced coordination could take place include:

e Referring individuals aged 18-24 to the Title I Youth program if they need more
intensive support around specific program elements described under WIOA sec.
129(c)(2).

e Utilizing WIOA Adult formula program funded ITAs as part of a career pathway
strategy for Youth program participants co-enrolled as adults or dislocated workers.

e Utilizing work-based training opportunities for Youth program participants co-
enrolled as adults or dislocated workers, as identified in their Individual Service
Strategy (ISS) as part of a career pathway.

e (Career pathway planning.

Note: Staff for the Adult and Dislocated Worker programs should also determine the
benefit of co-enrollment in the Adult Education and Family Literacy Act and the
Vocational Rehabilitation programs.

Coordination with Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA)

Consistent with guidance issued in TEGL 13-21, LWDBs are to continue serving trade-
effective workers from groups certified prior to July 1, 2022. These individuals may
also be eligible for Dislocated Workers. See Administrative Policy Number 116: Trade
Adjustment Assistance and Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Dislocated
Worker Co-enrollment for details and requirements on this topic.



https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administrative-policy-116---co-enrollment.pdf?sfvrsn=d9494eb0_0
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administrative-policy-116---co-enrollment.pdf?sfvrsn=d9494eb0_0
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/administrative-policy-116---co-enrollment.pdf?sfvrsn=d9494eb0_0

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 13 of 14

3. Coordination with Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA)

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA) program participants
who are deemed unlikely to return to a previous industry or occupation indicated as
declining are also qualified to receive WIOA Dislocated Worker (DW) services.

F. Timely and Accurate Data Entry into Employ Florida

FloridaCommerce is required to submit data quarterly to the USDOL, for individual
records that include demographic information, information on services received and
outcomes for each reportable individual and program participant. Failure to enter data
timely into Employ Florida may result in decreased performance for a local area.

LWDBs must ensure staff enter all information related to services provided to
individuals and activities completed by WIOA participants in a timely manner. A best
practice would be to enter the information on the same day a service is provided;
however, all information and corresponding service codes must be entered into Employ
Florida no later than the 15" day after a service is rendered.

Dates of services recorded in Employ Florida must reflect the date of actual service.
Service codes recorded in Employ Florida must align with the services defined in the
Employ Florida Service Code Guide for Jobseeker Services.

G. Local Operating Procedures

Local Operating Procedures (LOP) help local areas further define and clarify how
programs will be operated locally and are unique to each LWDB. Each LWDB must
develop LOPs that align to state and federal requirements to establish the local
requirements for adult, dislocated worker, and youth programs. LOPs must be publicly
posted and are subject to random monitoring and audits.

At a minimum, LOPs must:

1. Establish standardized procedures to identify appropriate assessments to be used to
determine appropriate services that should be offered to customers.

2. Define underemployment for both the adult and dislocated worker programs.
3. Define how the LWDB will serve individuals that are underemployed.

4. Describe how the LWDB works with entities carrying out core programs to
facilitate the development of career pathways and co-enrollment, including
strategies designed to leverage resources for participants who may be eligible for
co-enrollment.


https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/programs-and-resources/wp/(updated)-employ-florida-service-code-guide-for-jobseeker-services-032425.pdf

VI

VIIL.

Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs’ Framework and Design
Policy Number TBD
Page 14 of 14

IMPLEMENTATION

FloridaCommerce will monitor the requirements outlined in this policy and local operating
procedures. Additionally, LWDBs must establish local monitoring policies and procedures that
include local monitoring procedures for implementation of this policy.

AUTHORITY
WIOA, Public Law 113-128

20 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 680

29 CFR Parts 31 and 38

TEGL 10-16, Change 3 Attachment 7, Table A

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 16-16, One-Stop Operations Guidance for
the American Job Center Network

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) No. 19-16, Guidance on Services provided
through the Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs under the Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act (WIOA) and the Wagner-Peyser Act Employment Service (ES), as amended
by title IlI of WIOA, and for Implementation of the WIOA Final Rules

Training and Employment Notice (TEN) No. 13-24, Updated Promising Practices in
Achieving Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity: A Section 188 Disability Reference
Guide

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 07-20, Effective Implementation of
Priority of Service Provisions for Most in Need Individuals in the Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act (WIOA) Adult Program



https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/part-680
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/part-680
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-A/part-31
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-A/part-38?toc=1
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEGL/2022/TEGL%2010-16%20Change%202/Attachment%20VII.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-guidance-letter-no-16-16
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-guidance-letter-no-19-16
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/ten-13-24
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-guidance-letter-no-07-20

ADULT AND DISLOCATED WORKER PROGRAM
FRAMEWORK AND DESIGN
POLICY DEVELOPMENT TRACKER

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Policy Name: Workforce Policy - Adult and Dislocated Worker Program
Framework and Design

Policy Type: Programmatic — WIOA

Policy Rationale: New policy provides programmatic guidance to LWDBs

Date to publish: May 23, 2025

B. PROJECT SUMMARY

This policy provides local workforce development boards (LWDBs) requirements for the design
and framework implementing a local Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) adult
and dislocated worker programs pursuant to WIOA Sections 134(b), (c) and (d). This new policy
provides guidance to LWDBs consistent with WIOA, federal regulations on Adult and Dislocated
Worker Activities and Training and Employment Guidance Letters on One-Stop Operations
Guidance for the American Job Center Network and Guidance on Services provided through the
Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs under WIOA and the Wagner-Peyser Act Employment
Service.

CareerSource Florida and FloridaCommerce worked with executive directors and staff of local
workforce development boards, and CareerSource Florida leadership to align the updated policy
with the law, and existing policies. The policy was sent for consultation from all LWDBs.

C. OVERVIEW OF CHANGES

Substantive Change Location Reason
Key Objectives added Section Il. Key Objectives Key objectives serve as guiding
(Page 1-2) principles that define the strategic

and operational goals of the policy.
This helps ensure clarity,
consistency, and effectiveness by
outlining what the policy aims to

achieve.
Measurable Outcomes added Section lll. Measurable Measurable outcomes serve as key
to include WIOA Indicators of Performance Outcomes indicators of success and
Performance. Refers to (Page 2) effectiveness allowing the SWDB,
associated outcomes in Key LWDBSs, and stakeholders to assess
objectives and those whether the policy achieves its
performance indicators in WIOA intended purpose.
Combined Plan.
LWDBs must ensure career Section V. Policies and These requirements are consistent
services are available in at least | Procedures, A. Career with 20 CFR 678.430

one physical, comprehensive Services (Page 3)




career center in their local area.
Career services also may be
available at affiliated sites or at
specialized centers.

LWDBs must ensure ADWs
who receive services funded
under WIOA are registered in
Employ Florida and determined
to be eligible for adult or
dislocated worker program prior
to the provision of individualized
career services, training or
follow-up services.

Information added to define and
clarify basic career services
including information only
services or activities.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, 1. Basic Career
Services (Page 3-4)

These requirements are consistent
with 20 CFR 678.430(a)

Information clarified about
LWDB use of locally developed
Individual Employment Plans
(IEPS).

When using the Employ Florida
Service Strategy wizard and
OAS, activity codes for such
services are auto populated.
Use of the wizard/OAS
removes the requirement to
create a case note to document
the service details.

IEPs must be created using the
Employ Florida Service
Strategy wizard; however,
LWDBs may use a locally
created IEP in the event there
are system outages. Staff must
transfer the information to the
system generated IEP as soon
as the system is available but
no later than 15 days after the
service is provided.

The Employ Florida OAS must
be completed.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, 2. Individualized
Career Services, b. Individual
Employment Plan (p. 7)

These activities are authorized in
the Employ Florida Service Code
Guide for Jobseeker Services.

Information clarified for LWDBs
to apply priority to statutory
groups when using statewide
grant funds.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, 2. c. Statutory
Priority for Adult Funds (Page
7)

Consistent with WIOA Section
134(c)(3)(E), LWDBs must apply
the priority requirement with respect
to WIOA adult local formula funds
and state-level grants when using
such funds to provide individualized
career services and training
services.




Information about supportive
services and IEP/ISS plans
through co-enroliment included.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, 2. Individualized
Career Services, e.
Employment Status
Clarification (Page 8)

Requirements governing supportive
services are prescribed in
CareerSource Florida
Administrative Policy Number 109:
Supportive Services and Needs-
Related Payments.

Added link to updated
Workforce Policy 100 — Work-
Based Training and Work-
Based Learning Opportunities

Section V. Policies and
Procedures,3. Work-Based
Learning and Work-Based
Training (Page 9)

Work-based learnings activities are
described in detail in Workforce
Policy 100 — Work-Based Training
and Work-Based Learning
Opportunities

Policy language updated to
clarify which items are inclusive
as required eligibility for training
services.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures B., Training
Services (Page 10)

Revised for clarity, consistent with
Training and Employment Guidance
Letter 19-16.

Requires contracts for training
to be written using the
standardized contract template
approved by CareerSource
Florida.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, 3. Work-Based
Learning and Work-Based
Training, B Training Services
(Pages 10)

This complies with board approved
CareerSource Florida Statewide
Standardization of Tools and
Services Policy.

Identifies Co-enroliment
strategy to provide assistance
from multiple core programs
and services from combined
partners.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, E. Co-Enroliment
(Page 11-12)

Consistent with WIOA Section 108
related to local plans, 20 CFR
679.560(2), and board approved
CareerSource Florida
Comprehensive Employment,
Education, and Training Policy, co-
enrollment is a feature of WIOA and
Florida’s WIOA Combined Plan.

Local Operating Procedures
(LOPs) required.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, G. Local
Operating Procedures (Page
13)

LOPs help local areas provide
guidance for career center staff and
further define and clarify how
programs are operated locally.

Section VI. Implementation
describes monitoring
requirements.

Section VI. Implementation
(Page 14)

This policy requires
FloridaCommerce to monitor the
requirements outlined in this policy
and LOPs. LWDBs must establish
local monitoring policies and
procedures aligned with this policy.

D. LEGAL REFERENCES AND APPLICABLE GUIDANCE

Public Law 113-128, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (2014)

20 CFR 680, 29 CFR 31,29 CFR 38

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 16-16

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) No. 19-16

Chapter 445, Florida Statutes



https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/part-680
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/part-31
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/part-38
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEGL/2017/TEGL_16-16_Acc.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEGL/2017/TEGL_16-16_Acc.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEGL/2017/TEGL_19-16_acc.pdf
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025

Action Item 4

Approved
Disapproved

Action Item 4

CAREERSOURCE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY
REEMPLOYMENT SERVICES AND ELIGIBILITY ASSESSMENT
(RESEA) PROGRAM DESIGN AND FRAMEWORK

The primary responsibilities of the State Workforce Development Board (SWDB) are
described in s. 445.004(6)(a)-(i), Florida Statutes, 20 CFR 679.100 and 679.130. The
SWDB is responsible for assisting the state in aligning and enhancing the capacity and
performance of the workforce development system and achieving the state’s strategic
and operational vision and goals as outlined in the State’s approved Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Plan. The SWDB must approve policies for
implementation by the CareerSource Florida network including those that impact local
workforce development boards (LWDB).

The Unemployment Insurance (Ul) program is a key part of the public workforce
system, providing benefits to individuals who lose their jobs through no fault of their own
and meet eligibility requirements. In 2005, the U.S. Department of Labor (USDOL)
initiated the Ul Reemployment and Eligibility Assessment (REA) pilot program to help Ul
claimants with reemployment and to prevent improper benefit payments. This program
was replaced by the RESEA program in January 2016.

The RESEA program was permanently authorized by the Bipartisan Budget Act (BBA)
of 2018, which amended the Social Security Act (SSA). The program has four main
purposes:

e Improve employment outcomes for Reemployment Assistance (RA) claimants
and reduce the duration of RA receipt.

e Strengthen program integrity by preventing improper RA payments.
e Align with WIOA to enhance service delivery for job seekers.

e Serve as an entry point for RA claimants into other workforce system partner
programs.



http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130

CareerSource Florida and the Florida Department of Commerce (FloridaCommerce)
worked with executive directors and staff of LWDBs to develop a new policy —
CareerSource Florida Administrative Policy — Reemployment Services and Eligibility
Program Design and Framework to provide RESEA program requirements and
guidance to Local Workforce Development Boards (LWDBs) and program service
providers. This policy replaces Administrative Policy 68 — Reemployment and Eligibility
Assessment (REA) Program which was sunset in February 2025 by approval of the
CareerSource Florida Board of Directors.

FOR CONSIDERATION

e Approve New CareerSource Florida Administrative Policy — Reemployment
Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA) Program Design and
Framework.

Attachments:

e RESEA Program Design and Framework Administrative Policy Development
Tracker




CareerSource.

;’FLORIDA o,

TBD

Administrative Policy

. Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA) Program
Title: .
Design and Framework
Policy Type Programmatic
Program: RESEA
Effective: TBD
L. PURPOSE AND SCOPE

I1.

I11.

The purpose of this policy is to provide the Reemployment Services and Eligibility
Assessment (RESEA) program requirements and guidance to Local Workforce
Development Boards (LWDBs) and program service providers.

KEY OBJECTIVES

A. Identify required services that must be provided to RESEA participants by LWDB staff.
B. Align practice with required performance metrics described in the RESEA State Plan.

MEASURABLE PERFORMANCE OUTCOMES

A. WIOA Primary Indicators of Performance
B. LWDB Letter Grades
C. RESEA State Plan

Florida Department of Commerce (FloridaCommerce) will use data from calendar years
2024 and 2025 to establish a baseline for RESEA performance metrics. Performance



https://analytics.careersourceflorida.com/BoardPerformance/Dashboard/27?progyear=2024
https://analytics.careersourceflorida.com/LetterGrades/Performance

Iv.

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 2 of 15

metrics will be based on RESEA appointment attendance, no-show reschedules and partner
co-enrollment. Performance Outcomes for the RESEA Program are:

A. Number of RESEA initial appointments scheduled and completed.
B. Number of No Shows successfully rescheduled and completed.
C. Number of customers referred to and co-enrolled in partner programs.

BACKGROUND

The Unemployment Insurance (UI) program is a required partner in the public workforce
system and provides unemployment benefits to individuals who have lost their
employment through no fault of their own and who otherwise meet initial and continuing
UI eligibility requirements. Beginning in 2005, the United States Department of Labor
(USDOL), Employment and Training Administration (ETA) funded the voluntary UI
Reemployment and Eligibility Assessment (REA) pilot program to address individual
reemployment needs of Ul claimants, and to prevent and detect improper benefit payments.
RESEA replaced REA effective January 2016.

The RESEA program was permanently authorized by amendments to the Social Security
Act (SSA) under the Bipartisan Budget Act (BBA) of 2018, Public Law 115-123. The
RESEA provisions are contained in Section 30206 of the BBA, which enacted Section 306
of the SSA. Pursuant to Section 306 of the SSA, the RESEA program has the following
four purposes:

1) To improve employment outcomes of Reemployment Assistance (RA)
claimants and reduce the average duration of RA receipt through employment.

2) To strengthen program integrity and reduce improper RA payments through the
detection and prevention of such payments to ineligible individuals.

3) To promote the alignment with the broader vision of Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act (WIOA) of increased program integration and service delivery
for job seekers, including RA claimants.

4) To establish RESEA as an entry point for RA claimants into other workforce
system partner programs.

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

LWDBs must schedule an initial RESEA appointment for all claimants selected for
participation in the RESEA program. Subsequently, claimants selected for participation in
the RESEA program must attend the scheduled initial appointment to avoid adverse action
on their claim.



Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 3 of 15

Florida’s RESEA program targets services to:

e Unemployment Compensation for Ex-Service Members (UCX) and
e (laimants determined most likely to exhaust their benefits before returning to work.

Claimants are selected for RESEA through a profiling model. The profiling model is a
statistical process that predicts the probability of an individual exhausting their benefits
before securing employment based on the following variables:

e Separation reason,

e Primary occupation,

e Education level,

¢ County of residence, and
e Local unemployment rate.

Attendance is mandatory for claimants selected for RESEA to avoid adverse action on
their claim. Failure to attend the appointment or complete the required program services
will adversely affect the claimant’s RA benefits, except if the participant meets one of the
exemptions outlined in Section VI.A.5.c.

LWDBs must ensure that all RESEA participants have equitable access to services. This
includes but is not limited to:

¢ Providing accessible alternatives (see section title Service Delivery Methods) to
technological and digital tools. This includes identification and provision of
logistical support needed to best serve individuals selected for RESEA participation
in rural and urban communities.

e Providing reasonable accommodations, modifications, and auxiliary aids and
services.

e Ensuring all communications are provided in the language the participant is most
familiar with based on their selection in their profile in the state’s Management
Information System (MIS).

A. PROGRAM OPERATIONS

The RESEA program framework design includes the initial RESEA appointment and
appropriate referrals to other programs and community resources, as needed.

1. Initial RESEA Appointment

The term “initial RESEA” means the actual meeting (appointment) between career
center staff and the participant where the required RESEA services are completed.



Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 4 of 15

LWDB staff must ensure the services below are provided during the initial
appointment. Services must be documented in Employ Florida and comply with
requirements outlined in the Employ Florida Service Code Guide for Jobseeker
Services. Note: The Initial RESEA Appointment is considered “complete” only
after the following services have been provided and recorded in Employ Florida.

a. Orientation

The first step in the initial RESEA appointment is to complete an orientation
with the participant. The orientation is a session where staff provide an
overview of the programs and services available in the career center to RESEA
participants. During the orientation, staff must outline requirements for
RESEA program participation, and provide information about available career
center services, partner programs, and community resources. The orientation
session may be facilitated on an individual or a group basis. Further, the
manner in which orientation may be provided includes a staff-led or self-paced
presentation, pre-recorded webinar, or other comparable format(s).

b. Objective Assessment Summary

The next step is the Objective Assessment Summary (OAS), which is a
documented evaluation of the academic and occupational skills, career
interests, personal needs, and developmental needs of the participant. It must
include a review of prior work experience; aptitudes for both traditional and
nontraditional careers; academic history; basic skills; work readiness, and
barriers to employment. Staff must document any formal or informal
assessment and/or testing used to gauge an individual’s current knowledge,
skills, and abilities.

The OAS wizard in Employ Florida must be fully completed by LWDB staff
during the initial RESEA appointment. Should there be instances where the
system is not available (i.e. system disruptions/outages), LWDBs may use other
assessment tools, given the chosen assessment tool contains the same
information as the system-generated OAS. Additionally, staff must update the
system as soon as it is available but no later than 15 days from the date the
service was provided.

When a participant completes the background wizard and/or résumé builder,
some of the participant’s information will automatically populate into the OAS.
As a result, limited information will need to be inputted to complete the OAS.
Staff must review the results of the OAS with the participant.

Participants enrolled in or receiving services from a partner program may
already have a previously completed the OAS in Employ Florida. A new OAS
is not required if the OAS was completed within the last six months. If the


https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/programs-and-resources/wp/(updated)-employ-florida-service-code-guide-for-jobseeker-services-032425.pdf
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/programs-and-resources/wp/(updated)-employ-florida-service-code-guide-for-jobseeker-services-032425.pdf

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page S of 15

participant has an open OAS, RESEA staff must work with the partner program
and update the OAS to incorporate the RESEA components.

c. Employability Development Plan

The third step is the creation of a service plan or Employability Development
Plan (EDP). The information obtained from the OAS builds the foundation for
creating a step-by-step guide to support the participant in returning to work as
quickly as possible. The EDP is designed to help jobseekers navigate the
increasingly complex steps to their next job or a better career.

The EDP must include steps the participant must take to identify and achieve
education and employment goals, as appropriate. The EDP must be unique and
specific to each participant and identified goals must be based on the
participant’s past work experience or future desired occupation. The EDP must
include at least one short-term goal (0-12 months) and the accompanying
objectives to complete the goal.

An effective EDP must use the S.M.A.R.T. principle to create specific,
measurable, attainable, relevant, and time-bound goals and objectives, as
described below:

e Specific goals are easy to comprehend and clearly indicate what the
participant intends to do. Specific objectives are the action steps
outlining exactly what the participant should do in order to achieve the
goal.

e Measurable goals have benchmarks allowing participants to see
progress towards successfully achieving the goal. Goals are measurable
by establishing objectives to show progress.

e Attainable goals and objectives can be realistically expected to be
completed within the timeframe given.

e Relevant goals and objectives must be relevant to what the participant
is trying to achieve. A relevant goal is based on the participant’s work
history, education, training, special skills, interests, and aptitudes.

e Time-bound goals and objectives should be limited to a defined period
and include a specific timeline for each step of the process.

Staff must create the EDP using the wizard in Employ Florida. Staff must print
the EDP and obtain the appropriate signatures (staff and participant). A copy of
the signed EDP must be provided to the participant and the original must be
maintained in the participant’s Employ Florida file. Should there be instances
where the system is not available (i.e. system disruptions/outages), LWDBs
may use locally created EDPs, given the document contains the same
information as the system-generated EDP. Additionally, staff must update the



Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 6 of 15

system as soon as it is available but no later than 15 days from the date the
service was provided.

For EDPs created remotely, staff and the participant must sign the EDP
electronically. Once signed, staff must provide a copy of the document to the
participant electronically or via mail.

Additionally, the EDP must include Work Search Activities (WSA) that support
the participant finding suitable employment and are documented as an objective
within the participant’s plan. Each participant must be assigned to complete a
minimum of one specific work search activity!. Although provision of work
search activities is required, they are not considered a permissible use of
RESEA grant funds; therefore, each RESEA participant must be co-enrolled in
the Wagner-Peyser (WP) program during the initial appointment.

Note: A separate work search activity appointment is not required as a part of
the RESEA initial appointment.

In addition, as part of the career planning process, staff are required to utilize
tools that:

e Assist with demonstrating future financial impacts of the participant’s
change in income over time;

e Focus on mitigating benefit cliffs for participants seeking employment
that leads to self-sufficient employment; and

e Better understand specific gaps and barriers faced by participants.

d. The state approved tool is the Career Ladder Identifier and Financial Forecaster
(CLIFF) Dashboard. The education and employment goals identified for
participants must be created using information or data obtained through the
administration of the CLIFF Dashboard. Usage of the tool should be tracked
in Employ Florida using the service code “CLF” as defined in the Employ
Florida Service Code Guide for Jobseeker Services.

e. Labor Market Information

Labor Market Information (LMI) is the specific and unique information
pertaining to the socio-economic forces which can guide participants with their
job search. It provides occupational staffing and hiring patterns, wage
information and labor market employment data relating to local, regional, and
national labor market areas.

1 Attachment A - Menu of Possible Work Search Activities provides a list of permissible work search activities.



Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 7 of 15

Labor market information must be customized to each participant and provided
as a part of the initial RESEA appointment. Staff may not utilize universal or
template LMI. Because the goal of LMI is to provide a general guide to jobs
and the job market, staff may provide LMI as often as needed; however, staff
must not duplicate previous information provided to the participant.
Documentation and case note requirements must align with the Employ Florida
Service Code Guide for Jobseeker Services.

f. Eligibility Review Process (ERP)

LWDB staff must conduct the Eligibility Review Process (ERP) with each
RESEA participant to determine continued eligibility for reemployment
assistance benefits. The ERP must be conducted on a one-on-one basis, and it
includes the review of the individual’s availability to work, work search
activities and referral to the RA adjudication office if one or more issue or
potential issue(s) is identified. FloridaCommerce created a standard ERP form
that must be used by LWDBs to conduct the ERP. The ERP form will be a part
of the standard notification letter each RESEA participant receives.

The notification letter informs individuals of their selection for and mandatory
participation in the program. Participants must bring the completed ERP form
and submit it to staff at the initial RESEA appointment. Staff must review the
ERP form during the initial RESEA appointment with the participant to ensure
completeness and accuracy. When issues are identified, the LWDB staff must
submit the completed ERP form that identifies potential issues to:
RESEA ELGISS@commerce.fl.gov. The identified issues will be referred to
the RA Adjudication team for handling. LWDB staff must upload the
completed ERP form to the participant’s case file in Employ Florida within one
business day of the completed initial RESEA appointment.

2. Service Delivery Methods

LWDBs must make RESEA services available for participants via more than one
alternative, which may include in-person, remote, virtual, telephonic, or a hybrid
format using any two or more methods. For remote or virtual options, LWDBs may
use person-to-person technologies such as Skype, Zoom, FaceTime, Teams or other
similar applications.

These tools:

a) enhance the participants’ experience with RESEA services;

b) complement the resources and services provided during the initial RESEA;

c) significantly expand the number of RA claimants who can be served under
the RESEA program; and

d) significantly reduce the participant’s burden and hurdles to participation.


mailto:RESEA.ELGISS@commerce.fl.gov

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 8 of 15

The level and timeliness of these service delivery methods must be comparable to
the in-person services.

. Pool Management, Appointment Scheduling and Notification

LWDBs are required to manage their RESEA pool(s) each Monday morning. Staff
must select a “number” or “percentage” of participants to be placed in their pool.
On the following Tuesday, LWDB staff must print and mail RESEA appointment
letters to all claimants selected for RESEA program participation. It is understood
that these days may shift when there are office closures, system issues/changes or
other actions beyond the state or LWDB’s control.

LWDBs must use the standard notification letter provided by FloridaCommerce;
however, it can be appended to include specific local processes and/or information.
The letters must include the date, time, manner by which services will be delivered,
location of the appointment and contact information for the RESEA staff.
FloridaCommerce has translated the standard letter from English to Spanish and
Haitian Creole. LWDBs may print the letter based on the language selected by the
RESEA participant in Employ Florida from the login page.

LWDBs must develop a process that will take place after the notification letter is
mailed, but prior to the appointment, to engage participants and cause an increase
in attendance and completion of the Initial RESEA Appointment. Staff should
engage participants in a manner deemed appropriate as defined in the LWDB’s
local operating procedures, to reiterate the mandatory participation requirements
and consequences for non-participation. LWDBs are encouraged to use
technological tools and resources to automate this process.

. The Wagner-Peyser Application

The RESEA participant’s WP application must be completed prior to, or during the
initial RESEA appointment. Failure to complete the application could adversely
impact benefits due to the current system configuration which will not allow staff
to result the participant as “Attended” until the WP application is complete.

. RESEA Documentation Requirements

All services provided by LWDB staff during any RESEA appointment must be
documented in Employ Florida. The four-pack of services (Orientation, OAS, EDP,
and LMI), are automatically generated in the system’s event calendar. Once staff
results the participant’s attendance, the four-pack of services will automatically
attach to the participant’s service plan. LWDBs may require additional actions or
services beyond the four-pack of services during the RESEA appointments. When
this happens, those services must be manually attached to the event calendar by
LWDB staff, and appropriate case notes must be entered in accordance with the



Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 9 of 15

Employ Florida Service Code Guide for Jobseeker Services. To attach services to
a case file manually, staff must:

a. Select “Manage Activities”
b. Select “Individual Services”
c. Select the appropriate activity to attach

a. Resulting Attendance

RESEA appointments must be resulted to reflect the participant’s attendance or
non-attendance on the appointment date. A participant’s benefits may be
adversely impacted if staff does not result their non-attendance timely. Adverse
impacts may include:

1) The participant could erroneously lose benefits.

2) The participant could receive a payment during the period of
ineligibility, e.g., they were a no-show, but staff did not result the
participant’s attendance timely, potentially creating an overpayment.

LWDB staff must document the failure of a participant to engage in or complete
any of the required RESEA services in the case file.

Any participants who fail to report for their initial RESEA appointment must
be resulted as a “no show.” Note: Pursuant to UIPL 08-24, Section d.ii.: An
individual may not be found ineligible for RA for failure to report for any
[week] time in which no RESEA services were available. FloridaCommerce is
aware that certain instances may preclude services, such as a natural disaster,
planned office closures, holidays, etc.

When disasters or other situations occur that are beyond the control of the
LWDB, the LWDB must notify FloridaCommerce via email at
RESEA@commerce.fl.gov within one business day of the occurrence. The
notification must include the reason services are not available, and a date by
which the LWDB expects to restart services. The LWDB must provide a list of
participants affected by the lack of services so that FloridaCommerce can
ensure there is not an adverse impact to benefits.

If the LWDB permanently closes or inactivates an office that usually holds
RESEA services, then the LWDB must notify FloridaCommerce via the above
email at least two weeks prior to the planned closure/inactivation. The LWDB
must submit to FloridlaCommerce a statement on how it plans to provide
services to RA claimants selected for RESEA in the impacted area and explain
how it will maintain its current performance.


mailto:RESEA@commerce.fl.gov

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 10 of 15

b. Rescheduling Appointments

Participants who make a request to reschedule their initial appointment must be
allowed to do so. The appointment must be rescheduled in the event calendar
in Employ Florida and completed within 30 calendar days of the originally
scheduled date. LWDB staff must advise participants that failure to complete
the appointment within the allotted 30 days may adversely impact their benefits.
LWDB staff must also advise participants that they will not be permitted to
reschedule their appointment after the 30-day period has passed, unless
extenuating circumstance? occur, and approval is granted by FloridaCommerce
staff.

LWDBs must allow customers who receive a disqualification through the RA
process to reschedule their appointment. Once those customers complete the
rescheduled appointment, LWDB staff must submit an email to:
RESEA@commerce.fl.gov to notify FloridaCommerce of the completion. The
email must include the participant’s name, state ID, date appointment was
completed and notification that the participant was disqualified and rescheduled
due to the disqualification.

LWDB staff must reschedule customers through the event calendar in Employ
Florida. LWDB staff must enter a case note into Employ Florida to document
the reason for the reschedule, and any additional details to support the
rescheduling. Note: Participants may access other career services at any time,
regardless to whether they complete their RESEA appointment.

c. Exemptions

If a participant fails to attend an RESEA appointment or notify the LWDB of
an exemption prior to an appointment, then staff must record “no show” in
Employ Florida and document the exemption in the event calendar. If an
exemption is recognized after an appointment, then staff must case note the
exemption. Following are exemption reasons that may be applied to RA
claimants selected for RESEA:

1) Persons who are attached to regular jobs.

2) Persons who are temporarily unemployed due to lack of work and have
a fixed or approximate return-to-work date within six weeks.

3) Persons who are non-Florida residents.

2 An extenuating circumstance is an action that is beyond the participant’s control, e.g. death in the
immediate family, natural disaster, unexpected office closure, etc.


mailto:RESEA@commerce.fl.gov

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 11 of 15

4) Persons who are in training approved by FloridaCommerce RA staff,
including WIOA.

5) Persons who have to appear for jury duty screening and/or performing
the service of jury duty, as evidenced by documentation from the court.

6) Persons who are union members who customarily obtain employment
through a union hiring hall. The career center staff must obtain from the
participant and document the union hiring hall local number.

7) Persons who are unemployed as a result of a temporary layoff or who
are claiming benefits under an approved short-time compensation plan.

8) Persons who are unable to complete the online work registration due to
illiteracy, physical or mental impairment, a legal prohibition from using
a computer, or a language impediment. If a person is exempted from the
online work registration, then the filing of his or her claim constitutes
registration for work.

d. Reporting Employment

When a participant reports employment before, during or after any RESEA
appointment, the LWDB must verify and record the employment in Employ
Florida with the service code for Obtained Employment. LWDB staff must not
require a participant who is working full time to participate in an RESEA
appointment. The participant must be marked as a “no show” with reason of
“employment.”

6. Integration With Other Workforce Programs

One of the statutory goals of the RESEA program is to serve as an entry point for
individuals receiving RA into other workforce system partner programs. LWDBs
must support this goal by ensuring that the RESEA program is integrated into the
workforce system broadly to enable participants’ access to the full range of services
offered through the one-stop delivery system. RESEA must supplement rather than
supplant current reemployment activities provided by the workforce system.

Participants who are deemed unlikely to return to a previous industry or occupation
indicated as declining are also qualified to receive WIOA Dislocated Worker (DW)
services.

7. Staffing Requirement

LWDBs must use state merit staff to provide Wagner-Peyser Act Employment
Service (ES) services. Employment Services include, but are not limited to:

a. Job search assistance;



Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 12 of 15

Career counseling;

Job listings;

Job placement assistance;
Reemployment assistance services;
Recruitment services;

Labor market information;
Training referrals.

S moe a0 o

There is no merit staffing requirement for providing RESEA services. RESEA may
be provided by any appropriately trained staff. The RESEA services may be
delivered by qualified and trained merit staff, WIOA staff or other career center
staff. However, LWDBs must ensure that staff providing RESEA services have
attended and received sufficient training from RA staff before conducting the
eligibility review and making referrals to RA merit staff for adjudication. Training
will be provided no less than annually by FloridaCommerce, and LWDBs will
receive advance notification of training dates to allow time to plan for staff
attendance.

Decisions regarding RA eligibility determinations and redeterminations resulting
from issues identified through RESEA participation must be made by RA merit
staff only.

Local Operating Procedures (LOPs)

Local Operating Procedures (LOPs) help local areas further define and clarify how
programs will operate locally and are unique to each LWDB and must be publicly
posted. LOPs govern approaches to the implementation of the RESEA program and
must specifically address the roles and responsibilities of the LWDB staff required
for the successful outcome of the program. LOPs guide how LWDBs operationalize
policies related to the services required for the RESEA program, and it must align
with this policy. Each LWDB must develop LOPs that at a minimum:

1) Establish standardized procedures on the method the local area will use to
conduct the initial appointment, e.g., remote, in person, telephonic, virtual,
and/or hybrid. Procedures must be customer focused.

2) Provide comprehensive, customer-driven, and seamless services that offers
services to the participants.

3) Establish a process to identify better strategies and practices for successful
outcomes of participants.

4) Outline the local process for rescheduling customers who missed their
initial appointment and were subsequently disqualified for benefits by RA.

5) Outline the strategies for programmatic implementation and usage tracking
of the CLIFF Dashboard as a component of the local area’s case
management model. Additional guidance specific to the CLIFF Dashboard
is provided in Policy 2023.06.07.A.5.



https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Career-Ladder-Identifier-and-Financial-Forecaster-CLIFF-Strategy-Policy.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Career-Ladder-Identifier-and-Financial-Forecaster-CLIFF-Strategy-Policy.pdf

VI

VII.

VIII.

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 13 of 15

IMPLEMENTATION

Services and activities provided under WIOA must be monitored no less than annually for
compliance with WIOA requirements by FloridaCommerce pursuant to WIOA sec. 185(c).
FloridaCommerce will monitor the requirements outlined in this policy and LOPs.
Additionally, LWDBs must establish local monitoring policies and procedures that include
monitoring of eligibility and enrollment activities, to include the adult statutory priority to
ensure that all parties are, and remain in, compliance with federal and state laws, as well
as state and local policies and procedures.

LWDBs must ensure service providers agree to cooperate with monitoring requirements
conducted by the state and/or LWDB and adhere to all other applicable local, state, and
federal rules and regulations.

DEFINITIONS

1. No Show — Means a participant selected for RESEA participation did not attend or
reschedule their appointment.

2. Participant - An individual who is determined eligible to participate in the program
and receives a service funded by the program in either a physical location
(CareerSource Florida Network Career Center or affiliate site) or remotely through
electronic technologies.

3. Pool — The complete list of RA participants per career center in each local area who
available to be placed on the RESEA roster for participation in the RESEA program.

4. Result — Means to enter the outcome of a participant as attended or no show for a
RESEA appointment.

AUTHORITIES

Public Law 103-152

Public Law 115-123 Bipartisan Budget Act of 2018

Social Security Act (SSA) Title 03; Section 306

Unemployment Insurance Program Letter (UIPL) 13-94, UIPL No. 13-21., UIPL 10-22,
UIPL 02-23, UIPL 08-24

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 08-22. TEGL 11-23

Training and Employment Notice 10-23 - Release of WP Staffing Final Rule



https://uscode.house.gov/statutes/pl/103/152.pdf
https://uscode.house.gov/statutes/pl/115/123.pdf
https://www.ssa.gov/OP_Home/ssact/title03/0306.htm
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/unemployment-insurance-program-letter-no-13-94
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/unemployment-insurance-program-letter-no-13-21
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/unemployment-insurance-program-letter-no-10-22
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/uipl-no-02-23
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/uipl-08-24
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/tegl-08-22
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/tegl-11-23
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/ten-10-23
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/ten-10-23

IX.

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework
Policy Number TBD
Page 14 of 15

Florida Statutes, Chapter 443

ATTACHMENTS

RESEA Notification Letter

Menu of Possible Work Search Activities
RESOURCES

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment RESEA Fact Sheet

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment RESEA Grants

Worker Profiling and Reemployment Services WPRS



http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0443/0443ContentsIndex.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0443/0443ContentsIndex.html
https://oui.doleta.gov/unemploy/docs/factsheet/RESEA_FactSheet.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/american-job-centers/RESEA
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/american-job-centers/worker-profiling-remployment-services

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment Program Design and Framework

Policy Number TBD
Page 15 of 15
Attachment One
Menu of Possible Work Search Activities
1. Creating a reemployment plan (EDP/ISS/IEP). | 2. Creating a resume and/or uploading resumes to
an online job board.
3. Registering for work with: 4. Using online career tools, such as:
e State’s labor exchange system, currently e Job match advisors,
Employ Florida e  Other national job boards, or
e Placement firms, e  MySkills MyFuture.
e Temporary work agencies, or
e Educational institutions that have
placement offices.
5. Logging on and looking for work: 6. Using reemployment services in one-stop
e In the state’s labor exchange, currently career centers, such as:
Employ Florida or e Obtaining and using labor market and
e In any other online job matching system, career information,

e.g. Monster, Indeed, USAjobs. e Participating in RESEA, when selected,
Participating in skills assessment for
occupational matching,

e Participating in instructional workshops
(resume, interviewing, job searching, etc.),
or
e Participating in other activities/specialized
services (e.g., job clubs, job fairs, etc.).
7. Completing job applications for employers that | 8. Applying for and/or participating in:
have (or are reasonably expected to have) job e Partner-sponsored reemployment services,
openings or following through on job referrals or
or job development attempts, as directed by e  Non-WIOA-related/sponsored training.
workforce center staff.
Example: Digital literacy, GED, or ESL
training.
e The following conditions must be met:
e  Must be job-related, and
e Participants must remain available
for work.
9. Creating a personal user profile on a |10. Participating in work-related networking
professional networking site. events. (i.e. job clubs, industry association
events).
11. Making in-person visits to employers that have | 12. Going on interviews with employers (virtually
or are reasonably expected to have job or in-person).
openings.



http://www.employflorida.com/
https://www.myskillsmyfuture.org/
http://www.employflorida.com/
https://www.monster.com/
http://www.indeed.com/
http://www.usajobs.com/

RESEA PROGRAM DESIGN AND FRAMEWORK
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY DEVELOPMENT TRACKER

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Policy Name: Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment
(RESEA) Program Design and Framework

Policy Type: Programmatic — RESEA

Policy Rationale: RESEA policy replaces REA Policy ended in 2016

Date to Publish: May 22, 2025

B. PROJECT SUMMARY (Final Draft Includes Summary of Revisions)

Background and Executive Instructions: The Unemployment Insurance (Ul) program is a key
part of the public workforce system, providing benefits to individuals who lose their jobs through
no fault of their own and meet eligibility requirements. In 2005, the U.S. Department of Labor
(USDOL) initiated the Ul Reemployment and Eligibility Assessment (REA) pilot program to help
Ul claimants with reemployment and to prevent improper benefit payments. This program was
replaced by the Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessments (RESEA) program in
January 2016.

The RESEA program was permanently authorized by the Bipartisan Budget Act (BBA) of 2018,
which amended the Social Security Act (SSA). The program has four main purposes:

1. Improve employment outcomes for Reemployment Assistance (RA) claimants and
reduce the duration of RA receipt.

2. Strengthen program integrity by preventing improper RA payments.

3. Align with the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) to enhance service
delivery for job seekers.

4. Serve as an entry point for RA claimants into other workforce system partner programs.

This new policy developed by FloridaCommerce provides the Reemployment Services and
Eligibility Assessment (RESEA) program requirements and guidance to Local Workforce
Development Boards (LWDBs) and program service providers. CareerSource Florida conducted
a thorough review and the policy was sent to all local workforce development boards for
consultation.

C. OVERVIEW OF CHANGES

Substantive Change Location Reason
Key Objectives added. Section Il. Key Objectives Key Objectives serve as guiding
(Page 1) principles that define the strategic

and operational goals of the policy.
This helps ensure clarity,
consistency, and effectiveness by
outlining what the policy aims to
achieve. Key objectives identify
services that must be provided to




RESEA participants by LWDB staff
including aligning practice with
required performance metrics
described in the RESEA State Plan
(WIOA Combined Plan, Section VII).

Measurable Performance
Outcomes including WIOA
Primary Indicators of
Performance and LWDB Letter
Grades added.

Outcomes for the RESEA
Program are:

A. Number of RESEA
initial appointments scheduled
and completed.

B. Number of No Shows
successfully rescheduled and
completed.

C. Number of customers
referred to and co-enrolled in
partner programs.

Section Ill. Measurable
Performance Outcomes,
(Page 1-2)

Measurable outcomes serve as key
indicators of success and
effectiveness allowing the SWDB,
LWDBs and stakeholders to assess
whether the policy achieves its
intended purpose.

FloridaCommerce will use data
from the calendar years 2024 and
2025 to establish a baseline for
RESEA performance metrics.
Performance metrics will be based
on RESEA appointment
attendance, no-show reschedules
and partner co-enroliment.
Performance

Requires use of the OAS
wizard in Employ Florida to be
fully completed by LWDB staff
during the initial RESEA
appointment and for staff to
review results of the OAS with
participant.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, A. Program
Operations, b. Objective
Assessment Summary (OAS)
(Page 5-6)

Use of the OAS wizard in Employ
Florida streamlines the work
registration process for job seekers
and employment assistance
claimants. The wizard helps
individuals complete necessary
steps such as  background
information, resume creation, and
eligibility verification. The OAS
wizard guides users through the
registration process, making it
easier for them to comply with state
requirements and connect with
potential job opportunities.

Requires use of state approved
tool is the Career ladder
Identifier and Financial
Forecaster (CLIFF)

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, A. Program
Operations, c. Employability
Development Plan (Page 6)

Board approved Career Ladder
Identifier and Financial Forecaster
(CLIFF) Strategy allows one-stop
center staff to assist Floridians
(including reemployment assistance
recipients) in visualizing how
returning to work or upskilling to a
higher-paying  occupation could
impact their future earnings and
public benefits as their household
progresses along the path to self-
sufficiency.

The requirement to upload the
completed ERP form to the
case file is changed from 24
hours to “one business day.”

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, A. Program
Operations, f. Eligibility
Review Process (ERP) (Page
7)

Updated at the request of LWDBSs to
provide clarity that this requirement
excludes weekends and holidays.

Language updated in policy to
require a reason for

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, 5. b.

FloridaCommerce provided and will
continue to provide a training call




rescheduling appointments and
to allow the inclusion of other
supporting
information/documentation.

This section does not require
staff to distinguish exceptions.

Participants who make a
request to reschedule their
initial appointment must be
allowed to do so. The
appointment must be
rescheduled in the event
calendar in Employ Florida and
completed within 30 calendar
days of the originally scheduled
date.

LWDB staff must advise
participants that they will not be
permitted to reschedule their
appointment after the 30-day
period has passed, unless
extenuating circumstances
occur, and approval is granted
by FloridaCommerce staff.

Rescheduling Appointments
(Page 10)

on this process during the monthly
RESEA workgroup.
FloridaCommerce will distribute a
guidance document on this process
to the local areas.

The goal is to provide the services
outlined in the mandated initial
appointment. Participants must be
allowed to reschedule their
appointment to meet the RESEA
requirements.

Rescheduling feature in Employ
Florida identifies the date and time
of rescheduled appointments.

The letter participants receive
states that the initial appointment is
mandatory. Participants marked as
“no show” will become disqualified
until they attend their appointment.

If the ERP identifies that the
participant is unable to work/look for
work, an eligibility issue may be
identified, which may lead to
disqualification for a period of time.

Section VI. Implementation
added.

LWDBs must establish local
monitoring policies and
procedures that include
monitoring of eligibility and
enrollment activities, to include
the adult statutory priority to
ensure that all parties are, and
remain in, compliance with
federal and state laws, as well
as state and local policies and
procedures.

LWDBs must ensure service
providers agree to cooperate
with monitoring requirements
conducted by the state and/or
LWDB and adhere to all other
applicable local, state, and
federal rules and regulations.

Section VI (Page 13)

Pursuant to WIOA sec. 185(c), this
section requires FloridaCommerce
to monitor services and activities
provided under WIOA no less than
annually for compliance with WIOA
requirements.




D. LEGAL REFERENCES AND APPLICABLE GUIDANCE

Public Law 103-152

Public Law 115-123 Bipartisan Budget Act of 2018

Social Security Act (SSA) Title 03; Section 306

Unemployment Insurance Program Letter (UIPL) 13-94, UIPL No. 13-21., UIPL 10-22, UIPL 02-
23, UIPL 08-24

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 08-22, TEGL 11-23

Training and Employment Notice 10-23 - Release of WP Staffing Final Rule

Florida Statutes, Chapter 443



https://uscode.house.gov/statutes/pl/103/152.pdf
https://uscode.house.gov/statutes/pl/115/123.pdf
https://www.ssa.gov/OP_Home/ssact/title03/0306.htm
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/unemployment-insurance-program-letter-no-13-94
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/unemployment-insurance-program-letter-no-13-21
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/unemployment-insurance-program-letter-no-10-22
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/uipl-no-02-23
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/uipl-no-02-23
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/uipl-08-24
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/tegl-08-22
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/tegl-11-23
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEN/2023/TEN%2010-23/52698-Wagner-Peyser%20Act%20Staffing%20Final%20Rule%20TEN.11.20.23%20clean%20REVISED%20WITH%20TITLE%20CORRECTION%2011.24.23%20%28Accessible%20pdf%29.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEN/2023/TEN%2010-23/52698-Wagner-Peyser%20Act%20Staffing%20Final%20Rule%20TEN.11.20.23%20clean%20REVISED%20WITH%20TITLE%20CORRECTION%2011.24.23%20%28Accessible%20pdf%29.pdf
https://www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2022/Chapter443

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025
Action Item 5
Approved
Disapproved

Action Item 5

REVISIONS TO CAREERSOURCE FLORIDA
WORKFORCE POLICY 009 ON-THE-JOB TRAINING

The primary responsibilities of the State Workforce Development Board (SWDB) are
described in s. 445.004(6)(a)-(i), F.S., 20 CFR 679.100 and 679.130. The SWDB is
responsible for assisting the state in aligning and enhancing the capacity and
performance of the workforce development system and achieving the state’s strategic
and operational vision and goals as outlined in the State’s approved Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Plan. The SWDB must approve policies for
implementation by the CareerSource Florida network including those that impact local
workforce development boards (LWDB).

CareerSource Florida Administrative Policy 009 — On-the-Job Training was
implemented in May 2000 to provide program requirements to LWDBs for On-the-Job
(OJT) training, an “earn and learn” model where eligible participants may upgrade,
retool and increase employability skills. In February 2020, the SWDB approved
revisions to this policy to provide guidance to LWDBs to deploy work-based training
strategies for WIOA-eligible participants. In February 2025, the SWDB approved
revisions to CareerSource Florida Workforce Policy 100 — Work-Based Training and
Work-based Learning Opportunities. Information in Workforce Policy 009 — On-the-Job
Training was duplicative and removed from this policy.

CareerSource Florida and the Florida Department of Commerce (FloridaCommerce)
worked with executive directors and staff of LWDBs to revise CareerSource Florida
Workforce Policy 009 — On-the-Job Training. The revised policy establishes guidelines
and procedures for LWDBs and local workforce development regions to implement and
sustain OJT to support the needs of businesses and improve employment outcomes for
participants.

The revised policy requires LWDBs to provide OJT under a written contract using the
standardized template approved by the SWDB and distributed to LWDBs by
FloridaCommerce. LWDBs must develop local operating procedures (LOP) that govern
the eligibility and training process. The addition of key objectives and measurable
outcomes serve as guiding principles that define the strategic and operational goals of
the policy, help ensure clarity, consistency, and effectiveness by outlining indicators of
success and effectiveness.



http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View%20Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=445.004&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.004.html
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.130

FOR CONSIDERATION

e Approve revisions to CareerSource Florida Workforce Policy 009 — On-the-
Job Training.

Attachments:

e On-The-Job Training Workforce Policy Development Tracker




CareerSource

V FLORIDA POLICY
NUMBER
009
Workforce Policy
Title: | On-the-Job Training
Policy Type: | Programmatic
Program: | Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
Effective: | 05/30/2000 Revised: | TBD

I1.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy establishes guidelines and procedures for local workforce development boards
(LWDBSs) and local workforce development regions to implement and sustain On-the-Job Training
(OJT) to support the needs of businesses and improve employment outcomes for participants.
LWDBs must describe these programs in their Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)
local plans and ensure compliance with WIOA, the Trade Adjustment Assistance Program (TAA),

U.S. Department of Labor (USDOL) regulations, Florida Law, guidance, and state requirements.

KEY OBJECTIVES

Identify required elements of On-the-Job Training.
Ensure all LWDB’s utilize standardized OJT contracts without unapproved edits.
Support employers with On-the-Job Training.
Align practice with required performance metrics.
Enhance workforce skills and employability.
Support employers in workforce development.
Promote in-demand occupations.




II1.

Iv.

e Facilitate co-enrollment in eligible programs, effective training and supervision with eligible
training providers, employers, and other stakeholders including WIOA combined planning
partners.

e Monitor and evaluate program effectiveness.

e Expand opportunities to use OJT to support apprenticeships.

e Ensure compliance and accountability.

MEASURABLE PERFORMANCE OUTCOMES

Consistent with the requirements in Section II of Florida’s WIOA Combined Plan, performance
outcomes associated with this policy include:

Employment (Second Quarter after Exit).
Employment (Fourth Quarter after Exit).
Median Earnings (Second Quarter after Exit).
Credential Attainment Rate.

Measurable Skill Gains.

Effectiveness in Serving Employers.

Details specific to targets associated with the performance outcomes above can be found in Florida’s
WIOA Combined Plan and in each LWDB’s local negotiated performance targets.

BACKGROUND

Among the various training programs available through WIOA for eligible participants, OJT helps
employers cover the costs of training new employees. OJT allows participants to earn while they
learn, acquire transferable skills, and enhance their financial independence. OJT is uniquely suited
to help individuals facing employment barriers to gain a foothold in the workforce. Individuals must
meet WIOA eligibility criteria to participate in OJT programs.

Co-enrolling WIOA participants in multiple programs, including OJT, provides comprehensive
support by using resources from different programs to meet the needs of job seekers. This approach
allows participants to receive job training and educational services at the same time, improving
employment outcomes and offering a more complete set of services tailored to their needs.

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The requirements of Workforce Policy (WP) 100: Work-Based Training and Work-Based Learning
Opportunities are incorporated in this policy.

Consistent with 20 CFR 680.700, OJT is a work-based training that provides WIOA-eligible
participants occupational skills training essential to the performance of a specific job. OJT provides
reimbursement to the employer for up to 50% of the participant’s wage rate for the costs of training
and supervision related to training. LWDBs shall develop strategies to use this training method to
address critical workforce needs, enhance skills of eligible participants and to aid eligible employers
in attaining a qualified, skilled workforce with competencies needed to meet the employer’s needs.


https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/09a.-Workforce-Policy-100-Work-Based-Training-and-Work-Based-Learning-Opportunities.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/09a.-Workforce-Policy-100-Work-Based-Training-and-Work-Based-Learning-Opportunities.pdf

On-the-Job Training is training conducted by an employer that is provided to a paid participant
while engaged in productive work in a job that:

1. Provides knowledge or skills essential to the full and adequate performance of the job.

2. Is made available through a program that provides reimbursement to the employer of up to 50
percent of the wage rate of the participant, although LWDBs may increase the wage
reimbursement level above 50 percent up to 75 percent under circumstances described in
subsection G.1, below.

3. Islimited in duration as appropriate to the occupation for which the participant is being trained,
taking into account the content of the training, the prior work experience of the participant, and
the service strategy of the participant, as appropriate. “Limited in duration” refers to the time
required for a participant to become proficient in the occupation for which the training is being
provided. LWDBs should use information provided through O*Net, including Job Zones and
Specific Vocational Preparation ranges, taking into account the participant’s skills and
experience.

1. Participant Eligibility

1. Participants must meet WIOA and/or TAA eligibility and have been determined to need
training services'. LWDBs must apply the priority of services requirements for individuals
receiving training services through local WIOA Adult formula funds in accordance with
Administrative Policy 105 and 118, as applicable.

2. Individual Service Strategy (ISS)/Individual Employment Plan (IEP)?

Prior to receiving services, the individual employment plan (IEP) or individual service
strategy (ISS), must be developed. The ISS/IEP is a living document that must be reviewed
regularly by front-line staff and adjusted throughout participation, jointly with the
participant. The details of the OJT assignment must be incorporated into the ISS and/or I[EP
and must include the participant’s details regarding the OJT assignment, as appropriate.

When enrolling a participant in OJT, LWDB staff must consider:

The skill requirements of the occupation.
The academic and occupational skill level of the participant;
Prior work experience; and

/e e o

The participant’s service strategy.
Additionally, OJT may not be suitable for In-School-Youth (ISY) who may be enrolled in
secondary school. However, OJT may be an appropriate strategy for eligible youth when

the need is identified by the objective assessment and included in the service strategy.

3. Employed Workers

! For adults and dislocated workers, see Administrative Policy 122. For youth, see Administrative Policy 095.
220 CFR 680.170; see definitions in Section V.



https://floridajobs.org/local-workforce-development-board-resources/policy-and-guidance/administrative-policies2
https://floridajobs.org/local-workforce-development-board-resources/policy-and-guidance/administrative-policies2

OJT contracts may be written for eligible employed workers only when one of the following

occurs:

a. The employee is not earning a self-sufficient wage or wages comparable to or higher
than wages from previous employment, as determined by the LWDB policy.

b. The OJT relates to the introduction of new technologies, introduction to new production
or service procedures, upgrading to new jobs that require additional skills, workplace
literacy, or other appropriate purposes identified by the LWDB in the local operating
procedures (LOPs).

2. Employer and Occupation Eligibility
1. Employer eligibility

LWDBs must enact policies to ensure that they do not enter into an OJT contract with an
employer who has exhibited a pattern of failing to provide OJT participants with continued
long-term employment as regular employees with wages and benefits and working
conditions at the same level and to the same extent as other similarly situated employees.

2. Occupation eligibility

The LWDB is encouraged to place participants in OJT for occupations that are in demand
in the local area.

Occupations or job types that are not suitable for OJT are occupations that are:
a. Based on commission® ;
b. Seasonal in nature; or
c. Less than full-time®.

3. OJT Contract Requirements

LWDBs must ensure that all OJT is provided under a written contract with an employer using the
standardized contract template approved by CareerSource Florida and distributed to LWDBs by
FloridaCommerce.

Using the template ensures consistency and compliance with organizational standards across the
network and is supportive of employer engagement across the system. LWDBs may not alter or
amend the language in the template. Any supplemental agreement language required to be added by
the LWDB or local business may be accomplished through a locally created addendum to the
agreement. Any such addendums will be subject to compliance monitoring. Failure to use the
approved template may result in required corrective action.

When developing the local area’s OJT strategy, the LWDB should use a readily available
occupational information source, such as O*NET, or any other occupation classification model used
to determine the appropriate duration of training. The duration of OJT for each participant must be

3 Salary based on sales and not an hourly wage.
4 Part-time is considered 20 hours per week or less/Full-time is considered 32 hours or more.


http://www.floridajobs.org/workforce-statistics/publications-and-reports/labor-market-information-reports/regional-demand-occupations-list

based on the amount of time it takes to learn the job. In determining the appropriate length of
training, the academic and occupational skill level and prior work experience of the participant must
also be taken into consideration. The length for the OJT must be included in the OJT contract with
the employer and the participant’s ISS/IEP. LWDBs must describe how they will define the duration
of OJT in the LOPs. LWDBs must ensure OJT contracts do not exceed 12 months, except when a
longer duration is necessary for occupations requiring extended training, such as registered
apprenticeships. If an OJT exceeds 12 months, the LWDB must document the justification. To
justify an OJT exceeding 12 months, staff must demonstrate that the participant’s training needs,
learning pace or specific circumstances require a longer duration. Staff should consider:

e Complex or Specialized skills — whether the job requires highly specialized or complex
skills that cannot be acquired within 12 months

e Individual Learning Needs/Disabilities — whether the participant may require more time to
grasp certain skills/concepts and acquire competencies

e Employer Needs — whether the employer requires a longer period to ensure that the
participant is fully trained, especially when there are highly specialized or complex skills
that must be acquired (i.e. apprenticeship)

When determining the appropriate OJT duration, LWDBs should use occupational data sources like
O*NET or other classification models. The training length should reflect the time needed for the
participant to gain proficiency, considering:

e Job-specific skill requirements
e Participant’s prior work experience and education
e Individual Service Strategy (ISS) or Individual Employment Plan (IEP)

The OJT duration must be specified in the OJT contract and aligned with the LWDB’s LOPs.
4. OJT Training Plan

The OJT training plan is a formal document detailing the structured job training and must
provide participants with a combination of instruction in observable, and measurable job-
readiness skills, general employment competencies and occupational skills. OJT may be
combined with other career and training services, if appropriate. LWDBs must ensure that each
OJT training plan is developed based on the participant’s ISS/IEP, and the occupation the
participant has selected. The OJT Training Plan must be agreed upon and signed by the
participant, employer and the LWDB.

5. OJT In-Person Worksite Monitoring Visit

LWDBs must conduct an in-person monitoring visit to each worksite where an OJT participant
is placed during the participant’s OJT participation and at least once per year. The purpose of
the in-person monitoring visit is to assess the appropriateness of the site and to ensure that it
meets all the terms of the worksite agreement. The monitoring site visit must be recorded in a
monitoring tool and must include the date of the visit, the name of the LWDB staff member who
conducted the visit, names of participant(s) and supervisor(s), and the outcome of the visit. If a
LWDB identifies any concerns with the site, the information must be recorded in the monitoring



tool. LWDB staff must ensure that all identified findings are resolved in order to continue the
OJT and documented, including the steps taken, results and timeline.

6. Payments to Employers, Wages and Participant Hours

Payments to employers for OJT must be made based on the OJT contract and proper
documentation of time worked, payroll records, and training accomplishments. OJT payments
are compensation for the employers’ “extraordinary costs” associated with training participants
and potentially lower productivity of the participants while in OJT.

1. Wage Reimbursement Rate

LWDBs may adopt policies to increase the wage reimbursement level above 50 percent up
to 75 percent. Such policies must describe factors to be used when deciding on an increase
and must include the following:

a. The characteristics of the participants, taking into consideration whether they are
individuals with barriers to employment.

b. The size’ of the employer, with an emphasis on small businesses.

c. The quality of employer-provided training and advancement opportunities (for
example, if the OJT contract is for an in-demand occupation and will lead to an industry-
recognized credential); and

d. Other factors the LWDB may determine appropriate (for example, the number of
employees participating in the training, the wage and benefit levels of the employees,
and the relation of the training to the competitiveness of the participant.

2. Wage Reimbursement Restrictions
The LWDB must ensure WIOA funds are not used to pay for the following:

Paid or unpaid holidays.

Sick leave.

Vacation.

Overtime hours.

Fringe benefits; and/or

Work performed outside the OJT contract.

moe oo o

3. Record Retention.

The LWDB and employers must retain records for each OJT employer and OJT participant
for a minimum of five years. Records regarding the OJT assignment may be requested by
FloridaCommerce, USDOL, and other state and federal agencies for monitoring purposes.

5 This refers to the number of employees.



7. Reverse Referral

Under certain circumstances OJT initiated through “reverse referral” may be permitted. Reverse
referral occurs when an individual is referred to the career center from a prospective employer
(under either formal or informal agreement) for assessment as to whether the individual meets
the employer’s hiring requirements for a specific position and is eligible and suitable for an
OJT. Employers must not make or have made a hiring decision prior to the participant becoming
eligible for the OJT program through the local career center. Development of an OJT for an
individual referred by the employer may be permitted only when:

1. The individual progresses through the intake process as with any other career center
customer and meets all requirements for eligibility as specified in this policy.

2. The completed ISS/IEP indicates training is necessary for the individual to perform the work
associated with the position for which the employer has an opening.

3. The employer meets all the eligibility requirements under this policy; and

4. The employer provides assurance that the individual has not previously been employed by
the employer in the same or similar position.

8. General Guidelines

LWDBs must ensure that restrictions listed in WIOA section 181 and 20 CFR 680.840 are in
effect for any OJT contract. Additionally, LWDB’s must ensure employers operating under an
OJT contract are documented as such within Salesforce.

9. Registered Apprenticeship Programs and Pre-Apprenticeships

LWDBs are encouraged to partner with registered apprenticeship programs (RAPs) and pre-
apprenticeship providers as part of a career pathway for job seekers and as part of a job-driven
strategy for employers and industries. For more details about RAPs and pre-apprenticeships,
see Workforce Policy 100: Work-Based Training and Work-Based Learning Opportunities.

10. Local Operating Procedures

Local Operating Procedures (LOPs) help local areas further define and clarify how programs
will be operated locally and are unique to each LWDB. LOPs govern the eligibility and training
process and must specifically discuss the assessment tool used to determine a participant
eligible for services.

LWDBs must develop LOPs that:

Clarify and define the eligibility criteria for OJT.

Govern and establish criteria, and eligibility for employed workers to participate in OJT.
Define the criteria used to determine when an employed worker is eligible for OJT.
Govern the eligibility, suitability, and training process, which must specifically discuss the
initial assessment tool used to determine a participant eligible for services.

5. Details the process of reverse referrals.

b S


https://floridajobs.org/local-workforce-development-board-resources/policy-and-guidance/administrative-policies2

VL.

VIIL.

6. Incorporate requirements of this policy and define how the OJT program will be
implemented in the local area, including factors to be used when deciding on an increase in
wage reimbursement rate.

7. Define the criteria for extending the duration of an OJT beyond 12 months.

8. Are publicly posted.

11. State and Local Monitoring

Services and activities provided under WIOA must be monitored annually for compliance with
WIOA requirements by FloridaCommerce pursuant to Section 185(c), WIOA.

FloridaCommerce will monitor the requirements outlined in this policy and local operating
procedures. Additionally, LWDBs must establish local monitoring policies and procedures that
include, at minimum:

Roles of the employer, participant, and LWDB staff.

1. Local monitoring procedures of work-based training employers and worksites to ensure
that all parties are, and remain in, compliance with federal and state laws, as well as state
and local policies and procedures. LWDBs should include in the monitoring process visits
to the worksite and interviews of participants and supervisors by individuals who are not
responsible for the management of the worksite agreement or the case management of
participants at the worksite; and

2. Validation of skills and competency attainment for participants.

LWDBs must ensure participating employers agree to cooperate with monitoring requirements
conducted by the state, federal government, and LWDB and adhere to all applicable local, state
and federal rules and regulations.

IMPLEMENTATION

e This policy and any subsequent changes become effective upon issuance.

e LWDBs shall implement this policy by training LWDB staff on the updated OJT policy,
developing/updating LOPs that involve engaging employers, and providing comprehensive
participant assessments and support.

e LWDBs, CareerSource Florida and FloridaCommerce shall collect feedback as appropriate and
use information that may include customer satisfaction surveys and input from Education and
Industry Consortiums to improve how OJT and work-based training programs are used
statewide to ensure high performance, accurate reporting, and documentation.

¢ FloridaCommerce shall monitor this policy, local policies, and track performance outcomes to
ensure compliance with regulations.

AUTHORITIES

Public Law 113-128. Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

20 CFR 680.700 - 680.840



https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/chapter-V/part-680/subpart-F?toc=1

20 CFR 683.400

20 CFR 683.410

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 19-16

2 CFR Appendix II to Part 200, Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under
Federal Awards

Chapter 445, Florida Statutes

CareerSource Florida Strategic Policy 2021.12.09.A.1 — Comprehensive Employment Education
and Training Strategy

CareerSource Florida Workforce Policy — Work-Based Training and Work-Based Learning
Opportunities

VIII. HISTORY

Date Description
TBD Updated policy to align with CareerSource Florida Work-Based Training and
Work-Based Learning Opportunities Administrative Policy.
02/20/2020 Approved by CareerSource Florida Board of Directors.
06/11/2019 Revised and issued by the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity.
05/30/2000 Issued by the Agency for Workforce Innovation. This policy supersedes and
replaces LET BJT 90-135.

IX. ATTACHMENT

On-the-Job Training Agreement Template



https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/chapter-V/part-683/subpart-D/section-683.400
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/chapter-V/part-683/subpart-D/section-683.410
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-guidance-letter-no-19-16
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/part-200/appendix-Appendix%20II%20to%20Part%20200
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/part-200/appendix-Appendix%20II%20to%20Part%20200
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445ContentsIndex.html
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/Comprehensive-Employment-Education-and-Training-Strategy.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/Comprehensive-Employment-Education-and-Training-Strategy.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/09a.-Workforce-Policy-100-Work-Based-Training-and-Work-Based-Learning-Opportunities.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/09a.-Workforce-Policy-100-Work-Based-Training-and-Work-Based-Learning-Opportunities.pdf
https://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/final_ojt-agreement.pdf

ON-THE-JOB TRAINING WORKFORCE
POLICY DEVELOPMENT TRACKER

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Policy Name: Workforce Policy 009 -- On-the-Job Training

Policy Type: Programmatic — WIOA-General

Policy Rationale: Revised to align with Workforce Policy 100 — Work-Based
Training and Work-Based Learning Opportunities

Date to Publish: May 22, 2025

B. PROJECT SUMMARY

CareerSource Florida Workforce Policy 009 — On-the-Job Training establishes guidelines and
procedures for local workforce development boards (LWDBs) and local workforce development
regions to implement and sustain On-the-Job Training (OJT) to support the needs of businesses
and improves employment outcomes for participants. Information in the OJT Policy was
duplicative of board approved Workforce Policy 100 — Work-Based Training and Work-Based
Learning Opportunities and was removed.

Issuing technical assistance as an alternative to formal policy was considered. CareerSource
Florida and FloridaCommerce elected to proceed with actionable and monitorable workforce

policy.

CareerSource Florida and the FloridaCommerce worked with executive directors and staff of
local workforce development boards, and CareerSource Florida leadership to align the updated
policy with the law and existing policies.

C. OVERVIEW OF CHANGES

Substantive Change Location Reason
Key Objectives added. Section Il. Key Objectives Key Objectives serve as guiding
(Pages 1-2) principles that define the strategic

and operational goals of the policy.
This helps ensure clarity,
consistency, and effectiveness by
outlining what the policy aims to

achieve.
Measurable Performance Section lll. Measurable Measurable outcomes serve as key
Outcomes added Outcomes (Page 2) indicators of success and
consistent with the effectiveness allowing the SWDB,
requirements in Section Il of LWDBs and stakeholders to assess
Florida’s WIOA Combined Plan. whether the policy achieves its

intended purpose.
Details specific to targets
associated with the
performance outcomes can be
found in Florida’s Combined




Plan and in each LWDB'’s local
negotiated targets.

1. Participant Eligibility
Section Modified

This section describes
requirements for WIOA
participant eligibility, Individual
Service Strategies (ISS) and
Individual Employment Plans
(IEP), and OJT contracts
established for employed
workers.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, 1. Participant
Eligibility (Page 3-4)

Revisions consistent with WIOA, 20
CFR 680, 20 CFR 681, and 20 CFR
682. This aligns with CareerSource
Florida Workforce Policy 100 —
Work-Based Training and Work-
Based Learning Opportunities and
CareerSource Florida Policy 111 —
Priority of Services for Veterans and
Eligible Spouses.

Removes a requirement that
the occupation be listed on the
local Targeted Occupation List.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures 2. Employer and
Occupation Eligibility (Page
3)

The TOL policy specifically
excludes OJT. The reason for that is
that there can be some good one-
off positions where an eligible
participant can get a good job with
good wages (and maybe
transferable skills).

Requires OJT to be provided
under a written contract using
the standardized template
approved by CareerSource
Florida and distributed to
LWDBs by FloridaCommerce.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, 3. OJT Required
Contracts (Page 4)

This complies with the board
approved CareerSource Florida
Statewide Standardization of Tools
and Services Policy.

LWDBSs should use O*NET or
another occupation
classification model to
determine the appropriate
duration of training. The length
for the OJT must be included in
the OJT contract with the
employer and in the
participant’s individual Service
Strategy, Individual
Employment Plan.

Contracts must not exceed 12
months, except when a longer
duration is necessary for
occupations requiring extended
training, such as registered
apprenticeships. If an OJT
exceeds 12 months, the LWDB
must document the justification.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, 3. OJT Required
Contracts (Page 4-5)

Leveraging occupational
information sources, such as
O*NET and other systems, ensures
OJT strategies are grounded in
reliable and data-driven insights.

Consistent with 20 CFR, Part 680
Subpart F, policy language updated
to include considerations when
justifying and OJT contract beyond
12 months

LWDB’s must ensure employers
operating under an OJT
contract are documented as
such within Salesforce.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, 8. General
Guidelines, (Page 7)

Ensuring employers operating
under an OJT contract are
documented in Salesforce ensures
statewide access to information
about business stakeholders.

LWDBs must develop local
operating procedures (LOP)
that govern the eligibility and
training process.

Section V. Policies and
Procedures, 10. Local
Operating Procedures (Page
7)

LOPs help local areas provide
guidance for career center staff and
further define and clarify how
programs are operated locally.




Section VI. Implementation Section VI. Implementation This section identifies when policy
Section added. (Page 8) is effective, how LWDBs shall
implement policy, and how
CareerSource Florida and
FloridaCommerce will monitor
policy and track performance.

D. LEGAL REFERENCES AND APPLICABLE GUIDANCE

Public Law 113-128, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

2 CFR Appendix Il to Part 200, Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under
Federal Awards

20 CFR 680.700 - 680.840

20 CFR 683.400

20 CFR 683.410

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 19-16

Chapter 445, Florida Statutes

CareerSource Florida Strategic Policy 2021.12.09.A.1 — Comprehensive Employment Education
and Training Strategy

CareerSource Florida Workforce Policy 100 — Work-Based Training and Work-Based Learning
Opportunities



https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200/appendix-Appendix%20II%20to%20Part%20200
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200/appendix-Appendix%20II%20to%20Part%20200
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/chapter-V/part-680/subpart-F?toc=1
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/chapter-V/part-683/subpart-D/section-683.400
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/chapter-V/part-683/subpart-D/section-683.410
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEGL/2017/TEGL_19-16_acc.pdf
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?docn=3851
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?docn=3851
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?docn=3851
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445ContentsIndex.html
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Comprehensive-Employment-Education-and-Training-Policy.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Comprehensive-Employment-Education-and-Training-Policy.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/09a.-Workforce-Policy-100-Work-Based-Training-and-Work-Based-Learning-Opportunities.pdf
https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/09a.-Workforce-Policy-100-Work-Based-Training-and-Work-Based-Learning-Opportunities.pdf

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025

Action Item 6

Approved
Disapproved

Action Item 6

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ON-THE-JOB TRAINING
REIMBURSEMENT WAIVER REQUEST

The U.S. Department of Labor (USDOL) Secretary is granted certain waiver authority
under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) to promote workforce
system innovation and focus on outcomes. WIOA Section 189(i)(3)(A)(i) establishes the
limitations of the Secretary’s general waiver authority for WIOA Title |, subtitles A, B,
and E and the Wagner-Peyser Act Sections 8-10. USDOL may approve waivers for a
period of time shorter than the full life of the WIOA Combined State Plan, which will give
USDOL an opportunity to assess the State’s progress in meeting specific conditions of
the waiver.

USDOL review of waiver requests includes assessing alignment with the Governor’s
strategic vision for workforce services in Florida, USDOL priorities, state strategic goals,
quantifiable programmatic outcomes and WIOA populations affected by the waiver. At
the direction of the Executive Office of the Governor, the CareerSource Florida
professional team works with the Florida Department of Commerce (FloridaCommerce)
to evaluate opportunities for Florida's workforce system to request certain waivers from
USDOL.

Training and Employment Notice Letter (TEN) No. 25-24 was issued May 6, 2025 to
encourage state and local WIOA Title | grantees to leverage waivers that may increase
labor force participation and enhance worker productivity in response to the Presidential
Memorandum of January 20, 2025, titled, “Delivering Emergency Price Relief for
American Families and Defeating the Cost-of-Living Crisis.” All state and local grantees
are encouraged to request waivers as necessary, to ensure WIOA Funds are being
used effectively to increase labor force participation by drawing discouraged workers
into the labor force, and to upskill the workforce to enhance worker productivity.

In accordance with the Governor’s strategic vision for workforce services in Florida, The
Florida Department of Commerce (FloridaCommerce) and CareerSource Florida
request approval from the state workforce board to submit a waiver to USDOL



https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEN/2024/TEN%2025-24/TEN%2025-24%20%28Accessible%20PDF%29.pdf
https://www.whitehouse.gov/presidential-actions/2025/01/delivering-emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-the-cost-of-living-crisis/
https://www.whitehouse.gov/presidential-actions/2025/01/delivering-emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-the-cost-of-living-crisis/

requesting that the Secretary of Labor waive the requirements outlined in WIOA Section
134(c)(3)(H)(i) and 20 CFR 680.720(b). If approved, this waiver will increase the
percentage allowed for employer reimbursement for on-the-job training (OJT). Florida
currently allows an employer reimbursement of up to 50 percent of the wage rate of an
OJT participant, and up to 75 percent using the criteria in s. 680.730, if specific criteria
is met, for the extraordinary costs of providing the training and additional supervision
related to OJT.

FloridaCommerce and CareerSource Florida are seeking a waiver to increase the OJT
wage reimbursements up to 90 percent statewide and up to 100 percent for OJT
opportunities with businesses located in areas designated as Opportunity Zones or
residents within an Opportunity Zone. Opportunity Zones represent economically
distressed census tracts identified by state governors and certified by the U.S.
Department of the Treasury. Nationally, there are 8,764 Opportunity Zones, which are in
all 50 states, five territories and the District of Columbia. These communities have
historically faced significant barriers to economic growth and have often been
overlooked for investment and job creation. These areas continue to face chronic
underinvestment and disproportionately high barriers to employment. In Florida, there
are a total of 427 Qualified Opportunity Zones, covering every county in the state.
These Opportunity Zones equate to 40,292 business establishments, representing
936,691 jobs statewide.

Consistent with 20 CFR 679.410, 20 CFR 679.610, and 20 CFR 679.620 and
CareerSource Florida Workforce Policy G1 — State Workforce Development Board
Roles and Responsibilities, the CareerSource Florida Board of Directors must review,
approve, or consider all waiver requests.

If approved by the CareerSource Florida Board of Directors, Florida will include in its
WIOA Combined Plan, submitted to USDOL and the U.S. Department of Education in
March 2026, this waiver will allow Florida to align with its additional goals outlined in the
WIOA Combined Plan by:

1. Providing a targeted incentive to employers in Opportunity Zones to drive job
creation and improve access to work-based learning opportunities for job seekers
in need.

2. Addressing the talent pipeline shortages faced by many employers in Opportunity
Zones by ensuring participants have the skills and preparation needed to enter
the workforce and be contributing members of the local and State economy.

3. Attracting additional private investment in Opportunity Zones.

4. Expanding access to work-based learning in Opportunity Zones, particularly for
those individuals residing within the Opportunity Zone with limited experience or
credentials, to gain access to hands-on training and career pathways, improving
their long-term earning potential and job stability.

5. Accelerating hiring and job placements, reduce unemployment duration and
increase workforce participation.



https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-680.720
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-680.730
https://www.irs.gov/newsroom/opportunity-zones
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.410
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.610
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.620

6. Improving WIOA performance outcomes statewide such as employment rate and
median earnings.

There are no state, local, statutory, or regulatory barriers to implementing the waiver
requested. Strategic goals projected programmatic outcomes, and description of
individual, groups, or populations impacted by the waiver are described in the document
attached as: FloridaCommerce State of Florida Waiver Request — Workforce Innovation
and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Increasing On-the-Job Training Reimbursement Limits for
Businesses in Opportunity Zones.

FOR CONSIDERATION

e Authorize FloridaCommerce and CareerSource Florida to submit a
USDOL waiver requesting authority to increase the wage rate
reimbursement to employers statewide up to 90 percent and up to 100
percent for businesses in Opportunity Zones or residents that reside
within an Opportunity Zone.

e Once prepared, the waiver will be posted for public comment at
careersourceflorida.com for 30 calendar days before submission to
USDOL.

e The waiver request will be included in Florida’s WIOA Combined Plan
Two-Year Modification.

Attachments

¢ FloridaCommerce State of Florida Waiver Request — Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act (WIOA) Increasing On-the-Job Training Reimbursement Limits
for Businesses in Opportunity Zones.

e Training and Employment Notice No. 25-24 — Leveraging Workforce Innovation
and Opportunity Act Waivers to Increase Labor Force Participation and Worker
Productivity (May 6, 2025).



https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEN/2024/TEN%2025-24/TEN%2025-24%20%28Accessible%20PDF%29.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEN/2024/TEN%2025-24/TEN%2025-24%20%28Accessible%20PDF%29.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEN/2024/TEN%2025-24/TEN%2025-24%20%28Accessible%20PDF%29.pdf

Ron DeSantis

J. Alex Kelly

FLORIDACDMMERCE

State of Florida Waiver Request
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)
Increasing On-the-Job Training Reimbursement Limits for Businesses in Opportunity Zones

Statutory and/or Regulatory Requirements to be Waived

The State of Florida is requesting a waiver from the requirements outlined in WIOA Section 134(c)(3)(H)(i)
and 20 CFR 680.720(b) that states “employers may be reimbursed up to 50 percent of the wage rate of an
OJT participant, and up to 75 percent using the criteria in § 680.730, for the extraordinary costs of
providing the training and additional supervision related to OJT.”

For Program Years 2025 and 2026, Florida requests to increase on-the-job training (OJT) wage
reimbursements up to 90 percent statewide and up to 100 percent for OJT opportunities with businesses
located in areas designated as Opportunity Zones or residents within an Opportunity Zone. According to
the Training and Employment Notice 24-25, released on May 5, 2025, nine jurisdictions — California,
Colorado, lllinois, Maryland, Missouri, Nevada, Puerto Rico, Rhode Island, Wisconsin — are already
approved for OJT wage reimbursements up to 90 percent statewide.

Opportunity Zones represent economically distressed census tracts identified by state governors and
certified by the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Nationally, there are 8,764 Opportunity Zones, which
are in all 50 states, five territories and the District of Columbia. These communities have historically faced
significant barriers to economic growth and have often been overlooked for investment and job creation.
As well, these areas continue to face chronic underinvestment and disproportionately high barriers to
employment. In Florida, there are a total of 427 Qualified Opportunity Zones, covering every county in
the state. These Opportunity Zones equate to 40,292 business establishments, representing 936,691 jobs
statewide.

Over the last four years, Florida has seen a decline in businesses taking advantage of OJTs as a tool to hire
and train talent, while offsetting costs associated with onboarding and training new staff. As seen in the
chart below, the decline is slightly more than 50 percent for the number of participants served.
Additionally, there was a 75 percent decline in the number of positions created through OJT. Furthermore,
the number of local workforce development boards that employ OJT as a work-based training
encountered fluctuations over this period, resulting in a slight decline, even while using OJT as a means
to support the training costs associated with apprenticeship’s “earn and learn” model.

Program Participants Employers Job Orders Positions LWDB Usage
Year(s) Served Served Created Created
2021 566 221 221 1423 18/24 (75%)
2022 462 158 158 277 20/24 (83%)
2023 439 238 238 372 19/24 (79%)
2024 277 241 241 350 15/21 (71%)*

*Florida consolidated its workforce development boards from 24 to 21 effective July 1, 2024.
Actions the State Has Undertaken to Remove State or Local Barriers
There are no state, local, statutory, or regulatory barriers to implementing the waiver.

Strategic Goals of the Waiver


https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEN/2024/TEN%2025-24/TEN%2025-24.pdf

Page 2 of 3

The strategic goals associated with this waiver are to:

1. Provide atargeted incentive to employers in Opportunity Zones to drive job creation and improve
access to work-based learning opportunities for job seekers in need.

2. Address the talent pipeline shortages faced by many employers in Opportunity Zones by ensuring
participants have the skills and preparation needed to enter the workforce and be contributing
members of the local and State economy.

3. Attract additional private investment in Opportunity Zones.

4. Expand accessto work-based learning in Opportunity Zones, particularly those individuals residing
within the Opportunity Zone with limited experience or credentials, to gain access to hands-on
training and career pathways, improving their long-term earning potential and job stability.

5. Accelerate hiring and job placements, reduce unemployment durations and increase workforce
participation in Opportunity Zones.

6. Improve WIOA performance outcomes statewide.

Alignment with U.S. Department of Labor/Employment and Training Administration Policy Priorities

WIOA places an emphasis and priority on work-based learning opportunities, and this waiver will enable
Florida to create more of these opportunities with businesses in the state so workers can advance.
USDOL’s Fiscal Year 2022-26 Strategic Plan established ETA’s Performance Goal 1.1 to “create customer-
focused workforce solutions that serve all workers, including underserved communities.” Approval of this
waiver allows Florida to support businesses in building or rebuilding their workforce through work-based
learning opportunities and target businesses in Opportunity Zones for OJT to participate in the workforce
system, and thus increase opportunities for jobseekers to access high quality training and employment.

This waiver will meet the following ETA strategies outlined in goal 1.1:

1. Preparing America’s workers for the jobs of the 21st century by investing in high-quality workforce
training programs and expanding access to underserved communities; and,

2. Strengthening training and employment services by supporting the workforce system to provide
critical employment and training services in a rapidly changing environment.

The flexibility to provide an increased wage reimbursement for OJTs ensures that scarce workforce dollars
are allocated to strengthen the local talent pipeline, especially in communities with the greatest barriers
to employment and economic growth. Employers operating in distressed areas often cite training costs as
a deterrent to hiring. Offering an increased reimbursement mitigates that disincentive and strengthens
public-private collaboration in workforce development. The waiver enables scalable, employer-driven
training approaches that are essential for building pipelines in in-demand industries, especially for youth,
dislocated workers, and individuals with limited formal education. By targeting OJT reimbursements to
employers in Opportunity Zones, this waiver helps ensure a higher return on investment through
improved employment outcomes and stronger community economic resilience.

Projected Programmatic Outcomes Resulting from Implementation of the Waiver
The State expects to achieve the following goals and programmatic outcomes as a result of this waiver:

1. Increased number of OJT placements for businesses, particularly in Opportunity Zones.



Page 3 of 3

2. Increased employment retention rates in the 2nd and 4th quarters after exit.
3. Increased number of unique employer work sites using OJT.

Description of Individuals, Groups, or Populations Impacted by the Waiver

Employers.

Small and mid-size businesses in Opportunity Zones.

WIOA participants (Adult, Dislocated Workers, Youth).

The State’s career centers and the one-stop delivery system.

PwnNE

The Process to Monitor the Waived Activities and Collect Waiver Outcome Information

Annual WIOA on-site and remote programmatic reviews will include an evaluation of how the waiver is
being utilized locally and the success of achieving the stated goals and outcomes. Local workforce
development boards will also be responsible for assessing the use and effectiveness of the waiver. Local
areas will also be required to report on implementation and performance as a result of the waiver in their
local and regional plans.

Most Recent Data Available Regarding the Results and Outcomes Observed Through the
Implementation of the Existing Waiver

The State of Florida does not have an OJT waiver in place at present.
Opportunity for Local Workforce Development Board and Public Comment on the Waiver

Workforce development stakeholders, including LWDBs, businesses, and Chief Local Elected Officials,
were notified of the State’s waiver request through an email alert and post on CareerSource Florida’s
website. This included instructions on how to submit comments. In addition, both the public and
stakeholders had access to the waiver request on CareerSource Florida’s website,
CareerSourceFlorida.com, in the WIOA combined plan. The public comment period was open for 30
calendar days.



NO.
TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT 25-24

DATE
NOTICE May 6,2025

TO: STATE WORKFORCE AGENCIES
STATE WORKFORCE LIAISONS
STATE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARDS AND STAFF
LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARDS AND STAFF

FROM: LORI FRAZIER BEARDEN Q@{
Acting Assistant Secretary

SUBJECT: Leveraging Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Waivers to Increase
Labor Force Participation and Worker Productivity

1. Purpose. To encourage state and local Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)
title I grantees to leverage waivers that may increase labor force participation and enhance
worker productivity in response to the Presidential Memorandum of January 20, 2025, titled,
“Delivering Emergency Price Relief for American Families and Defeating the Cost-of-Living
Crisis.”

2. Action Requested. All state and local grantees are encouraged to request waivers as
necessary, such as those outlined in this Training and Employment Notice (TEN), to ensure
WIOA funds are being used effectively to increase labor force participation by drawing
discouraged workers into the labor force, and to upskill the workforce to enhance worker
productivity.

3. Summary and Background.

e Summary — This TEN shares information about four WIOA waiver options that grantees
may use to help improve labor force participation rates and productivity to increase the
prosperity of the American worker.

e Background — President Trump issued the Presidential Memorandum on January 20,
2025, which is available at: https://www.whitehouse.gov/presidential-
actions/2025/01/delivering-emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-
the-cost-of-living-crisis/.* All federal agencies are taking steps to implement this memo,
which calls upon the Federal Government to create employment opportunities for
American workers, including drawing discouraged workers into the labor force, with the
goal of lowering America’s cost of living.

! Also available in the Federal Register at: https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/01/28/2025-
01904/delivering-emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-the-cost-of-living-crisis and
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2025-01-28/pdf/2025-01904.pdf.

EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20210



https://www.whitehouse.gov/presidential-actions/2025/01/delivering-emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-the-cost-of-living-crisis/
https://www.whitehouse.gov/presidential-actions/2025/01/delivering-emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-the-cost-of-living-crisis/
https://www.whitehouse.gov/presidential-actions/2025/01/delivering-emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-the-cost-of-living-crisis/
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/01/28/2025-01904/delivering-emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-the-cost-of-living-crisis
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/01/28/2025-01904/delivering-emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-the-cost-of-living-crisis
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2025-01-28/pdf/2025-01904.pdf

WIOA section 189(i) provides states the opportunity to request waivers of some statutory
or regulatory requirements for Secretary of Labor approval. A full description of what
does and does not fall under that waiver authority can be found in WIOA Section
189(i)(3) and at 20 CFR 679.610 and 20 CFR 679.620. State and local areas have used
WIOA waivers to respond creatively to economic pressures and business needs in their
communities. Waivers modify a state’s Unified or Combined State Plan and, therefore,
are generally approved for the length of the approved State Plan (four years). Youth
waivers and some disaster related business capitalization waivers, however, are tied to the
length of funding and are approved for two-year increments.

This TEN provides examples of ways in which states can leverage the waiver authority to
increase labor force participation and employment opportunities for American workers,
but this is not an exhaustive list of waiver authority. More information about waivers can
be found at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/wioa/waivers.

4. Leveraging WIOA Waivers to Enhance Labor Force Participation and Worker

Productivity. WIOA is intended to help American workers receive the training and career
services necessary to take advantage of employment opportunities in their communities.
Section 134 of WIOA allows states and local areas to fund a variety of training approaches,
including several types of work-based training. Some states use waivers to provide even
more flexibility within the allowable training opportunities. Following are some waiver
options states can use to engage discouraged workers and assist in their re-entering the
workforce. Waivers may also support employers in delivering training and upskilling to close
skills gaps that improve worker productivity and generally enhance employment
opportunities for Americans.

Increasing On-the-Job Training (OJT) reimbursement for Local Workforce
Development Boards (Local Boards).

OJT is a work-based learning strategy that helps individuals to build or update their skills
or establish themselves in emerging, high-demand fields. It also incentivizes businesses
to hire individuals and invest in their skill development by providing wage
reimbursement to program participants. OJT programs can be particularly successful for
individuals who are unable or unlikely to obtain employment without retraining;
individuals who are low income, receiving unemployment insurance or public assistance,
or need to earn a wage while learning occupational skills; and individuals who can learn
the skills necessary for the occupation more easily and thoroughly on the job. OJT may
also be a good option for currently employed individuals who are not earning a family-
sustaining wage.

Under Section 134(c)(3)(H)(i) of WIOA and the implementing regulation at 20 CFR
680.720, a Local Board may reimburse an employer up to 50 percent of the wage rate of
an OJT participant for the extraordinary costs of providing the training and additional
supervision related to the training. In limited circumstances, the reimbursement may be
up to 75 percent of the wage rate of the participant. The Secretary has the authority to
waive this provision, and has previously approved waivers to allow up to 90 percent of
OJT employer reimbursement for businesses with less than 50 employees. This allows for


https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.610
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-679.620
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/wioa/waivers
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-680.720
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/section-680.720

more small businesses to take advantage of OJT reimbursement while training new
employees in their communities, bringing new opportunities to previously discouraged
workers.

As of March 2025, nine states have taken advantage of this waiver.

Increasing Transitional Jobs.

Transitional jobs are a type of service that Local Boards may provide to help discouraged
workers to re-enter the labor force. Transitional jobs are time-limited and wage-paid
work experiences that are subsidized up to 100 percent by WIOA funding. Transitional
jobs are particularly useful for discouraged workers who are chronically unemployed,
may not have robust work experience, have large gaps in their employment history, or
experience other barriers to employment. Transitional jobs provide an individual with
work experience, generally for a fixed time period, during which the worker develops on-
the-job skills while receiving a wage and supportive services. Transitional jobs also assist
employers, particularly small businesses, who may be experiencing worker shortages or
need to hire additional staff to rebuild their business operations after experiencing
economic impacts, by reimbursing a greater portion of their training and wage costs.

Under Section 134(d)(5) of WIOA and its implementing regulation at 20 CFR 680.195, a
Local Board may use up to 10 percent of its combined total of Adult and Dislocated
Worker allocations for these transitional jobs. The Secretary has the authority to waive
this provision, and has previously approved an increase in allowable use of funds for
transitional jobs up to 50 percent of Adult and Dislocated Worker allocations. This
waiver allows states to fund more transitional jobs, which can be used as tools to re-
engage workers in the American economy.

As of March 2025, only one state has ever taken advantage of this waiver.

Increase Funds Available for Incumbent Worker Training (IWT)

States interested in helping lower costs by increasing a worker’s wage through career
advancement may choose to leverage IWT. IWT consists of work-based training designed
to ensure that workers of a company can acquire the skills necessary to retain employment
and advance within the company, or to acquire the skills necessary to avert a layoff, while
remaining employed. IWT can also be used for underemployed workers, or workers who
would prefer full-time work but are working part-time for economic reasons. For instance,
IWT training may focus on increasing skills for frontline workers in an effort to advance
those workers to more skilled positions with the same employer or industry sector, leading
to an increase in earnings through more work hours or an increase in pay.

Under WIOA Section 134(d)(4) and the implementing regulation at 20 CFR 680.800(a),
a Local Board may reserve up to 20 percent of their combined total of Adult and
Dislocated Worker allocations funds for IWT. The Secretary has authority to waive this
provision, and has previously approved an increase of the allowable threshold available
for IWT from 20 to 50 percent.



https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/chapter-V/part-680/subpart-A/section-680.195
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-20/chapter-V/part-680/subpart-F/section-680.800

By increasing allowable funding from 20 to 50 percent, a Local Board can invest in its
existing businesses and workforce, assisting businesses to upskill workers, which
increases retention and worker productivity.

As of March 2025, three states have taken advantage of this waiver.

e Increasing Work Experience Opportunities for In-School Youth (I1SY)
Work Experiences are a planned, structured learning experience that takes place in the
workplace for a limited period of time. In the WIOA Youth program, there are a variety
of work experiences including: summer employment opportunities and other employment
opportunities throughout the school year; pre-apprenticeship programs and Registered
Apprenticeship programs; internships; job shadowing; and OJT.

Under Section 129(a)(4) of WIOA and the implementing regulation at 20 CFR 681.410,
local areas must spend not less than 75 percent of local area WIOA Youth funds on out-
of-school youth (OSY). The Secretary has authority to waive this provision, and has
previously approved waivers to reduce the OSY expenditure requirement from 75 percent
to 50 percent. By reducing the OSY expenditure minimum to 50 percent, Local Boards
can spend up to 50 percent of WIOA Youth funds on ISY, thereby providing additional
work experience opportunities for ISY, including pre-apprenticeship and Registered
Apprenticeship programs. Evidence shows that work experience and work-based learning
interventions improve several outcomes related to success in the labor market including
short-term annual earnings, long-term annual earnings, short-term employment, and long-
term employment.? By increasing opportunities for ISY to participate in work experience,
WIOA Youth programs can help set them up for short- and long-term success in the labor
market.

As of March 2025, 28 states have taken advantage of this waiver and the majority of
states requesting this waiver report using it primarily to expand work experience
opportunities for ISY.

5. Inquiries. For further information, please contact the appropriate Regional Office.

6. References.
e Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), Sec. 189(i), 29 U.S.C. § 3249
¢ WIOA Regulations at 20 CFR parts 679, 680, and 681
e Training and Employment Guidance Letter No. 08-18, Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act (WIOA) Title I and Wagner-Peyser Act Waiver Requirements and
Request Process, December 19, 2018, available at

2 pathways to Work Evidence Clearinghouse prepared for the Office of Planning, Research, and Evaluation,
Administration for Children and Families, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services: and available at:
https://pathwaystowork.acf.gov/pathways publications/work-experience-and-work-based-learning



https://pathwaystowork.acf.gov/pathways_publications/work-experience-and-work-based-learning

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-quidance-letter-no-
08-18.

e Training and Employment Guidance Letter No. 19-16, Guidance on Services provided
through the Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs under the Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act (WIOA) and the Wagner-Peyser Act Employment Services (ES), as
amended by title 111 of WIOA, and for implementation of the WIOA Final Rules, March 1,
2017, available at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-
quidance-letter-no-19-16.

e Presidential Memorandum, “Delivering Emergency Price Relief for American Families
and Defeating the Cost-of-Living Crisis,” January 20, 2025, available at
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/01/28/2025-01904/delivering-
emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-the-cost-of-living-crisis and
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2025-01-28/pdf/2025-01904.pdf.

7. Attachment(s). N/A



https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-guidance-letter-no-08-18
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-guidance-letter-no-08-18
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-guidance-letter-no-19-16
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-guidance-letter-no-19-16
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/01/28/2025-01904/delivering-emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-the-cost-of-living-crisis
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/01/28/2025-01904/delivering-emergency-price-relief-for-american-families-and-defeating-the-cost-of-living-crisis
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2025-01-28/pdf/2025-01904.pdf

CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors Meeting
May 21, 2025

Action Item 7

Approved
Disapproved

Action Item 7

CAREERSOURCE FLORIDA
DESIGNATION OF REGIONAL PLANNING AREAS

Public Law 113-128, the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), requires
the state workforce development board to develop and implement a State Workforce
Development Plan. WIOA Section 106 describes the process by which the Governor
designates local workforce development areas within the state. WIOA encourages the
development of planning regions to align workforce development activities and
resources with larger regional economic development areas and available resources to
provide coordinated and efficient services to both job seekers and employers. The goal
of regional planning is to develop, align, and integrate strategies and resources to
support regional economic growth.

CareerSource Florida Policy 2023.09.19.A.1 — Regional Planning Areas Strateqgic Policy
and CareerSource Florida Administrative Policy 123 — Regional Planning Area
Identification and Requirements describe the requirements for regional planning areas.
Local workforce development boards (LWDBs) may request designation as a Regional
Planning Area by submitting the request and supporting documentation to the state
workforce development board for consideration. The state, after consultation with local
workforce development boards and chief local elected officials (CLEOs) for the Regional
Planning Area, shall require the LWDB and CLEOs within a planning region to include
the shared Regional Planning Area objectives, activities, and performance elements as
a regional addendum to each LWDB’s WIOA local plan. Regional Planning Area and
local WIOA plans must align with Florida’s WIOA Statewide Plan.

The Florida Department of Commerce (FloridaCommerce) received three requests for
designation as a regional planning area. The requests were reviewed for compliance
with Administrative Policy 123 — Regional Planning Areas Identification and
Requirements and determined compliant.



https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/Regional-Planning-Strategic-Policy.pdf
https://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/programs-and-resources/wioa/2023-wioa-administrative-policies/final---regional-planning-areas-identification-and-requirements-administrative-policy.pdf?sfvrsn=7abd5cb0_2
https://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/programs-and-resources/wioa/2023-wioa-administrative-policies/final---regional-planning-areas-identification-and-requirements-administrative-policy.pdf?sfvrsn=7abd5cb0_2

CareerSource Florida and FloridaCommerce recommend that the CareerSource Florida
Board of Directors approve the designation of the following areas:

Tampa Bay Regional Planning Area which includes CareerSource Pasco
Hernando (LWDB 16), CareerSource Polk (LWDB 17), CareerSource Suncoast
(LWDB 18), and CareerSource Hillsborough Pinellas (LWDB 28)

Heartland Southwest Florida Regional Planning Area which includes
CareerSource Heartland (LWDB 19) and CareerSource Southwest Florida
(LWDB 24)

Central & East Coast Florida Innovation Alliance which includes
CareerSource Central Florida (LWDB 12) and CareerSource Brevard Flagler
Volusia (LWDB 27)

FOR CONSIDERATION

Approve a recommendation to the Governor for the designation of the
following regional planning areas:

o Tampa Bay Regional Planning Area - CareerSource Pasco
Hernando (LWDB 16), CareerSource Polk (LWDB 17), CareerSource
Suncoast (LWDB 18), and CareerSource Hillsborough Pinellas
(LWDB 28)

o Heartland Southwest Florida Regional Planning Area -
CareerSource Heartland (LWDB 19) and CareerSource Southwest
Florida (LWDB 24)

o Central & East Coast Florida Innovation Alliance - CareerSource
Central Florida (LWDB 12) and CareerSource Brevard Flagler Volusia
(LWDB 27)

Supporting Documents:

o Request for regional planning area designation from Tampa Bay
Regional Planning Area - CareerSource Pasco Hernando (LWDB 16),
CareerSource Polk (LWDB 17), CareerSource Suncoast (LWDB 18),
and CareerSource Hillsborough Pinellas (LWDB 28)

o Request for regional planning area designation from Heartland
Southwest Florida Regional Planning Area - CareerSource Heartland
(LWDB 19) and CareerSource Southwest Florida (LWDB 24)



https://careersourceflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/A7-Designation-of-3-Regional-Planning-Areas.pdf

o Request for regional planning area designation from Central & East
Coast Florida Innovation Alliance - CareerSource Central Florida
(LWDB 12) and CareerSource Brevard Flagler Volusia (LWDB 27)




CareerSource
;’FLORIDA

Information ltems




@y CareerSource

;‘FLORIDA

Speaker Bios

Kelly Jordan

P Kelly Jordan has been a leader at CareerSource Okaloosa Walton since
2004, serving as Chief Operating Officer since August 2014. She holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from Faulkner University.

Jordan’s career at CareerSource Okaloosa Walton includes roles as
Workforce Investment Act Program Manager and Business Services
Manager. She has extensive experience managing Department of Labor
Grants, Veteran Services, Welfare Transition Program, Reemployment
Assistance, Youth Program, and Performance and Reporting.

Jordan actively engages in community initiatives related to Economic
Development and Adult Education. She serves as an advisory board member of the Florida
Small Business Development Center (SBDC) at the University of West Florida and has chaired
the Chief Operating Officers Group for all 21 CareerSource boards since July 2023. Additionally,
she chaired the 2024 Workforce Professional Development Summit and will continue as chair
for the 2025 Summit.

Since November 2021, Jordan has co-chaired the Career Readiness Working Group for the Tri-
County Community Partnership Initiative (TCPI), partnering with leaders from Hurlburt Field and
Eglin Air Force Base. Led by One Okaloosa Economic Development Council, TCPI fosters
Public-Public/Public-Private (P4) partnerships to reduce operating costs and enhance service
capabilities for local military installations and defense communities.

Rachel Ludwiq

Rachel Ludwig serves as the Florida Chamber Foundation’s Vice President
of Talent Development for the Future of Work. In this role, Ludwig leads
the Chamber Foundation’s initiatives to improve Florida’s talent pipeline
from cradle to career, which is a key component in our pursuit to achieve
the Florida 2030 Blueprint mission of becoming a top 10 global economy
by 2030.

Before transitioning to the Florida Chamber, Ludwig worked at the Florida
Department of Education Division of Career and Adult Education and
oversaw statewide Professional Development for Adult Education. Through
this work, she collaborated with educational leaders and key stakeholders
to increase her knowledge of various industry and workforce needs throughout Florida. She led
expansion efforts of integrated education and training (IET) programs, which accelerate the
ability of adult learners to enter the workforce. Ludwig has worked in K-12, post-secondary, and
workforce education, serving learners across urban, suburban, and rural areas.




1 CareerSource

F’FLORIDA

Marcus McBride

~ Marcus L. McBride joined the CareerSource Escarosa team in June 2020

as the chief executive officer. He is a passionate leader who brings a
wealth of knowledge from his experience in the public and private sector.
McBride holds a Ph.D. in Educational Psychology and Research Methods;
Master of Arts in Educational Psychology; and a Bachelor of Science in
Human Development and Family Studies, all from the University of
Alabama.

Over the past 19 years, McBride has held various roles leading collective
efforts to empower others to reach their highest potential. Prior to his
current role, he most recently served as director of education and training

for Goodwill Industries of the Southern Rivers.

Kathryn Wheeler

‘ . Kathryn Wheeler was appointed as the Florida Department of Education’s

Director of Apprenticeship in February 2022. Prior to this appointment,
Wheeler had worked for the Department in workforce education for 10
years — initially as the State Supervisor for Architecture & Construction
and Energy Career Clusters, and more recently as the CAPE Industry
Certification Manager. Before joining the Department of Education,
Wheeler worked as a licensed interior designer where she designed
healthcare, office, residential and commercial projects.



	Meeting Agenda
	Consent Items
	Consent Item 1: 20 February 2025 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
	Consent Item 2: April 2025 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes
	Consent Item 3: Recommendation to Sunset Six CareerSource Florida Policies and Technical Assistance Letters
	Consent Item 4: WIOA LWDB Local and Regional Plan Approval
	Consent Item 5: CareerSource Polk Local Board Composition and Certification
	Consent Item 6: CareerSource Heartland (LWDB 19) Request to Serve as One-Stop Operator
	Consent Item 7: Approval of the 2025-26 MCL

	Action Items
	Action Item 1: FY 2025-26 CareerSource Florida Network Funding
	Action Item 2: Revisions to CSF Policy G1: State Workforce Development Board Roles and Responsibilities
	Action Item 3: CSF Workforce Policy Adult and Dislocated Worker Program Framework and Design
	Action Item 4: CSF Administrative Policy Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA) Program Design and Framework
	Action Item 5: Revisions to CSF Workforce Policy 009 On-The-Job Training
	Action Item 6: US Dept of Labor On-The-Job Training Reimbursement Waiver Request
	Action Item 7: CSF Designation of Regional Planning Areas

	Information Items
	Speaker Bios





